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Corporate Information
NAEIE R

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Ms. Xie Qingmei (Chairlady)
Mr. Wu Zheyan (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Wu Dongping

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Hin Chi
Prof. Jin Zhongweli
Prof. Su Wengiang

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Lam Hin Chi (Chairman)
Prof. Su Wengiang
Prof. Jin Zhongwei

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Prof. Jin Zhongwei (Chairman)
Prof. Su Wengiang
Mr. Lam Hin Chi

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Prof. Jin Zhongwei (Chairman)
Prof. Su Wengiang
Mr. Lam Hin Chi

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Lam Hin Chi (Chairman)
Prof. Su Wengiang
Prof. Jin Zhongwei

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Lee Kin Yee, craA

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Wu Zheyan
Ms. Lee Kin Yee

EEg
HITESR
BEELL (ER)
REEK A (TTHBH)

FMITES
REFRE

BUIFRITES
EFBLE
SEAHE
X BRI

BT RZEE
EBBLE(ER)
BB
SEANE

FHEES
SERYR(ER)
BB
BB

REZEE
SERYE(ER)
X BRI
EFBLE

BEMEREEES
BBy (XE)

R BREIR

& ERYIE

NAEIME
TEREL L cra

REAR
[EERE
FRELT

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019



Corporate Information (continued)
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Corporate Information (continued)
NEIE R ()
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Financial Summary
B2

(In RMB’000 unless otherwise stated)

(BHBEHETIN  UARETTIT)

Year ended 31 December

Profitability data and ratios B SERILE BET+T-_A=1+—HLEE
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
Revenue WA 694,052 634,686
Timber houses and their related parts NE REABRA A KB
and structures 567,862 496,211
Leisure household products REREER
Outdoor and indoor furniture ERIMRIEER 24,931 13,075
Recreational products WrEVREE 32,205 14,697
Landscape garden products BESMEE D 7,229 13,474
Pet-home designs BYEEmM 7,781 11,441
Trading of timber KBS 47,153 71,228
Renewable energy products BERRE®D 6,891 14,560
Gross profit EF 8,624 68,525
Gross profit margin FFI = 1.2% 10.8%
Net loss SRR (64,471) (184,931)
Net profit margin v ) 2 -9.29% -29.1%
Loss per share (RMB) HFREEBR(ARE) (0.104) (0.299)
At At
31 December 31 December
Financial position data and ratios MK RISERILSE 2019 2018
R-IE—NE RZZT—N\F
+=ZA=+—B +ZA=+—H
Non-current assets FRBEE 526,472 549,520
Current assets TEVEE 454,973 618,361
Current liabilities mEAE 89,234 197,862
Non-current liabilities ERE AR 6,578 19,471
Equity attributable to equity shareholders #z#H AEEE KR 885,633 950,548
Current ratio (Note 1) TRENEL K (KEE 1) 5.1:1 3.1:1
Quick ratio (Note 2) RENEL K (ff712) 2.6:1 1.4:1
Inventory turnover days (Note 3) (days) FEEEXE(ME3)(R) 152 218
Trade receivables turnover days 2 5 WK IE B R 8
(Note 4) (days) (HfsE4) (R) 55 65
Turnover days on prepayment for AR TR SR B R B (A7 5T 5) (R)
raw materials (Note 5) (days) 34 48
RREYIZERAERA T

—E-NEFFER
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Financial Summary (Continued)
IS HL2 ()

(In RMB’000 unless otherwise stated) (x5 BHTIN + UAAREFITIR)

Notes:
1. Current ratio is the ratio of current assets to current liabilities.
2. Quick ratio is calculated by dividing current assets (excluding inventories) by

current liabilities.

3. Inventory turnover days is calculated by dividing average inventories by cost of
inventories and multiplying the resulting value by 365 days.

4. Trade receivables turnover days is calculated by dividing average trade
receivables (excluding VAT) by turnover and multiplying the resulting value by
365 days.

5. Turnover days on prepayment for raw materials is calculated by dividing average

prepayment for raw materials by cost of inventories (excluding staff costs,
depreciation and research and development costs) and multiplying the resulting
value by 365 days.

Bt -

MENLEBRBAEL RENAEALLE -

HERRRBAE (TRETE) RARBREE

T & AERBUZ T 977 BB A7 B A B 3R IA 365 KT

o

A RWHARERBRTHE S RURE(TREE

BB B IAE B BIRIABE R H -

R RL IR 3R 8 R BUR T 15 R A R A R AT B K
A(TBEETHRA - T8 RFEKA) BIRIA365 KA
o
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Financial Summary (Continued)
IS HL2 ()

(In RMB’000 unless otherwise stated) (fr5 BTN+ AAREFITIR)

A summary of the results and the assets, liabilities and equity of the AEESFREMBFEE 7 2¥EHEE BER

Group for the last five financial years is depicted below: EHBMEIRAT
RESULTS S
For the year ended 31 December
8F+-A=+—HILEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-aE —T)\HF Tt —ZT-RF —IET-1F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARETT ARETT ARKETT ARETR
Revenue WA 694,052 634,686 462,191 442,328 639,999
Cost of sales SHEMA (685,428) (566,161) (430,018) (394,506) (517,542)
Gross profit e 8,624 68,525 32,173 47,822 122,457
Other revenue Hl A 19,856 9,480 15,777 29,308 32,908
Other net (loss)/gain Hitn (F518), M F 5 (4,700) (180,023) (14,884) (21,877) (7,030)
Selling and distribution expenses 4% kA 5% (25,565) (22,329) (17,600) (20,219) (22,671)
Administrative expenses A (48,330) (49,194) (47,249) (46,546) (55,554)
Expected credit l0ss on CREEMNTEHY
financial assets EEER (12,774) (642) - - -
(Loss)/profit from operations & (E18),/ R (62,889) (174,183) (31,783) (11,512 70,110
Share of profits/(losses) of DIEEE R ELEF],
associates (E518) (1,815) 282 (204) (129) 20
Finance costs BhE KA 401 (8,895) (6,216) (9,037) (16,627)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRiAT (E18),/%F (64,303) (182,796) (38,203) (20,678) 53,503
Income tax expenses FTisfif > (168) (2,135) (2,353) (1,617) (9,701)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE)&F (64,471)  (184,931) (40,556) (22,295) 43,802
(Loss)/earnings per share SR (BE),/ B
— Basic and diluted —EAREE
(RMB) (Note) (ARE) (FiI7E) (0.104) (0.299) (0.067) (0.044) 0.131°

Note: 0On 22 October 2019, the Company has effected a share consolidation of every
five shares into one consolidated share. Earning per share for the comparative
periods has been adjusted on a basis of five shares into one consolidated share

M- RZZT—NAE+A-+=Z8 ARAESEEARKRNHE
HR-IREGHEN - LEMENEREFCRERKR
— & BEAR () B EAEETT I -

accordingly.
* The earning per share for the year ended 31 December 2014 has been revised as * HE-Z-—MF+_A=1T—HItFEZSRABFEE
RMBO0.366. EABARE0.3667T °

PRENERARAT
—E-NEER
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Financial Summary (continued)

BB E ()

(In RMB’000 unless otherwise stated) (x5 BHTIN + UAAREFITIR)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

BE  AERER

As at 31 December

®+=B=+—8H

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

—E-nE —T-N\F —T—+tF ZT-RF T-1F

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTRE ARETT ARETT ARBTIT ARETR

Total Assets BEBE 981,445 1,167,881 1,493,483 1,623,282 1,624,667
Total Liabilities BEEE 95,812 217,333 362,893 494 565 489,157
Total Equity AT 885,633 950,548 1,130,590 1,128,717 1,135,510

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Chairlady’s Statement
FEHmE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (“the Board") of directors (“the Directors”) of
the Company, | hereby announce the results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019 (“the
Year”).

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the Year, the revenue of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB694.0 million, representing a moderate growth of 9.4% as
compared with the year ended 31 December 2018. The adverse
impact of US-China trade tensions surfaced in 2019, the Group
recorded the loss of RMB64.5 million for the Year, representing a
significant decrease as compared to the loss of approximately
RMB184.9 million recorded for the year ended 31 December 2018. The
Board considered that the decrease was mainly attributable to no
significant additional impairment of assets is necessary for the year
ended 31 December 2019 as compared to the recognition of
impairment of assets amounted to approximately RMB139.3 million for
the year ended 31 December 2018; and (i) excluding the effect of the
recognition of impairment of assets for the year ended 31 December
2018, the Group recorded an increase in loss for the year ended 31
December 2019, mainly due to the increase in trade tariff imposed by
the United States on certain China exported goods from 10% to 25%
effective May 2019, resulting in the further decline of profit margin of
the wooden products exported to the United States by the Group.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

Amid lingering US-China trade tensions and weaker global economic
growth, the Group experienced another challenging year in 2019. The
Office of the United States Trade Representative announced further
increase in trade tariff imposed on certain China exported goods from
10% to 25% effective May 2019, resulting in the further decline of profit
margin of the wooden products exported to the United States by the
Group during the Year. As the North American market remains the
largest income stream of the Group, the escalated US-China trade
tensions have adversely impacted the performance of the Group in
2019. Adding to the headwinds from external environment, the weakest
economic growth in nearly three decades recorded in the Mainland
China, with its GDP grew an annual 6.1% in 2019, further weighed down
the Group's business performance as a result of sluggish domestic
demand. Nevertheless, turnover from the Australasia market continued
to edge up due to increasing market acceptance of the Group’s timber
houses and their related parts and structures, offsetting the negative
impact from the North American and PRC markets to some extent.

BALIRR -

FAEREARREE (B e ((E=2E))
AERREBAARREMBRR ([AREE]) &
ECE-AFTA=+-RALFE(AFE]

M RE

RAFE  AEEBNBRARBE-_Z—N\F+=
A=+ —BLFEEMIEINL%ZEHNARE
A0BE BT - ETFEBEZERBEMNTAEZER
ZE-NFEEEE - ARERAFEHEEHE
ARBMSEBL REE=-ZE—N\F+=A
ST -HLEFEHSBEENARKIBIIBEETT
NigRL - EFERARINEZREZBERN
HE - Z—/\F+_A=1+—HBI-FENEER
BEERANDAREINIEEL BHE_Z—N1LF
F+ AT HLFEREEREINEERE
FERR (WTRREHEZZE-NF+=A
=t+—HILEFENEERBEEROTE  A&E
HE-_ZT-hF+-_A=+—BILFENEIEE
e EERANB2019F5 A REREETHEH
HOERBR B BB 10% IR E25% - &
BARERERHAOMAREGOABEE—LST

i o

EHRR

EHXEZERBBERNDREEERRUNN
BERET SEE_Z-hLhEXERMIEEN—
F-EXBEBEHRRPAETEM BT —NFH
R $ETHREHOEMEBRSE10%E —
FRREE|25%  SHAKREAFEAXEHON
RGO BERE T TR - ARIEETHIA
EEBERKHBPAKR  hXEZFERBEFAR
HEE _ZT-NFNEEELTINTE - 2z
SNBRENIHNEE  FEARE_T-NEFH
BREESEFERRF6I%  WI=-TFKE
SIRMEIIER - MR AFRS £ FEETE
BERBERE - R ARNORANAEEHIHHA
SEAREREABI T REFNRZIEREEN -
E—ERE LR TIEEMPETmENEmEEE -

RRAEYERERAR
ZE-NFFR
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Chairlady’s Statement (Continued)
FREHE @

PROSPECTS

On 15 January 2020, the first signs of a truce between the US-China
trade dispute were seen when two countries finally signed the phase
one trade deal. However, the uncertainty remained elevated as the
U.S. Department of Commerce announced the initiation of new
antidumpling duty and countervailing duty investigations (the
“Investigations”) to determine whether wood mouldings and millwork
products from Brazil and China are being dumped in the United
States, and to determine if producers in China are receiving unfair
subsidies on 29 January 2020. Certain of the Group’s wood products
exported to the United States were under the scope of such
Investigations. Looking ahead, there are multiples external and
domestic headwinds facing the Group's profitability. On the external
front, adding headwinds faced by heightened uncertainties and risks
arising from the global economic slowdown, the recent coronavirus
(COVID-19) outbreak has already brought considerable human
suffering and major economic disruption, the Group expects that the
adverse on confidence, financial markets and disruption to supply
chain will surface during the first half of 2020. The Group sees fragile
business and consumer confidence could dampen capital
expenditure, as well as building and construction activities in the
North American, European and Australasia markets. On the other
hand, multiple challenges faced by China, including further economic
slowdown, weakened housing market, rising corporate leverage and
household debt burden further clouded the Group’s business
prospects in the PRC market. With these considerations
aforementioned, it is expected that the Group’s profitability will be
inevitably affected worldwide, putting tremendous pressure on the
returns on assets and inventories. The Group will continue enhance
the business resilience by closely monitoring the initiation of new
antidumpling duty from the United States and the development of
other overseas markets such as Australia, assessing the impact on
the Group and identifying necessary and decisive measures in
diversifying the business risks ahead.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere thanks for
the support and trust from our shareholders and business partners. |
would also like to thank our employees for your efforts and
contributions to the Group over the Year.

Xie Qingmei
Chairlady

BRE

—E-TF-A+RHA PERKEEF BE
BoWhE TEZBFFH 2 ERLEE - AT
BEEEEBIN _Z-_ZF-A-_+NLA=H
BB REERARBUERAS(RAE]) - A
BERBEAMTFEMNABEZERZMAZRES

TEEBES  URFBEMNEEERSERZTIA
TR - TREEEDARS - AEERER T
OMRELEARYGBRLEFAESHEE - BER
R AREBEEFIRE N E R 2 & HNER A B N F
A2 o FESMNER A TE » FR A 2 BRI 18 3R 48 75 2R
K EE R R B AT FIE & - SeA /AR
775 (COVID-19) BEC KB/ ABTER T NEMNE
BMBRMOCERSE  NEBBER - HEEL
SRMISMEEENBIESE S _FTF L4 F
FHKE - AEERA - BHHOBEFIEEERE
DATREEINHIE AT H - ARAESE ~ BUNFILR X
FAEGEmIEMEENMEEES - 5—FHHE PR
FRMZERE - BIEE—TNEERE  Bit
EMSES CEEREANKERE S ES
m E—PESTAEEERBEMSMHERA
S EEI FMEE  BAZEENBFEEDB
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MEENEHERERES - AEEBEERY)
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE R e AT

BUSINESS REVIEW
Segment review
During the Year, the performance of our business segments are as

E e
gal=iEl) =
RAFERE - BIRQEN B2 RBMT -

follows:
Segment revenue % to total segment
derived from external revenue derived from  Reportable segment
customers Change external customers (loss)/profit (Note 1)
{HEEMBERZ DS V0
FEMPERZABRA -] #oBBAESL (BH8) &% (W)
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
B —TNF ZB-nE —“T\& ZB-AFE —T)\F
RMB'000 RMB'000 % % %  RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETRT Rl B ot AR¥WFRT ARETET
Manufacturing and sales EERBEALR
of wooden products 687,132 618,872 1.0 99.0 97.5 (73,719)  (186,107)
Retail business TEER 29 1,254 (97.7) 0.0 02 (730) (1,622)
Manufacturing and sales of EEREERE
renewable energy products BEREM 6,891 14,560 (52.7) 1.0 2.3 942 2,512
694,052 634,686 9.4 100.0 100.0 (73,507)  (185217)

REEZOEBAUTHE  £ERBERE
o TEER - NEPIINRRA AR ZIEE £E
RIEEBERERER - AFE  —AXBIBE
BEENBRADRAHOARES7IEET - A
REOIABLEARB6IBEIL(ZT—/\F :
HWARKEGIBIFETL  ARKIZEAELEAR
1468 &) DB RIKRA99.0% - 0.0% &
1.0% ° (ZZF—)\4F : 97.5% ~ 0.2% 5. 2.3%) °

The Group’s core business segments are comprised of production
and sales of wooden products; retail business; and manufacturing
and sales of renewable energy products. During the Year, revenue
from these three business segments amounted to approximately
RMB687.1 million, RMB0.3 million and RMB6.9 million (2018:
approximately RMB618.9 million, RMB1.3 million and RMB14.6
million), accounting for 99.0%, 0.0% and 1.0% of the total revenue
(2018: 97.5%, 0.2% and 2.3%).

Note 1: BiaET -

Reportable segment (loss)/profit has excluded the after tax effect of A 2H/AHE(EIE),SmFI B MR BT 2 BEE -

government subsidies.

PRENERARAT
—E-NEER
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

1R E 5T 5 B o AT (1)

Manufacturing and sales of wooden products remains to be the
Group's largest business segment, contributing 99.0% of the Group’s
revenue. The revenue derived from such business increased by
11.0%. The overall increase in revenue from this segment is mainly
driven by increase in demand from North America and Australasia
clients.

Global growth momentum moderated further during the Year, and
the disruptive impact of US import tariffs on global trade and supply
chains continued to exacerbate. The Office of the United States
Trade Representative announced further increase in trade tariff
imposed on certain China exported goods from 10% to 25% effective
May 2019, resulting in the further decline of profit margin of the
wooden products exported to the United States by the Group during
the Year. The Group’s export business to the United States still
accounts for a significant proportion of the Group'’s total business
volume. Therefore, manufacturing and sales of wooden products
segment recorded loss of RMB73.7 million during the Year.

The revenue and profit contribution from retail business remains
insignificant during the Year, the Group sees this segment as a
strategic stepping stone in making into the PRC household product
market, and will adapt to new business direction whenever
appropriate.

The Group’s renewable energy business focuses on the recycling of
leftover sawdust from the production of our wooden products into
biomass pellet fuel. Against the backdrop of slowing Chinese
economy and the fierce domestic competition in the renewable
energy market, the Group's renewable energy business recorded a
decrease of 52.7% in revenue to approximately RMB6.9 million
during the Year, with its profit down to RMB0.9 million (2018: revenue
of RMB14.6 million and profit of RMB2.5 million).

HERBEERARMINRERNEEZANEREDE -
IEAREE W AR 99.0% © It IEZETEFTS U AIE N
11.0% ° %72 #B A AR REIE 0 = i OB A A T
T RALEME P 2 BFIEINATER

AER2HRERPNE-IHE  ZBEEORBRK
HEREFHMHEEAOBIRIET BRSNS - %
BESREMAZEM - B2019F5 A - HX
LR B O 7 B RO R R 1 10% 3 — P 1R &
3125% - BHARFEAEEHADERAREE
BRI EE— TR - AEBEH XL AR
BIEEEREBENRALLA - Bt - KNEE
EENMEEARMGBDABREBEARE737ES
T o

BEAMETEEB D AFORATBEMNERMDA
AR AEERRADBRANEBBEBRERPE
BRABEE A T 35 ) R A SRS 1 B8 B 0 30 7S 10 I B
HEBHEEBEITM

ok DR

AEBEBLREREET IR ERARREERRE
hELAMER RARGEBECREMEBAMN
£t e HRBAERRTSNBEAZTF AR - AEE
AEBENFERREFRSRE TRES27%EN
ARBeOBETL MAENEREAREIIAS
T(ZE-N\F: RERAREUAE L E
MBARK25BE8T) -
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

IR E 5T 5 B o AT (1)

MARKET REVIEW

During the Year, the distribution of revenue from our global markets
are as follows:

™ 35 2 8
RAFRE - BIARE 2R ZRADHET -

Revenue % to total revenue
KA LREATSL

2019 2018 Change 2019 2018

—E-nE -—T-)\& #F Z—B—AE —T)\F

RMB’000 RMB'000 % % %

AR®FET ARKETT ANk =37 14 Aok

The PRC s 111,639 146,119 (23.6) 16 23

North America JbEM 334,388 260,111 28.6 48 41

Europe BM 45,112 30,349 48.6 6 5
Asia Pacific K&

(Exclusive of the PRC) (TBIEFR) 4,551 10,162 (55.2) 1 2

Australasia AP 198,362 187,945 55 29 29

694,052 634,686 9.4 100 100

The North American market remains the largest income stream of
the Group, accounting for 48% of the total revenue of the Group
(2018: 41%). During the Year, revenue from the North American
market grew by 28.6% to RMB334.4 million (2018: RMB260.1 million).
As US-China trade tension evolved during the Year, the imposition of
tariffs of up to 25% to the Group's products exported to the United
States resulted in adverse effect to the profitability despite growth in
revenue in this market. On 29 January 2020, the U.S. Department of
Commerce announced the initiation of new antidumpling duty and
countervailing duty investigations to determine whether wood
mouldings and millwork products from Brazil and China are being
dumped in the United States, and to determine if producers in China
are receiving unfair subsidies. Certain of the Group’s wood products
exported to the United States were under the scope of such
investigations. Therefore, the Group will closely monitor the
development on the Investigations, evaluate the impact to the Group
and seek for necessary and decisive actions to minimise the negative
impact.

IETHMAREBEANBRARE - (hEEE
WA B 48% (ZF— )\ F : 41%) - RAFE » K
B EMHEHRAER286EARKEINITE
TT(ZE—N\F: ARB201EET) - BBEF
WHREZBZHERBAREE  BEZMBHERA
BAMER - BEAEEE O E EEAE R ER
EIEB% MBI INE AT ENEETREE - =
ZZTF-AZTNH - EEABEBEHERBI
WRIBHEB RS AS - UEEREEAM
R BIMAREE AR R EE EEEEES - Wi
EFEMEERRS EAERBCTRTFRMHEEL - Z
SEEOHEENELEARRRHBR U EREH
B At AEEBFREREEEAENEE
M AEENTE  USRKUBENREHTE
NRERSAETE -

R RA A
e
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

1R E 5T 5 B o AT (1)

China economy’s growth rate continued to hover at the weakest in
nearly three decades in 2019, with its GDP grew an annual 6.1% during
the Year. The economic outlook in China remains highly uncertain with
both pressures on the external sector and domestic demand. Due to
the slowest economic growth pace, the Group’s revenue from the PRC
market fell by 23.6% to RMB111.6 million (2018: RMB146.1 million), and
accounted for 16% of the total revenue (2018: 23%), which is still the
third largest revenue source of the Group.

The Australasia market continued to be the second largest income
stream of the Group, accounting for 29% (2018:29%) of the Group's
total revenue. Income from the Australasia market recorded a steady
growth of 5.5% to RMB198.4 million (2018: RMB187.9 million) due to
the successful expansion to timber houses and their related parts and
structure products in the region. The construction of more
condominiums and residential houses in the country is expected to
drive the Group’s business in the coming year.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and gross profit margin by product
category
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RMB'000 RMB'000 % % % % %
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Timber houses and their AE R E ARG
related parts and structures L 567,862 496,211 144 81.8 782 0.6 1.7

Leisure household products kB GEES

Qutdoor and indoor furniture  ERIMREES 24,931 13,075 90.7 3.6 21 -0.5 16.2
Recreational products HEEEBER 32,205 14,697 119.1 4.6 23 11 43
Landscape garden products BEEEER 7,229 13,474 -46.3 11 2.1 22 169
Pet-home designs ENEEM 7,781 11,441 -320 11 18 14 10.2
72,146 52,687 36.9 104 83 1.7 "7
Trading of timber AMES 47,153 71,228 -338 6.8 1.2 6.7 -0.1
Renewable energy products A ELBER 6,891 14,560 -52.7 1.0 23 123 18.0
Total - Hy 694,052 634,686 94 100.0 100.0 1.2 10.8

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2019



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

IR E 5T 5 B o AT (1)

Revenue from timber houses and their related parts and structures
remained the largest income stream of the Group in 2019. Revenue
from such category increased by 14.4% to RMB567.9 million (2018:
RMB496.2 million), representing 81.8% of total sales for the Year
(2018: 78.2%), attributable to the sustain growth recorded in the
North America and Australasia market.

Overall revenue from the leisure household products drastically
increased by 36.9% to RMB72.1 million (2018: RMB52.7 million),
among those, the revenue from outdoor and indoor furniture and
recreational products significantly increased by 90.7% and 119.1%
respectively to RMB24.9 million and RMB33.2 million. All other leisure
household products recorded a decrease in revenue as a result of
softened market demand from European market.

Due to the escalated US-China trade disputes during the Year, the
Group recorded a decrease turnover of 33.8% from trading of timber
to RMB97.2 million (2018: RMB71.7 million).

During the Year, the Group's renewable energy business decreased
by 52.7% to approximately RMB6.9 million (2018: RMB6.0 million),
due to the sluggish economic growth and increasingly fierce
competition in the domestic renewable energy market.

Other revenue

During the Year, other revenue increased to RMB19.9 million (2018:
RMB9.5 million) mainly due to the increase in government subsidies
to RMB18.2 million (2018: RMB7.0 million).

Other net loss

The Group recorded other net loss of RMB4.7 million for the Year
(2018: other net loss RMB180.0 million). Mainly attributable to the
impairment of property, plant and equipment and lease prepayment
recognized in last year amounted to RMB162.5 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Selling and distribution expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses incurred during the Year were
RMB25.6 million (2018: RMB22.3 million) which was a result of the
increase in turnover and number of shipments during the Year.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses incurred during the Year amounted to
RMB48.3 million (2018: RMB49.2 million) as a result of effective cost
control measures taken by the Group.

Finance costs

Our finance costs decreased to approximately RMB1.8 million (2018:
RMB8.9 million) , which was primarily due to decrease in bank
borrowings during the Year.

Income tax expenses

The Group recorded an income tax expense of RMB0.2 million (2018:
RMB2.1 million) mainly due to the tax provision for the profit obtained
in the Group’s renewable energy business during the Year.

Dividend

The Board does not recommend a final dividend for the Year (2018:
Nil).

Liquidity and capital resources

The Group principally meets its working capital and other liquidity
requirements through operating cash flows and proceeds from bank
borrowings. The Group anticipates that it can sufficiently meet
funding needs for working capital and capital expenditure. As at 31
December 2019, the Group had current assets of RMB455.0 million
(31 December 2018: RMB618.4 million), of which bank deposits and
cash (including pledged deposits) were RMB83.6 million (31
December 2018: RMB56.1 million).

The Group’s cash is generally deposited with banks and denominated
mostly in RMB. As at 31 December 2019, total available banking
facilities of the Group amounted to RMB151.7 million (31 December
2018: RMB237.2 million), no banking facilities were utilised as at 31
December 2019 (31 December 2018: utilised banking facilities is
RMB91.2 million) and these were mainly denominated in RMB and
USD. All of the Group’s banking facilities were subject to the
fulfilment of certain covenants, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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As at 31 December 2019, the ratio of total borrowings to total assets
and net borrowings to total equity of the Group were 1.8% and
—7.4%, respectively (31 December 2018: 9.3% and 5.5% respectively),
while current ratio and quick ratio were 5.1:1 and 2.6:1 respectively
(31 December 2018: 3.1:1 and 1.4:1 respectively).

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2019, the Group pledged its land use rights and
buildings held for own use with net book value of RMB126.5 million
(31 December 2018: pledged its buildings held for own use, plant and
machinery, construction in progress and lease prepayments of
RMB142.6 million) and deposits with banks of RMB7.6 million (31
December 2018: RMB18.1 million) mainly for the purpose of securing
bank loans and financial derivative contracts issued by banks to the
Group.

Capital expenditure

During the Year, the Group's total expenditure in respect of property,
plant and equipment and non-current prepayments for acquisitions
of property, plant and equipment amounted to RMB10.5 million
(2018: RMB19.9 million).

CAPITAL COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements,
there were no significant capital commitments for the Group. There
were no significant contingent liabilities for the Group as at 31
December 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR ACQUISITION OF CAPITAL
ASSETS

During the Year, there were no significant investments, material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries by the Company. The Group
currently has no plan to make any substantial investments in or
acquisitions of capital assets, but will continue to seek out potential
investment or acquisition opportunities according to the Group’s
development needs.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISKS

The Group's sales are mainly denominated in USD and RMB while
our cost of sales and operating expenses are mainly denominated in
RMB. Therefore, the Group's profit margin would be affected if RMB
appreciates against USD as the Group may not be able to reflect the
appreciation in selling prices to overseas customers that were
determined in USD. In response to this, the Group manages
fluctuations in the exchange rate of RMB against USD by entering
into foreign currency forward contracts mainly denominated in USD
and RMB with banks when sales contracts were entered with
overseas customers.

With the increasing level of our overseas purchases, the Group also
manages foreign exchange risk by matching the cash inflow from our
export sales denominated in USD with the cash outflow from our
import of timber denominated in USD.

At 31 December 2019, the Group had foreign currency forward
contracts with their fair values recognised as derivative financial
instruments (assets) of RMB310,000 (2018: RMB2,736,000) and
derivative financial instruments (liabilities) of RMB699,000 (2018:
RMB2,546,000). The changes in fair value of the foreign currency
forward contracts were recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. All of the foreign currency forward contracts are to be
settled within one year.

EARE - EARBREENELR
A EAREFWBEAEENR
Rt &

RAFE  ARRLEEAKRE - ERRERH
EMBAR - REBBRFI BT EELEMER
RENWEEREE  BESRAEERESTZ
BEYEBEREIKBHRS -

B Rk
REBENHETZUXRTRARKE  MHE
ARG ERZ A FEAARBEME - ARAE
B REEAERBINEPIHER  SARBHE
TR ERMRRUETEENEES  BHUWAR
BIHE BN EXERTE - Bt AEEERE
INEPRILIHEAMMNRIRBBRRITAILIR
NETRARBHENEHRINESOUNEBAR
BHETHERRE -

BEE AR EABIMNRBIE I - AREIEBASR
TRHER H AHER S RARL A UETFHERN AR
MEORSREERINERR

RIB-AF+ZA=+—H0 FEEINEEH
BHNRFERTESRMIA(EE) ARK
310,000 7L (= Z— N\ : AR#2,736,0007T) &
TEEMTA(BE) AR 699,000 (ZF—/\
F: AR2546,00070) FER - INEEHRAE N
RNHERB IR GFABRERTER - FTAINEE
HAaHE—FREE -

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL
OFFERING, PLACING AND SUBSCRIPTION

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 6 July 2012. Net proceeds from the global offering
were approximately HK$144.3 million (after deducting the
underwriting commission and relevant expenses).

On 26 June 2014, the Company issued 200,000,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.80 per share by way of placing (the
“June 2014 Placement”). On 7 October 2014, the Company issued
165,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.93 per
share by way of placing (the “October 2014 Placement”). On 5 August
2015, the Company issued 272,600,000 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each at HK$0.55 per share by way of placing (the “August
2015 Subscription”). On 21 December 2015, the Company issued
857,945,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.20 per
share by way of Open Offer (the “December 2015 Open Offer”). On
10 February 2017, the Company issued 514,500,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.13 per share by way of subscription
(the “February 2017 Subscription”). The net proceeds from the issue
of new shares under the June 2014 Placement, October 2014
Placement, August 2015 Subscription, December 2015 Open Offer,
February 2017 Subscription after deducting related transaction costs,
were HK$155.0 million, HK$148.0 million, HK$149.7 million, HK$170.0
million, HK$66.7 million respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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As at 31 December 2019, the aforesaid proceeds were utilised
except for proceeds from December 2015 Open Offer. All the
unutilised proceeds were deposited in licensed banks in Hong Kong
and the PRC. A breakdown of the use of net proceeds is set forth in
the table below:

RIZB-AFT-A=+—H " AAELULMENR
HEESHH T -AF T+ A RRBEENM
BRERIN - MEARBDAAERBCFEREA
KR BH)EEMERTT - REFEFEZERBRE
FIBR TR

The financing
of the
acquisition of

Increasing and

automated enhancing our
production  research and General
machineryand  development working
equipment activities capital Total
WERDL RARME
EERRR EOFH —REE
RiERRE HEED Be #a
HKS' million HKS$' million HKS$' million HKS" million
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEET
From December 2015 Open Offer ®E_E—-AE+-FLRRE
Amount of net proceeds FrissaSE 119.0 17.0 340 170.0
Percentage to total net proceeds ERERELFEAN L 70.0% 10.0% 20.0% 100.0%
Utilised amount as at 31 December 2019 R=Z—AE+-A=+—BEBHLE 116.0 17.0 340 167.0
Unutilised amount as at 31 December 2019 R=Z—AF+-A=+—-BABHLE 30 - - 30
HUMAN RESOURCES ABEIR

As at 31 December 2019, we employed a total of 464 (2018: 426) full-
time employees, mainly in the PRC and Hong Kong which included
management staff, product designers, technicians, salespersons and
workers. The Group's total expenses on the remuneration of
employees (including full-time and part-time employees) for the Year
were RMB35.3 million (2018: RMB35.5 million), representing 5.1%
(2018: 5.6%) of the revenue of the Group. The Group has been
consistently increasing production process automation,
strengthening the training of staff with an emphasis on high-
technigue processing with a mission on the continuous development
and enhancing of competitiveness. The Group offered highly
competitive salary packages, as well as discretionary bonuses and
contribution to social insurance to its employees.
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I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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The Group's emolument policies are formulated based on the
performance of individual employee which will be reviewed
periodically. Apart from the provident fund scheme (operation in
accordance with the provisions of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for Hong Kong employees) or social insurance
(including retirement pension insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, injury insurance and maternity insurance
for the PRC employees), discretionary bonuses are also awarded to
employees and directors according to the assessment of individual
performance. Since the adoption of the share option scheme on 15
June 2012 and up to 31 December 2019, no options have been
granted.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subscription of new shares for capitalization of
debenture

On 22 December 2019, the Company entered into the subscription
agreements with Mr. Han Hong and Mr. Han Jin (together as
“Subscribers”), pursuant to which Subscribers have conditionally
agreed to subscribe for an aggregate of 123,533,400 new shares at
the subscription price of HK$0.12 by capitalising partial amounts of
debenture together with accrued interest thereon in the amount of
HK$14,824,000 (equivalent to RMB13,280,000) owed by the Company
to Subscribers. The subscription has been completed on 14 February
2020.

AR5 B ) R B R SR TR M B (B B MR IR M AT -
I #E Bigat o RABEEF B (RBERHIERTE
TRFBIGRPIN G RERRENT) LSRR
(BRTEEENERAEZRE  BERR X
Rl TERBRRESRR) I KEBETH
R ENRERENFERARE RESEHNH
TBIEAL - BEBEBREF SN —_T——FXA+hA
BEMARZE_T-NF+_A=F+—HLE &
SEMER D ERBRE -

BEMRER
sLESFEMERBEH A

—“NE+=ZA=+=H  ARFEEERKZ
TRESTE(FERAREADIIRERZ
Bt REABKRGRENENEEAQBIRRE
AMES 2 M5 & 58 & E FEEH 7S 14,824,000 7
EZHT& REEE0.12 8 T3R8 4 $£ 123,533,400

P - RBOMR T _FTF A +MHATK °

R RA A
e

21



22

I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Antidumping duty and countervailing duty
investigations

On 29 January 2020, the U.S. Department of Commerce announced
the initiation of new antidumping duty and countervailing duty
investigations (the “Investigations”) to determine whether wood
mouldings and millwork products from Brazil and China are being
dumped in the United States, and to determine if producers in China
are receiving unfair subsidies. Certain of the Group’s wood products
exported to the United States were under the scope of such
Investigations. The Group will closely monitor the development on
the Investigations, evaluate the impact to the Group and seek for
necessary and decisive actions to minimise the negative impact. The
Company has obtained a legal opinion from an independent solicitors
firm and such opinion is of the view that the implementation of the
antidumping duty and countervailing duty and the rates of such
duties are subjected to the final determination of the U.S.
Department of Commerce. It is not practicable to determine whether
the Group will be subjected to such duties. Further, such opinion
suggested that the Group will not be subjected to any antidumping
duty and countervailing duty for its products sold to the United
States before 31 December 2019 under the Investigation, therefore
no provision for penalties or fines has been made by the Group and
the Group has no contingent liabilities as at the balance sheet date.

Outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 in January
2020

Since the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19") in
January 2020, the prevention and control of the COVID-19 has been
going on throughout the country. Subject to the development and
spread of COVID-19 subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
further changes in economic conditions may have an impact on the
financial results of the Group, the extent of which could not be
estimated as at the date of these financial statements. The Group
will keep continuous attention on the situation of the COVID-19 and
proactively take action with an attempt to minimise its impact on the
Group's financial position and operating results.
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The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance. The Board believes that a high standard of corporate
governance will provide a framework for the Company to formulate
its business strategies and policies, and manage and lower the
associated risks through effective internal control procedures. It will
also enhance the transparency of the Company and strengthen the
accountability to its shareholders and creditors.

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (“the Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”) and certain
recommended best practices. The Company has complied with all
the applicable code provisions in the Code throughout the Year
except for the deviations disclosed under the sections headed “The
Board” and “Accountability and Audit” in this report.

THE BOARD

The Board oversees the management of the business and affairs of
the Company. The Directors are accountable for making decisions
objectively in the best interest of the shareholders as a whole.

The Board is responsible for making decisions on all major aspects of
the Company'’s affairs, including the approval and monitoring of key
policy matters, overall strategies, business plans and annual budgets,
internal control and risk management systems, material transactions,
major capital expenditure, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

The Board may delegate aspects of its management and
administration functions to the management. In particular, the day-
to-day management of the Company is delegated to the chief
executive officer of the Group, Mr. Wu Zheyan, and his management
team.

Mr. Wu Dongping is the father of Mr. Wu Zheyan. Save and except
this, there is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material relevant relationship) between Board members and
between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.
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The Company has throughout the Year met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors with at least one independent
non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting or related financial management expertise.
At all times during the Year, the independent non-executive Directors
represent at least one-third of the Board.

The Board is expected to meet regularly and at least four times a
year. The Directors have full access to the information of the Group
and independent professional advice at all times whenever deemed
necessary by the Directors.

With respect to regular meetings of the Board, the Directors will be
given written notice of the meeting at least 14 days in advance and
an agenda with supporting Board papers no less than three days
prior to the meeting. For other meetings, the Directors are given as
much notice as is reasonable and practicable in the circumstances.

Details of directors’ attendance at Board meetings, Committee
meetings and 2018 Annual General Meeting held during the year are
set out in the following table:
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Meeting attendance/number of meetings

BRLEAY/BRAN
2018 Risk
Annual Audit Remuneration  Nomination Management
General Board  Committee ~ Committee = Committee  Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
k- 243 e FiZRE FHZRE R%ZRe RREEZAL
Name of Directors EEER LT EEN - | | - | el - | L ]
Executive Directors BoEs
Ms. Xie Qingmei (Chairlady) HEERL(TE) N 22 N/ANiER N/AMiER N/AMiER N/AER
Mr. Wu Zheyan (Chief Executive Officer)  REE %4 (77k#45) 01 22 N/ANiER N/ANER N/ANER N/ANER
Non-executive Director FUITER
Mr. Wu Dongping RATEE 01 22 N/ANiER N/AMiER N/AER N/AER
Independent non-executive BikufEs
Directors
Mr. Lam Hin Chi ERBLE n 22 22 22 22 22
Prof. Jin Zhongwel SERUR 1N 22 22 22 22 22
Prof. Su Wengiang EY €2t 10 22 22 22 22 22
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Pursuant to code provision A.1.1 of the Code, the Board meetings
should be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals. The Board only held two regular meetings during the Year
to approve the interim results of 2019 and annual results of 2018
whilst other matters of the Board were dealt with by written
resolutions or ad hoc Board meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board has carried out its duties and responsibilities as set out in
code provision D.3 in the Code, including the development of policies
and practices on corporate governance, monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, reviewing the compliance with the Code, disclosure in
this report and legal and regulatory requirements of the Group.

THE CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Ms. Xie Qingmei, an executive director of the Company is the
chairlady of the Board.

Mr. Wu Zheyan is the chief executive officer of the Company. Further
details are disclosed in the section headed “The Board” of this
report.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ INDEPENDENCE

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of two executive
Directors and four non-executive Directors. Three of the non-
executive Directors are independent. Further details of the
composition of the Board are disclosed in the section headed “The
Board” of this report.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors are expected to participate in the
activities of the Board, particularly in the establishment of a selection
process to ensure a mix of competent directors and officers;
adoption of a system of internal checks and balances; scrutiny of the
Company's performance in achieving agreed corporate goals and
objectives; and ensuring that the exercise of Board authority is within
the powers conferred to the Board under its articles of association
(the "Articles”) and applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors are highly skilled
professionals with a broad range of expertise and experience in the
fields of accounting, finance and business. Their skills, expertise and
number in the Board ensure that strong independent views and
judgement are brought in the Board's deliberations and that such
views and judgement carry weight in the Board’s decision-making
process. Their presence and participation also enable the Board to
maintain high standards of compliance in financial and other
mandatory reporting requirements, and provide adequate checks
and balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the
Company and the Company.

Each independent non-executive Director gives the Company an
annual confirmation of his independence. The Company considers
such Directors to be independent under the guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Each Director, upon reasonable request, is given access to
independent professional advice in circumstances he may deem
appropriate and necessary for the discharge of his duties to the
Company, at the expense of the Company.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND ROTATION
OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 15
June 2018, which may be terminated by not less than three months'
notice in writing served by either party on the other. Each of the non-
executive Directors and the independent non-executive Directors
have been appointed for a term of three years commencing from 15
June 2018. None of the Directors has entered into a service contract
with any member of the Group (excluding contracts expiring or
determinable by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation)).

Pursuant to the Articles, at each annual general meeting one-third of
the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years. A retiring
Director shall be eligible for re-election.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy for the Nomination
Committee to consider and make recommendations to Shareholders
for election as Directors at general meetings or appoint as Directors
to fill casual vacancies.

Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate:

M

reputation for integrity;

accomplishment and experience in the business in which the
Group is engaged in;

commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;

diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to race,
gender, age (18 years or above), educational background,
professional experience, skills and length of service;

qualifications which include professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company's
business and corporate strategy;

the number of existing directorships and other commitments
that may demand the attention of the candidate;

requirement for the Board to have Independent Non-executive
Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidates would be considered independent with reference
to the independence guidelines set out in Rules 3.13 of the
Listing Rules;

Board Diversity Policy of the Company and any measurable
objectives adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving
diversity on the Board; and

such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.

REBBER
AAREAREZARRMRARE - UEER
HRRENREA® LERE BN T TABGE
EROEE -

BIRRAE
RHERRIREABL BT - 7
%TWI%W%%%-

B

M

M w

w

2 AEBEPTHE R AR LR

Q) TR AR ] K AR B B R

@) BHEHNZTE
B FEBHEA L) HEER
5 REERRISER

BREETRNER - 1T
5x

6) BE BREERRFERKEFEREES
MERER - BBE - ABLER

) REEFABUARHEMAIEREE
T ERIE

7 EFERBELTRIBEZEBEILIFNT
BEEMHRE  ARREAZR ETWRANE
BABMRFAE A 18 5| E R AR R

‘I]]]I]

® FARNEFE
EAEREEE
THESE K

KEZTICERRARES
X B % Tt L R 4 R AE ]

© EMERRARREBHEBEE -

PREYERBERAR
—E-NEFFR

27



28

o

Director Nomination Procedure

Subject to the provisions in the Articles of Association of the
Company and the Listing Rules, if the Board recognizes the need for
an additional Director or a member of senior management, the
following procedure will be followed:

(M

The Nomination Committee and/or Board will identify potential
candidates based on the criteria as set out in the selection
criteria, possibly with assistance from external agencies and/or
aavisors,

The Nomination Committee and/or the Company Secretary of
the Company will then provide the Board with the biographical
details and details of the relationship between the candidate
and the Company and/or Directors, directorships held, skills
and experience, other positions which involve significant time
commitment and any other particulars required by the Listing
Rules, the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and other
regulatory requirements for any candidate for appointment to
the Board;

The Nomination Committee would then make recommendation
to the Board on the proposed candidate(s) and the terms and
conditions of the appointment;

The Nomination Committee should ensure that the proposed
candidate(s) will enhance the diversity of the Board, being
particularly mindful of gender balance,

In the case of the appointment of an Independent Non-
executive Director, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should obtain all information in relation to the proposed
Director to allow the Board to adequately assess the
independence of the Director in accordance with the factors
set out in Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to any
amendments as may be made by the Stock Exchange from
time to time; and

The Board will then deliberate and decide on the appointment
based upon the recommendation of the Nomination
committee.
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According to the Articles and in the opinion of the Board, Mr. Wu
Zheyan, Mr. Wu Dongping and Prof. Su Wen Qiang shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Expect for Mr. Wu Dongping,
who will not offer himself for re-election, all of the above retiring
Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
same meeting.

Where vacancies arise at the Board, candidates will be proposed and
put forward to the Board by the Nomination Committee (as defined
below) as set out below under the section headed “Nomination
Committee” of this report.

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Remuneration for executive Directors and senior management is
determined in accordance with performance, professional
experiences and the prevailing market practices. The remuneration
of non-executive Directors is subject to regular assessment by the
Remuneration Committee (as defined below).

TRAINING, INDUCTION AND CONTINUING
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment so as
to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/
her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements.

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The
Company should be responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and
duties of the Directors.

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the relevant
code provision. The Company had received from each of the
Directors the record of training the Directors received.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. After making
specific enquiry to all the Directors, the Company confirms that all
the Directors have complied with the standards as stipulated in the
Model Code throughout the Year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up four Board committees, namely, the audit
committee, the remuneration committee, the nomination committee
and the risk management committee (collectively the “Board
Committees”), for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs.

The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Hin Chi, Prof. Jin Zhongwei and Prof. Su
Wengiang. Mr. Lam Hin Chi is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee shall assist the
Board in fulfilling its corporate governance and overseeing
responsibilities in relation to financial reporting, risk management
and internal control systems and internal and external audit
functions. The Audit Committee is further authorised by the Board to
investigate any activity within its terms of reference, and is tasked
with recommending to the Board appropriate actions emanating
from such investigations. The Audit Committee has unrestricted
access to personnel, records, internal and external auditors, risk
assessment and assurance and senior management, as may be
appropriate in the discharge of its functions.

EEETESRS

AT E SR L TR BN 82 10 BT BT A

EERTESRSNEETH ([R5 AX
AREERTEER BT AT - GA2E

EEHARSHE  AATER  2REINA

0 [ — 3% <P < B BT M 1 o

EE2ZEE

EFECRUNEEEEZREE  HHRBEE
Bg FHMEZEe REZESNEARERZE
T (5H [EFRZEg]) UEBARRFESRS

ExeZagREH %Eﬁ?ﬁu@"ﬁﬂ%&f&—l
REEBATERBLEXER BAHAEALR
A e

Bem2BBUIFNTESHENK  BRE
BHEL  SERYBEREFERHE - ERBE
ERBTRES®ER -

$E<TF,H\HW2£§' BT REERBHEEERET
CREAMREBEAEMHHRE BREERA
*Bﬁ*? BIEA R AB RN LB - EF K
—SERENRECRARERERETME
B YEENAWREAEESRESETH -
FEAZERERETHBERATNEEBR T IR
REIEEE T - o8k - M RIMEZEED - &
BRHERRERSREEAS -

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019



Corporate Governance Report (continued)

;LIL/r

PEEIRMmE (&)

During the Year, the Audit Committee discharged its responsibilities

by:

making recommendations to the Board on the reappointment
of the external auditor and approval of the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor;

monitoring the external auditor’s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standard, and discussing with the external auditor
the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations;

implementing the Company’s policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services,

reviewing, and monitoring the integrity of, the financial
statements of the Company and the Company’s interim report
to ensure that the information presents a true and balanced
assessment of the Company’s financial position;

reviewing the Company’s financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems to ensure that management has
discharged its duty to have effective systems,

reviewing the Company's financial and accounting policies and
practices;

reviewing the external auditor's management letter, material
queries raised by the external auditor to the management, if
any, in respect of the accounting records, financial accounts or
systems of control and the management'’s response to such
queries; and

reporting to the Board on the matters set out in the Code on
the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is authorised by the Board to obtain external
legal or other independent professional advice and to secure the
attendance of outsiders with relevant experience and expertise if it
considers necessary in the performance of its functions. The Audit
Ccommittee is provided with sufficient resources by the Company to
discharge its duties. The Audit Committee’s specific terms of
reference are available on request to any shareholder of the
Company and are posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website, www.merrygardenholdings.com.
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During the Year, the Audit Committee together with management
has reviewed the Code, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed the Group's internal control
and financial reporting matters, including a review of the annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the interim results
for the six months ended 30 June 2019, with recommendation to the
Board for approval. The Audit Committee has also recommended to
the Board that, subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, BDO Limited be re-appointed as the external
auditors of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises all independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Hin Chi, Prof. Jin Zhongwei and
Prof. Su Wengiang. Prof. Jin Zzhongwei is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The major duties of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

(@ to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b)  to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

(c)  to make recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

(d) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

(e)  to review and approve management’s remuneration proposals
by reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;
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(fy  to review and approve compensation payable to the executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;,

(8 toreview and approve compensation arrangements relating to

dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate; and

(h)  to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee’s specific terms of reference are
available on request to any shareholder of the Company and are
posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website,
www.merrygardenholdings.com.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the
remuneration policy and structure of the executive Directors and
senior management of the Company, and offered advice on the
same to the Board. The Remuneration Committee also resolved to
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive directors and senior management.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises all independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Hin Chi, Prof. Jin Zhongwei and
Prof. Su Wengiang. Prof. Jin Zhongwei is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The major duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(@ to review the structure, size and composition of the Board
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

(b)  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;
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(c) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

(d)  to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive
officer of the Group.

Where vacancy on the Board exists, the Nomination Committee will
carry out a selection process by making reference to the skills,
experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity and time
commitments of the proposed candidates, the Company’s needs
and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations, and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of
candidates for directorship.

The Nomination Committee’s specific terms of reference are
available on request to any shareholder of the Company and are
posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website,
www.merrygardenholdings.com.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board, conducted performance evaluations to
assess whether the non-executive Directors have spent enough time
in fulfilling their duties, assessed the independence of independent
non-executive Directors, and had been keeping under review the
leadership needs of the organisation, both executive and non-
executive, with a view to ensuring the continued ability of the
organisation to compete effectively in the marketplace.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) which
sets out the approach to achieve a sustainable and balanced
development of the Company and to enhance the quality of
performance of the Company. The Policy aims at achieving diversity
on the Board.

Measurable Objectives and Selection

In designing the Board’'s composition, a number of perspectives
which include race, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, industry experience, technical and professional
experience, knowledge, skills, length of service, personal integrity
and time commitments of the proposed candidates will be taken into
consideration. The Company will also take into account factors
relating to its own business model and specific needs from time to
time. The ultimate decision is based on merit and contribution that
the candidates will bring to the Board. Candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

The Board currently consists of one female member. The Board will
take opportunity to increase the proportion of female members over
time when selecting and making recommendation on suitable
candidates for Board appointments. The Board would ensure that
appropriate balance of gender diversity is achieved with reference to
stakeholders’ expectation and international and local recommended
best practices, with the ultimate goal of bringing the Board to gender
parity. The Board also aspires to having an appropriate proportion of
Directors who have direct experience in the Group’s core markets,
with different ethnic backgrounds, and reflecting the Group's
strategy.

Implementation and Monitoring

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
board diversity policy and report to the Board annually.
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Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee comprises all independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Hin Chi, Prof. Jin Zhongwei and
Prof. Su Wengiang. Mr. Lam Hin Chi is the chairman of the Risk
Management Committee.

The major duties of the Risk Management Committee are as follows:

(@)

to review the Group risk, capital and liquidity management
framework, the Group's risk appetite, its risk policies and
standards, and supporting risk limits, including the parameters
used and the methodology adopted, and the processes used
for identifying and assessing risks;

to review material risk exposures of the Group, including
market, credit, insurance, operational, liquidity, and economic
and regulatory capital risks against the Group's risk
measurement methodologies and management actions to
monitor and control such exposures;

to review the standard for accurate and timely monitoring of
large exposures and certain risk types of critical importance,
and the Group's capability to identify and manage new risk
types;

to receive reports and recommendations from management
on the Group’s attitude to and tolerance of risk, including
financial and non-financial risks;

to oversee the Group's processes and policies for determining
risk tolerance and review management’s measurement and
effectiveness of, and compliance with, approved Group risk
tolerance levels and policies and standards, and the resultant
action in respect of policy breaches;

to review the risks inherent in strategic transactions and
business plans and provide the Board with input on the risk/
reward trade offs implicit within those plans; and

to review the Group's capability to identify and manage new
risk types, and the Group’s stress tests to ensure they are
rigorous and the Group responds adequately to the results.
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The Risk Management Committee’s specific terms of reference are
available on request to any shareholder of the Company and are
posted on the Stock Exchange's website and the Company’s website,
www.merrygardenholdings.com.

During the Year, the Risk Management Committee has evaluated and
assessed the effectiveness and adequacy of the Terms of Reference
of the Risk Management Committee.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Company to ensure that these
financial statements give a true and fair presentation in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting Standards.

The statement by the auditor about their reporting responsibilities is
set out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 61 to 69.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Pursuant to Code provision C.1.2, the Management should provide
all members of the board with monthly updates giving a balanced
and understandable assessment of the issuer’s performance,
position and prospects in sufficient detail to enable the board as a
whole and each director to discharge their duties under Rule 3.08
and Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has deviated from C.1.2 in that while the management
has updated most of the Directors on a monthly basis about the
business operation and performance of the Company, not all the
Directors received such updates as the monthly updates were
conducted on-site at the Group’s factory in China. Members of the
Board who did not attend such on-site meetings did not receive the
updates. However, the management would provide detailed updates
to all the Directors on a half-yearly and yearly basis. In the event
there are any significant updates to be provided, the management
will update all the Directors as early as practicable for discussion and
resolution. The Company also has in place a system for every
Director to make enquiries with the senior management about the
business operation of the Group and to give suggestions or feedback
in the event such Director is not able attend the monthly on-site
updates session.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the independent
auditor’s independence, objectivity and effectiveness of the audit
process. It receives each year letter from the independent auditor
confirming their independence and objectivity and holds meetings
with representatives of the independent auditor to consider the
scope of its audit, approve its fees, and the scope and
appropriateness of non-audit services, if any, to be provided by it.
The Audit Committee also makes recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and retention of the independent auditor.

The remuneration paid or payable to the independent auditor of the
Company for audit services for the Year were approximately
HKD1,134,000.

The remuneration paid or payable to the independent auditor of the
Company for non-audit services for the Year were nil.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Since 6 July 2018, the Company has engaged Modern Assurance And
Business Services Limited, an external service provider, and Ms. Lee
Kin Yee has been appointed as the Company’s company secretary.
Its primary contact person at the Company is Mr. Wu Zheyan, an
executive director of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There are no significant changes in the Articles and the
memorandum of association of the Company during the Year.

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles, members holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the Company,
to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

During the Year, the Board complied with the Code provisions on risk
management and internal control as set out in the Code. The Board
has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group's
strategic objectives, and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems for the Group. The
systems are designed to manage the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The management of the Company has established a set of
comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in areas of
operational, financial and risk controls for safeguarding assets
against unauthorized use or disposition; for maintaining proper
accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial
information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against the
likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

The Board has overseen the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. A year end review of
the effectiveness of the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ risk
management and internal control systems has been conducted
annually and the systems are considered to be effective and
adequate. The Company also has an internal audit function to carry
out the analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the systems, and has procedures in place to keep
information confidential and manage actual or potential conflicts of
interest. Stringent internal structures have been designed to prevent
the misuse of inside information and avoid conflicts of interest.
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The Company has established and maintained procedures and
internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside
information. The Company has adopted a code of conduct for
dealing in the securities of the Company by the Directors in
accordance with Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Other employees
of the Group who are likely to be in possession of inside information
of the Company are also subject to dealing restrictions. Any inside
information and any information which may potentially constitute
inside information is promptly identified, assessed and escalated to
the Board and for the Board to decide on the need for disclosure.
Inside information and other information which is required to be
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules will be announced on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company in due
course.

SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD AND
PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS' MEETINGS

Shareholders or investors can contact the Company in the following
ways to make enquiry or to provide suggestions:

Tel: (852) 3904 1867
Postal Address: Office No. 5, 15/F, 6 Wilmer street,
Sai Ying Pun, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Board of Directors)

To put forward proposals at a general meeting, the shareholders
should submit a written notice of those proposals with detailed
contact information to the Company’s principal place of business
stated above.
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group'’s business and its outlook are set out in
the sections of Chairlady’s Statement and Management Discussion
and Analysis. Certain financial key performance indicators are
provided in the section of Financial Summary. The Group has no
material important event affecting the Company that have occurred
since the end of the Year.

The Group complies with the requirements under the Companies
Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ") for the disclosure of information and corporate
governance. The Group also complies with the requirements of
Employment Ordinance and ordinances relating to occupational
safety for the interest of employees of the Group.

The Group respects the environment and is committed to minimizing
its carbon footprint as a socially responsible enterprise. Carbon
footprint is defined as the total amount of direct and indirect
emissions of Green House Gases (GHGS) expressed in terms of the
equivalent amount of Carbon Dioxide of (CO,) emission. Non-
hazardous wastes produced from the Group mainly consist of used
paper such as office papers and marketing materials. To minimize
the impact on carbon footprint and the environment, the Group
implements the following practices to use paper efficiently:

o Duplex printing is set as the default mode for most network
printers,

o Employees are reminded to practice photocopying wisely;
o Employees are encouraged to use both sides of paper;
o Paper is separated from other waste for easier recycling; and

o Boxes and trays are placed beside photocopiers as containers
to collect single-sided paper for reuse purpose.
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Electricity consumption is identified as having an adverse impact on
the environment and natural resources. A typical commercial
building uses more energy for lighting than for other electric
equipment. The Group is determined to reduce energy consumption
and implement conservation practices to reduce the effect of carbon
footprint. Air conditioning and light zone arrangements reduce
unnecessary electricity usage; employees enforce good practices in
maintenance of lighting and electric equipment to ensure they are
kept in good and proper condition to maximize efficiency.

Key Risk Factors

The following lists out the key risks and uncertainties facing the
Group.

Impact of Local and International Regulations

The business operation of the Group is also subject to government
policy, relevant regulations and guidelines established by the
regulatory authorities. Failure to comply with the rules and
requirements may lead to penalties, amendments or suspension of
the business operation by the authorities. The Group closely
monitors changes in government policies, regulations and markets
as well as conducting studies to assess the impact of such changes.
As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has
complied with all related laws and regulations in all material aspects
which may have significant impact on the Group during the Year.

Third-Party Risks

The Group has been relying on third-party service providers in parts
of business to improve performance and efficiency of the Group.
While gaining the benefits from external service providers, the
management realizes that such operational dependency may pose a
threat of vulnerability to unexpected poor or lapses in service
including reputation damage, business disruption and monetary
losses. To address such uncertainties, the Group engages only
reputed third-party providers and closely monitors their
performance.
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Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group recognizes the accomplishment of the employees by
providing comprehensive benefit packages career development
opportunities and internal training appropriate to individual needs.
The Group provides a healthy and safe workplace for all employees.
No strikes and cases of fatality due to workplace accidents occurred
during the Year.

The Group encompasses working relationships with suppliers to
meet our customers’ needs in an effective and efficient manner. The
departments work closely to make sure the tendering and
procurement process is conducted in an open, fair and just manner.
The Group's requirements and standards are also well-
communicated to suppliers before the commencement of a project.

The Group values the views and opinions of all customers through
various means and channels, including usage of market research to
understand customer trends and needs and regular analyze on
customer feedback. The Group also conducts comprehensive tests
and checks to ensure that only quality products and services are
offered to the customers.

RESULTS & DIVIDENDS

Results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 70. Other movements in reserves
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 74.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the Year (2018: Nil).

HgR FRMHERNEERMR
AEEARERUEIAETEN  FLURKE
RAEREERGER NS UXBES
WER - AREAFERBES - BRENLS
B THEHS « NAFE - MU R T AR
EHNTE B ER -

AEBEEHREEELAERE AR RERH
REMEPHMFR - EHMIETAE - #BRA
BRREBREAH A FRALE - AEERHARE
HEERARERBEHALKENHRE RRE -

AEEERMAETFPHNBHLER  WEBTH
TERRE(BRERMSNRE) THREFPBE M
FE YEHOWMEFPRE - ARERETEE
AR RS UERATFREEEER LR -

FERRE
A B A O EERRE 70 H A B o
H bR B AAE 74 EE A REBBE -

EEgTHARBAFENRARE (ZF-N
FoE)

AR AIR AT
B NETH

43



44

Directors’ Report (Continued)
EEEWE @

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute
dividends to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
to allow Shareholders to share the Company'’s profits and for the
Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject to
the absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final
dividend will be subject to the approval of the Shareholders. In
proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into
account, inter alia, the Group’s financial results, the general financial
condition of the Group, the Group’s current and future operations,
the level of the Group's debts to equity ratio, return on equity and
the relevant financial covenants, liquidity position and capital
requirement of the Group, surplus received from the Company’s
subsidiaries and any other factors that the Board deem appropriate.
The Company’s ability to pay dividends is also subject to the
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and all relevant applicable
laws, rules and regulations in the Cayman Islands, Hong Kong and
the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company. The
Company does not have any pre-determined distribution ratio. The
Group's dividend distribution record in the past may not be used as
a reference or basis to determine the amount of dividends that may
be declared or paid by the Company in the future.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall
in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time
to time.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 7 of this
annual report.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in note 28(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s aggregate amounts of
reserves available for distribution were approximately
RMB643,882,000 (2018: RMB665,168,000), of which nil (2018: Nil) has
been proposed as a final dividend for the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
applicable laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company was
incorporated.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment are set out in note 11
to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK LOANS AND DEBENTURES

Details of the Group's bank loans and debentures are set out in
notes 24 and 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the Group's five largest customers accounted for
approximately 45.8% (2018: 38.9%) of the Group’s total revenue and
the Group’s largest customer for the year accounted for
approximately 17.6% (2018: 10.4%) of the Group's total revenue. The
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 51.0%
(2018: 58.8%) of the Group's total purchases, while the largest
supplier for the year accounted for approximately 13.2% (2018:
16.9%) of the Group's total purchases.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or their
respective close associates or any of the shareholders of the
Company who owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital has any interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers
or suppliers.
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EMPLOYEES =]
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 464 (2018: 426) employees WR-—Z—NE+-A=+—H  ~KEFELHF464
in total. The table below shows a breakdown of the Group’'s RZEE(ZZT—/\F :4268) - TR AIREEZ
employees by their responsibilities: SHAREE R SR
2019

—E—-hE
Management, Finance & Administration EIE -~ B RATI 41
Sales & Marketing By R 5 16
Design, Research & Development AR A AR 50
Production HE 333
Quality Control ShE EE4E 24
Total @5t 464

Total staff costs for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB35,264,000 (2018: RMB35,476,000) and the details are set out in
note 6(b) to the consolidated financial statements. Remuneration for
employees is based upon their qualification, experience, job nature,
performance and market condition.

The Group has established various welfare plans including the provision
of pension funds, medical insurance, unemployment insurance and
other relevant insurance for employees who are employed by the
Group pursuant to the rules and regulations of the PRC and the existing
policy requirements of the local government. The Group also maintains
the employee short-term health insurance and unforeseen injury
insurance. In addition, the Group provides staff quarters to its
employees.

Directors and qualified employees of the Company may be granted
share options to subscribe for shares in the Company in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme (as defined
below).

EA$¢J§W@§\IE}ZN@%AE‘%3S 264, 0007%
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DIRECTORS
Throughout the Year, the composition of the Board was as follows:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Xie Qingmei
Mr. Wu Zheyan

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Wu Dongping

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lam Hin Chi
Prof. Jin Zhongwei
Prof. Su Wengiang

A description of the Directors is set out in the section headed “Board of

Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report.

Indemnity of Directors

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers liability
insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the

Directors is currently in force and was in force throughout the year.

BE
RAFER  EETORELT :

WTES -
FEELL
REBEXE

FEHITES
RETHE

BLIFITES -
EEBLE
SBAYE
BB

EFNHBEN N TR EFE NN EERE] -

EEWE
AAREAEERBERHELENEERBEET
R I AT 5B 2 O P IO B AT AE R
RERER -

PREYIERERA S
—E-hEEHR 47



48

Directors’ Report (Continued)
EEEWE @

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of part XV of the SFO) which would
have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to divisions 7 and 8 of part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he is taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which will be required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein or
which will be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules, will be as follows:

Interest in shares

EERERTHRAERRKR®D - HE
R RESFHEERKXE

RIZB-NF+T-_A=+—H0 BEFHALRAH
BIOTBRABEARAMEBEEE(ERERES
KB RGIE XV E) M - MR D k&S T
BERBEEZRAEGROIIEXVEET RESDH
AHEARE RO AR (BIERE
EH LB RN EREXEBRE(EXNE A%
BHERLORR) - SIREE S RS R 352
AR ZIGAT N E T M SRR AR BIF 8210
P EM BT AESETESFXZNIRESTAIA
HMEANRA RS ORBIT

L

=\ 2

N
|

gh)

H

Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares interest (%)
SRR EL

EEpa S EaLE K& H B (%)
Mr. Wu Zheyan Interest in controlled corporation/ 89,929,482 12.13%
RBELE Long position (Note)

EEtlEEN R TE (M)

Beneficial owner/Long position 2,200,588 0.30%

BRBEAAN R
Ms. Xie Qingmei Beneficial owner/Long position 1,926,676 0.26%
AEFEL L EnBAN R

Note: Mr. Wu Zheyan is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Green Seas
Capital Limited, his wholly-owned company.

Mt REERERR /R E S E YA KR 7 Green Seas
Capital Limited #578 8RR {5 P #E B #E 4= o
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company had interests or in short positions in the shares,
underlying shares of equity derivatives or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation defined under the SFO
which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to divisions 7 and 8 of part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which he is taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which will be required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred to therein or which will be required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as at 31 December 2019.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director or the Controlling Shareholders (as defined below) of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during or at the end of the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Directors or their respective close associates has any
competing interests which need to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
8.10 of the Listing Rules.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, the following persons (other than a director
or chief executive of the Company), who had interests or short
positions in the shares or the underlying shares of the Company

FERRNREAQXTRG RAEBERSG
E’J*Efﬁ&uua

Z-NF+-A=+t—8 THALLIH
EERARABBITRAR) RARQ AN KA
AR P A RIEE S M EIEDIEXVERE 2 R

which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Division 2~ #39EE B THEMERSARE - KIBES
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be required, pursuantto % X BJ & ({5 5 336 1678 50 A\ 5% (6 Pt & 52 M 9
Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to AR -
therein, were as follows:
Interest in shares A0 ez
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
Name Capacity/Nature of interest shares interest (%)
R
&8 e Sip EaKE B8 H B9 (%)
Green Seas Capital Limited Beneficial owner/Long position (Note 1) 89,929,482 12.13%
EnlB A TR (1)
Hong Kong Run De Beneficial owner/Long position (Note 2) 86,000,000 11.60%
Holdings Limited EmmEAN5E (HE2)
BEEBEERBRAR
REREABEIBRAT Interest in controlled corporation/ 86,000,000 11.60%
Long position (Note 2)
ZESEENER TR (I E2)
Mr. Lin Jian Interest in controlled corporation/ 86,000,000 11.60%
Long position (Note 2)
MEESEAE SESEENER TR (HiE2)
Hong Kong Guoyuan Group Beneficial owner/Long position (Note 3) 140,350,000 18.59%

Capital Holdings Limited
%f/%ln Elealz s
BRA

ERBBEAN TR (W23
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EFEWHE(

Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding

Name Capacity/Nature of interest shares interest (%)

SRR

%18 e 53 EREE ;208 4= B (%)

EIBFI B TR MBI Interest in controlled corporation/ 140,350,000 18.59%
BRAA Long position (Note 3)

ZESEENER 1T (B E3)

Mr. Wang Xin Interest in controlled corporation/ 140,350,000 18.59%
Long position (Note 3)

ERTSEAE SEtlEENER e (I 3)

Mr. Han Jin Beneficial owner/Long position 61,883,860 8.35%

BoiE EnBEEAN TR

Ms. Han Hong Beneficial owner/Long position 64,152,860 8.66%

BRIt ERBEEAN TR

Note: Hiat -

1. The entire issued share capital of Green Seas Capital Limited is legally and 1. Green Seas Capital Limited ) & # B TR AR RE =
beneficially owned by Mr. Wu Zheyan, who is deemed to be interested in the SERERERER  REEFLEHIRBM Green Seas
Shares held by Green Seas Capital Limited. Capital Limited #5 BB ) A #E 5w

2. The entire issued share capital of Hong Kong Run De Holdings Limited is legally 2. BEREBGERARARNEZMBERITRAEBEEAEA
and beneficially owned by #& J X & A i1k T AR A & The 98% issued M THRATAERERES  REAEAMETAE
share capital of & 2 K & A 1t T A R A al is legally and beneficially IR 2 A 98% B B AT I A AR St A A E R E IR
owned by Mr. Lin Jian, who is deemed to be interested in the shares held by M AW AN EBBEERERARFENRGF
Hong Kong Run De Holdings Limited. HEER -

3. The entire issued share capital of Hong Kong Guoyuan Group Capital Holdings 3. BEAETEESRIERERARN D HEHITRAH L
Limited is legally and beneficially owned by _t /& ¥ 2) T ¥ R 1= IR AR A BABIERBERERATSERERES - LEH
A]. The 98% issued share capital of _E /8 7 B) T 3 R EBIER AR A A is BT LR R A F#98% B BT AR A BT #T 4 4E
legally and beneficially owned by Mr. Wang Xin, who is deemed to be interested BEREBREE  IHEERRAREEETEE SR
in the shares held by Hong Kong Guoyuan Group Capital Holdings Limited. TR R R RIFA RN R A ER -

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any person, B EX#EEEIN RZE-IF+-A=+—

other than the Directors whose interests are set out in the section
"Directors’ and chief executive's interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures” above, who had an
interest or short positions in the shares or underlying shares that
were required to be disclosed under the provisions of Division 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or recorded pursuant to Section 336 of Part
XV of the SFO as of 31 December 2019.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a resolution passed by all the shareholders on 15 June
2012, the Company has conditionally adopted the share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of recognising
and acknowledging the contributions the eligible participants had or
may have made to the Group. The Board may, at its discretion, grant
options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to the Directors
(including executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors), the directors of the
Company's subsidiaries and employees of the Group and any other
persons (including consultants or advisers) whom the Board
considers, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or will
contribute to the Group. The Directors were authorised to grant
options to subscribe for shares of the Company and to allot, issue
and deal with the ordinary shares pursuant to the exercise of options
granted under the Share Option Scheme and to take all such steps
as may be necessary and/or desirable to implement and give effect
to the Share Option Scheme. The maximum number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and under any other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares in
issue immediately following completion of the Global Offering (as
defined in the Company’s prospectus dated 25 June 2012), being
100,000,000 shares, excluding any shares that may be issued under
the options which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme (or any other share option schemes of the
Company), unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting and/or such other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time.
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Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting, the number of shares that may be granted to an
eligible participant under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including both exercised and
outstanding options) shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue of
the Company within any 12-month period. Any grant of options to a
Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company or any of their respective associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) is required to be approved by our
independent non-executive Directors. Unless otherwise approved by
the shareholders of the Company in general meeting and/or such
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules, the number
of shares that may be granted to a substantial shareholder or any
independent non-executive Director or their respective associates
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
shall not exceed 0.1% of the shares in issue, having an aggregate
value in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period.

There is no minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised, and the period during which an option may be
exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion,
however, no options shall be exercised 10 years after they have
been granted. The subscription price of a share in respect of a
particular option shall be not less than the highest of (a) the official
closing price of the shares on the daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange; (b) the average official closing price of the shares on the
daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal
value of a share. The Share Option Scheme shall take effect from the
date it is adopted and shall remain effective within a period of 10
years from that date.

From the date that the Share Option Scheme became effective and
unconditional and up to the date of this annual report, no share
options were granted under the Share Option Scheme.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of ordinary
shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
74,120,040, representing 10% of the issued shares of the Company.
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Save as the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the Year was
the Company, its subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or and other body corporate.

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed in this report, no
equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares, or that require the Company to enter into any
agreement that will or may result in the Company issuing shares,
here entered into by the Company during the Year or subsisted at
the end of the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchase, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules requires that at least 25% of an
issuer’s total issued share capital must at all times be held by the
public. Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company
has maintained sufficiency of public float at all times during the Year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, there is no transaction of the Group constituted
non-exempt continuing connected transaction for the Company
under the Listing Rules (2018: Nil).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in the
normal course of business are provided under note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements, and none of which constitutes a
non-exempt connected transaction as defined under the Listing
Rules.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The Company entered into a deed of non-competition (the “Deed of
Non-Competition”) with Mr. Wu Zheyan and Green Seas Capital
Limited (collectively referred to as the “Controlling Shareholders”) on
15 June 2012 so as to better safeguard the Group from any potential
competition and to formalise the principles for the management of
potential conflicts between them and to enhance our corporate
governance in connection with the listing of the Company’s shares
on the Stock Exchange.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed compliance
by the Controlling Shareholders and confirm that based on
confirmations and information provided by each of the Controlling
Shareholders, they were in compliance with the Deed of Non-
Competition during the Year.

The independent non-executive Directors were not required to
review any matter in relation to compliance and enforcement of the
Deed of Non-Competition during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No management contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of any business of
the Group were entered into or existed during the Year.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group supported a wide variety of charitable
activities in Hong Kong and the PRC. Donations of approximately
RMB253,000 (2018: RMB192,000) were made by the Group to various
charitable organisations.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware that any holders of securities of the
Company are entitled to any tax relief or exemption by reason of
their holding of such securities.

* For identification purpose only
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AUDITOR

KPMG resigned as auditors of the Company on 16 November 2016
and BDO Limited has been appointed as the auditors of the Company
on 8 December 2016.

BDO Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the reappointment of BDO Limited
as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Xie Qingmei
Chairlady

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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Board of Directors and Senior Management

s=ZTNaNERE

Biographies of each member of the board of directors and senior
management team of the Company during the Year and/or as at the
date of this report are set out below:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wu Zheyan (Mr. Wu), aged 40, is an executive Director and chief
executive officer of the Company. Mr. Wu was appointed as a
Director on 17 October 2011. He joined Fujian Zhangping Kimura
Forestry Products Co. Ltd (“Zhangping Kimura”) as a workshop
director since 1997 and obtained knowledge and experiences in the
timber products industry including the production process, research
and development works and the invention process of new timber
products. Mr. Wu became the general manager in May 2000 and the
director and legal representative of Zhangping Kimura in January
2006.

Mr. Wu graduated from Sichuan University in June 2009 with a
Diploma in business administration (Distance education). Mr. Wu is
the visiting professor of Central South University of Forestry and
Technology and Fujian Agriculture and Forestry University. Mr. Wu is
a son of Mr. Wu Dongping.

Xie Qingmei (Ms. Xie), aged 52, was appointed as an executive
Director on 15 June 2012 and as the Chairlady on 23 May 2016. Ms.
Xie is primarily responsible for procurement matters in respect of the
Group. She has over 15 years of experience in corporate
management and procurement. Ms. Xie joined the Group in 1999,
and she has been a deputy general manager of Zhangping Kimura
since 2001 and a director of Zhangping Kimura since 2006. Ms. Xie
was in charge of the sales department of Zhangping Kimura as well
as supervising procurement from June 1999 to December 2000, and
has been running the procurement department of Zhangping Kimura
since 2003.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Wu Dongping, aged 64, is a non-executive Director of the
Company since 15 June 2012 and is also the founder of our Group.
Mr. Wu Dongping was the chief engineer of Zhangping Kimura from
February 2006 to November 2010. Before the founding of the Group,
Mr. Wu Dongping was the chairman and the general manager of
Zhangping Kimura from December 1995 to January 2006 and the
director of Zhangping Textile Machinery Factory in Fujian ({&i£& &
MR EAR) from December 1992 to November 1995, respectively.
Mr. Wu Dongping has been a member of the Technical Committee of
Structural Use of Wood under the National Committee of
Standardisation Technology of Timber (& BIARMIZ#E(L M E B & 45
BAARVMOHEMZEE). He was elected as a member of The 4th
Preservation Committee of Wood Industry Institute, Chinese Society
of Wood Industry (R EIME @ ARM T 52 AMIAFEAIREM TS E N
fEZ B) in April 2007 and was elected to the position of vice
president of the China Wood Preservation Industry Association (4
RIRET #%E) in October 2011. Mr. Wu Dongping has over 20
years of experience in the fields of wood processing, preservation
and timber structures. Mr. Wu Dongping has participated in, on
behalf of our Group, the drafting of two PRC national and forestry
industry standards, and has been involved in the reviewing of PRC
national and forestry industry standards.

Mr. Wu Dongping is the father of Mr. Wu.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Lam Hin Chi (Mr. Lam), aged 56, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since 15 June
2012. Mr. Lam is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, and The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales and associates member of The Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants, and The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, respectively. Mr. Lam graduated
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Professional
Diploma in Management Accountancy and a Bachelor of Arts degree
(Honours) in Accountancy. Mr. Lam has over 30 years of experience
in finance, audit and accounting. Mr. Lam was a senior personnel of
a number of companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Lam is currently an executive director of Qianhai Health Holdings
Limited (stock code: 911) and an independent non-executive director
of VSTECS Holdings Limited (stock code: 856), which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Professor Jin Zhongwei (Professor Jin), aged 82, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
since 15 June 2012. He is an expert in wood preservation with over
40 years of experience in wood preservation. Professor Jin graduated
from Nanjing Forestry College in 1961 and majored in forestry
products chemical processing. He studied wood preservation and
modification technologies in the United States as a government-
appointed scholar from 1981 to 1983, and was a visiting scholar at
Oregon State University and Mississippi State University from 1994 to
1995 respectively.

Professor Su Wengqiang (Professor Su), aged 64, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
since 15 June 2012. Professor Su has more than 30 years of
experience in the research of forestry and timber products. Professor
Su was awarded as Model Member of the Communist Party (85
EEB) from 2006 to 2007, and was appointed as various positions in
timber industry, e.g., council member of Standing Committee of the
Heilongjiang Province Chemistry Society (BEeiT &t T2 ERES) (in
December 2004), committee member of Wood Science Institute of
the Chinese Society of Forestry (REIMEE AN RIEDE) (in April
2010), member of Board of Experts of Standardisation Committee of
China Timber and Wood Products Distribution Association Wood
Preservation Committee (FEIAM B R BB A M BEXEZE
GHERIEEEZE ) (in December 2009), member of Board of Experts
Committee of Standardisation Committee of China Wood
Preservation Industry Association (PEIAMRE T EHEEREES)
(in October 2011), committee member of the Wood Preservation
Research Committee of the Wood Science Institute of the Chinese
Society of Forestry (FEIMESAMEE D @AM REREXEEZEE) (in
April 2007) and editor of editorial committee of Biomass Chemical
Engineering published by Institute of Chemical Industry of Forest
Products (FEIMERIZHEGMENCE T ERR (EDBELET
) ) (in December 2010). Professor Su graduated from Northeast
Forestry University in July 1982, major in professional chemical
processing of forestry products (#RE{L 21 T T2 ), and obtained
a Doctorate Degree in December 2008.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Chen Tianfu (Mr. Chen), aged 54, is the chief financial officer of
our Group. Since joining our Group in 2009, Mr. Chen has been
responsible for our Group's accounting and financial management
affairs. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Chen was in charge of the
financial departments of Jiangxi Sanhua Real Estate Co. Ltd. (TFa=
FEEEER AR and Fujian Dufeng Sugar Factory (iB&4 & EFER)
respectively. Mr. Chen has over 20 years of experience in corporate
financial management and possesses the qualifications of an
accountant in the PRC. Mr. Chen graduated from Fujian Quanzhou
Supply and Sales School (f&&4& RIMHEHEER) in 1986 majoring in
financial accounting with a secondary vocational school diploma.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lee Kin Yee (Ms. Lee), aged 36, was appointed as the
company secretary of the Company on 6 July 2018. Ms. Lee is a
director of Modern Assurance And Business Services Limited and
she holds a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration from
Lingnan University. She is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and has over 10 years of experience in
the field of accounting, auditing and company secretarial services.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
& Az B RN R

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA ENVIRONMENTAL
TECHNOLOGY AND BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on
pages 70 to 216, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated
statement of profit or 10ss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (“the Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Assessment of impairment of property, plant and
equipment

The carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment as at 31
December 2019 was approximately RMB495,794,000. The Group had
reported a continued 10ss in the current year. Management
considered that there was indicator of potential impairment on
property, plant and equipment.

Management performed an impairment assessment when an
indicator of impairment was identified. Management determined the
recoverable amounts based on the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. When performing an impairment
assessment, management used the fair value less costs of disposal
and compared the aggregate carrying values of property, plant and
equipment, to determine the impairment loss which should be
recognised for the year, if any.

Based on the result of the assessment, it is concluded that there is
impairment in respect of property, plant and equipment amounting
to approximately RMB638,000.

We identified the assessment of potential impairment of property,
plant and equipment as a key audit matter because the impairment
assessments prepared by management are complex and contain
certain judgemental and subjective assumptions which may be
inherently uncertain and could be subject to management bias.

The determination of fair value less costs of disposal requires the
exercise of significant management judgement in determining the
assumptions and parameters adopted. Refer to Notes 11 and the
accounting judgements and estimates set out in Note 3(v) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Rt

Our response: BEZEY -

Our procedures in relation to assess the impairment of property, JBSEMEYE  BMELIHEALRBEBNRLN
plant and equipment included the following: EREFEEATEE

Understanding and evaluating management’s impairment
assessment on property, plant and equipment;

Engaging our internal valuation specialists to assist us in
evaluating management’s impairment assessment
methodology, the key assumptions applied and calculations
contained with reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

Assessing the independent valuer’s qualifications, experience
and expertise and considered their objectivity and
independence;

Comparing data in the discounted cash flow forecasts with the
relevant data, including forecast revenue, forecast cost of
sales, forecast other income and forecast other expenses, in
the profit forecasts prepared by management;

Comparing the compound annual growth rates and long term
growth rates adopted in the discounted cash flow forecasts
with historical performance;

Engaging our internal valuation specialists to assist us in
assessing the discount rates applied in the discounted cash
flow forecasts with reference to the range adopted by other
companies in the same industry;

Comparing the revenue and operating costs included in the
prior year’s discounted cash flow forecasts with the current
year's performance to assess the historical accuracy of
management’s forecasting process and considering the nature
of any significant differences; and

Performing sensitivity analysis of the key assumptions adopted
in the discounted cash flow forecasts and assessing the impact
of changes in the key assumptions on the conclusions reached
by management and whether there were any indicators of
management bias.
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Valuation of inventories

The Group held inventories before impairment amounting to
RMB247,269,000 as at 31 December 2019. Inventories are carried at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories
may not be recoverable if those inventories are aged and damaged,
if they have become obsolete, or if their selling prices have declined.

Management has carried out inventory review at the end of the
reporting period in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.
Management has concluded that there is net written-down of
RMB4,495,000 in respect of the inventories for the year ended 31
December 2019 and aggregate amount of impairment to
RMB21,863,000 as at 31 December 2019. This conclusion was based
on inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

We have identified valuation of inventories as a key audit matter
because of its significance to the consolidated financial statements
and the determining the net realisable values involved significant
management judgement. (Refer to note 2(o) to the consolidated
financial statements and the Group’s critical accounting estimates
and assumptions in relation to the net realisable value of inventories
set out in notes 3(i)

Our response:

— Assessing and evaluating the inventory ageing analysis of the
Group at year end, and subsequent usage and sales of
inventory after year end;

— Testing inventories to assess if they are stated at the lower of
cost or net realisable value by comparing the actual sales value
to the book value for those selected samples of finished goods
and raw material, and

— Assessing the sufficiency of the write down on inventories
made by management with reference to the inventory ageing
analysis and the subsequent transaction prices of the
inventories, on a sample basis.
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Impairment assessment of trade receivables

As at 31 December 2019, the gross amount of the Group’s trade
receivables totalled RMB108,187,000, against which a loss allowance
of RMB20,893,000 was made. The carrying value of the Group's trade
receivables represented approximately 9% of the total assets as at
31 December 2019.

The Group’s loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit loss (“ECL") based on management’s
estimated loss rates for each category of trade receivables. The
estimated loss rates take into account the ageing of the trade
receivables, overdue balances, information regarding the ability and
intent of the debtor to pay and historical data on default rates.

Management is required to apply judgement in assessing the loss
allowance for trade receivables under the ECL model. The ability of
the debtors to repay the Group depends on shared credit risk
characteristics of trade receivables groups and market conditions
which involves inherent uncertainty.

The collectability of the Group’s trade receivables and the valuation
of the loss allowance for trade receivables is a key audit matter due
to the inherent uncertainty in assessing if trade receivables will be
recovered and significant management judgment exercised in
assessing the ECLs. (Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements and the Group’s critical accounting estimates and
assumptions in relation to the impairment of trade receivables set
out in note 3(ii).)
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Our response:

— Obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of key internal
controls relating to credit control, debt collection and the
calculation of the ECLs,

— Assessing the trade receivables ageing report by group based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due by
comparing the details of individual items with underlying
invoices on a sample basis;

— Obtaining an understanding of the basis of management’s
approach to measuring ECLs of trade receivable balances and
assessing the reasonableness of management’s loss allowance
estimates by examining the information used by management
to form such judgements, including testing the accuracy of the
historical default data,evaluating whether the historical loss
rate are appropriately adjusted based on current economics
conditions and forward-looking information; and

— Comparing cash receipts from debtors subsequent to the
financial year end relating to trade receivable balances at 31
December 2019 with bank statements and relevant underlying
documentation on a sample basis.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Group’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

BN Az ERN RS (&)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

TN XA RS (4

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wan Che Bun
Practising Certificate No. PO5804

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
rEEmK

For the yearended 31December 2019 BE-_ZT—hF+_A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AAR¥FIR)

2019 2018

—E-NE —E-N\F

Note RMB’000 RMB'000

fizE AR®TT AREFT

Revenue KA 4 694,052 634,686
Cost of sales HERA (685,428) (566,161)
Gross profit E£F 8,624 68,525
Other revenue E AU A 5(a) 19,856 9,480
Other net loss EfbEig s 5(b) (4,700) (180,023)
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HR X (25,565) (22,329)
Administrative expenses THFAX (48,330) (49,194)
Expected credit loss on financial assets &g & EMTE S E KB 19 (12,774) (642)
Loss from operations EEER (62,889) (174,183)
Finance costs A& A A 6(a) (1,815) (8,895)
Share of profits of associates BakaF: /NI 401 282
Loss before taxation EEIRATES 18 6 (64,303) (182,796)
Income tax expense FriSRifAx 7(a) (168) (2,1395)
Loss for the year EREGEA (64,471) (184,931)
Loss per share HRER Restated
Basic and diluted (RMB) EARANEE(ARE) 10 (0.104) (0.299)

The notes on pages 76 to 216 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.

FI6AEE 216 AR AR
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FeBEmMEMEE S

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AAREZ1R)

2019 2018
ZB-hF —E)N\E
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AERBT T
Loss for the year ] ] (64,471) (184,931)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax Htt2EIS (MNRKRE)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to HignptE# E 8
profit or l0ss: mAMIAE :
Exchange differences on translation of BREGINETE SRR EE
financial statements of foreign operations RIRE 5 ZE 58 (258) 7,731
Itemn that will not be reclassified subsequently to BT eE B EnR
profit or l0ss: AR
Equity investment designated at fair value BEBEATFEFTAEM
through other comprehensive income: 2HKRZHERE
— Changes in fair value — D EEE) (186) (687)
other comprehensive income for the year, FRXt#2EIE (HIKRRIE)
net of tax (444) 7,044
Total comprehensive income for the year $Rh2EKESHEE (64,915) (177,887)

RV AR A
—E-NEFH /1
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ARE BRI R

At 31 December 2019 R=—Z—h&+=-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AAR¥FIR)

2019 2018
—E-nE T—N\F
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
KiaF AR®TT ARBTT
Non-current assets JERENEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WE R 11 495,794 462,194
Lease prepayments FHETEAK 12 - 44,183
Non-current prepayments for acquisitions W% « K& &%
of property, plant and equipment JERNERTE IR 13 11,074 14,329
Interests in associates B &R AR 14 15,666 24,716
Other financial assets HEMemEE 15 3,048 3,267
Deferred tax assets EEFTEE E 17 890 831
526,472 549,520
Current assets BN EE
Inventories FE 18 225,406 345,487
Current portion of lease prepayments THEFEN XA ENEREE D 12 - 1,017
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b e IR 19 145,931 215,773
Pledged deposits [REEEGLEE 20 7,612 18,084
Cash and cash equivalents Re KR EEY 21() 76,024 38,000
454,973 618,361
Current liabilities mEAE
Trade and other payables B 5 K HAb e 3E 22 44,838 57,300
Contract liabilities sEHBEE 23 4,213 23,133
Bank loans IRITER 24 - 91,152
Lease liability HEAEMRNAE S 25 187 -
Debenture &% 26 13,279
Current taxation BNHARS 18 26,717 26,277
89,234 197,862
Net current assets e ERE 365,739 420,499

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)
e B R (&

At 31 December 2019 R=Z—hF+—A :-t——EI
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AAREZ1R)

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-)N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
KiaF AR®TT ARBTT
Total assets less current liabilities #®¥ZERH &K 892,211 970,019
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Lease liabilities HEaEmIERHEs 25 32
Debentures &5 26 4,756 17,620
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE 17 1,790 1,851
6,578 19,471
NET ASSETS HEESE 885,633 950,548
EQUITY e
Share capital (2N 28(b) 25,544 25,544
Reserves B 860,089 925,004
TOTAL EQUITY k=gt 885,633 950,548

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directorson 30 R-ZE-_ZEF=F=+HEZESH & LEET

March 2020. %o
Wu Zheyan Xie Qingmei
REPE MiEsxE
Chief Executive Officer Chairlady
TTIARE, FE

RN ERERAT
S neen /3



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
AR EER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—_ZT—"F+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AARE3R)

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

LG o2 PN
Share Share Exchange Statutory Fair value Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits equity

k% AR ERH HER NFERHE RERH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETFT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT
(note 280)) (note 200 (mote 28(c)i))  (note 28(c)i)
(Hiz280) (WE800)  (WF28000)  (HE280)0)

At 31 December 2017 as p_8—-tE+ZR
originally presented =t+-R(F%) 5,544 677,305 6,746 54,784 - 36,211 1,130,590

Inital application of IFRS 9 BRERERESERS
REAIEI% - - - - 1,343 (3498) (2,155)

Restated at 1 January 2018  R=2—)\F-f-8
BEJ 25,54 677,305 674 54,784 1,33 %2713 1,128,435

Changes in equity for 2018:  —B-)\F@AEE:

Loss for the year FREiE - - - - - (184,931) (184,931)
Other comprenensive income B ElE - - 7731 - (687) - 7,044
Total comprenensive income Eauleeretd - - 7731 - (687) (184,931) (177.887)
Appropriations to Statutory reserve B ETFEE - - - 33 - (323) -
At31December2018and  R-Z-)\%
1 January 2019 +ZB=+-Bk
—Z-71%-B-H 25,544 677,305 14477 55,107 65 177459 950,548

Changes in equity for2019: —E-AE#REH:

Loss for the year EREE - - - - - (64.471) (64.471)
Other comprehensive income EurElE - - (258) - (186) - (44t)
Total comprehensive income 2ENGEE - - (258) - (18¢) 64471) (64919)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE

T-A=1-H 25,544 677,305 14,219 55,107 470 112988 885,633

74 China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

relRemER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—_ZT—NF+_A=+—HIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AAR¥EFIR)

2019 2018
ZB—hE —E-N\E
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
fisE AR®TT ARBT T
Operating activities BEERD
Cash generated from operations KEXBERE 21(b) 129,411 23,930
Income tax refunded EIREMEM 185 338
Net cash generated from BETBHRERKBE
operating activities 129,596 24,268
Investing activities BEES
Payment for the purchase of property, TREEME BEX
plant and equipment BSEIREN (10,529) (20,006)
Interest received EUFIE 347 797
Decrease in pledged deposits B IRE O 10,472 60,864
Dividend income received B U AR B A 531 461
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BRE KRS
plant and equipment FT{SRUE 561 1,037
Net cash generated from investing #{EFZBFMARE B
activities 1,382 43,153
Financing activities A EE
Proceeds from new bank loans IBIRITERATSRIE 87,471 354,053
Repayments of bank loans BEERITER (178,623) (496,088)
Interest paid EAFE (1,803) (8,876)
Repayments of lease liability BEHEaE (158) -
Net cash used in financing MEEEBFRARSSHE
activities (93,113) (150,911)
Net increase/(decrease) in HReRASEED
cash and cash equivalents /i, (RD) B 37,865 (83,490)
Cash and cash equivalents at BH—A—H®H&RRE
1 January EED 38,000 113,501
Effect of foreign exchange rate ExgSEnpeE
changes 159 7,989
Cash and cash equivalents at ®+=-R=+—H
31 December ReRHESED 21(a) 76,024 38,000

PREYERBERAR

. A
—E-NFFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IN=NR e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5 H#E TN - UAREEZTR)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings
Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 17 October 2011 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The

Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 6 July 2012.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as “the Group”). The consolidated financial
statements were authorised for issue by the Directors on 30

March 2020.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(@) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSS"), which collective
term includes all applicable individual IFRSs, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs") and Interpretations issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB")
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted

by the Group is set out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 2(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods

reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
& B 1% 2% MY 5T (4

mﬂ‘

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBEIETIN - UAREST)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXREFHBE®
(Continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated (b) B mmRELE

financial statement

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
RMB, rounded to the nearest thousand. The
measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that unlisted equity securities and derivative
financial instruments are stated at their fair value (see
note 2(h) and 2(m)).

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing hasis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
IFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR E B TS R R MY E T (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( B = BTSN

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective

1 January 2019

The IASB has issued the following amendments to IFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period
of the Group and the Company:

Amendments to IAS 9

Amendments to IAS 19

Amendments to 1AS 28

Amendments to IFRSS

IFRS 16
IFRIC 23

Prepayment features and negative
compensation

Plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement

Long-term interests in associates and
joint ventures

Annual improvements to IFRSs
2015-2017 cycle

Leases
Uncertainty over income tax treatments

The impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 Leases has been
summarised in below. The other new or amended IFRSS
that are effective from 1 January 2019 did not have any
material impact on the Group's accounting policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
& B 1% 2% MY 5T (4

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBEIETIN - UAREST)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EREFHE®
(Continued)
() Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective € FRENFTE]/ ST BEIBR B

1 January 2019 (continued)

IFRS 16 — Leases

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17, Leases, and the related
interpretations, IFRIC 4, Determining whether an
arrangement contains a lease, SIC 15, Operating leases
— incentives, and SIC 27, Evaluating the substance of
transactions involving the legal form of a lease. It
introduces a single accounting model for lessees, which
requires a lessee to recognise a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability for all leases, except for leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less (“short-term leases”) and
leases of low value assets. The lessor accounting
requirements are brought forward from IAS 17
substantially unchanged.

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 as from 1 January
2019. The Group has elected to use the modified
retrospective approach and has therefore recognised the
cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment
to the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2019.
Comparative information has not been restated and
continues to be reported under IAS 17. Further details of
the nature and effect of the changes to previous
accounting policies and the transition options applied are
set out below:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective
1 January 2019 (continued)

(@

Changes in accounting policies

(i)

New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease mainly
relates to the concept of control. IFRS 16
defines a lease on the basis of whether a
customer controls the use of an identified
asset for a period of time, which may be
determined by a defined amount of use.
Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from that use.

For a contract that contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease
or non-lease components, a lessee shall
allocate the consideration in the contract to
each lease component on the basis of the
relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components, unless
the lessee apply the practical expedient
which allows the lessee to elect, by class of
underlying asset, not to separate non-lease
components from lease components, and
instead account for each lease component
and any associated non-lease components as
a single lease component.

C UAABRHEZTR)

2. EXREFBE®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o

BRI T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( B 5= BTSN

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective
1 January 2019 (continued)

(@) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i

New definition of a lease (Continued)

The Group applies the new definition of a
lease in IFRS 16 only to contracts that were
entered into or changed on or after 1 January
2019. For contracts entered into before 1
January 2019, the Group has used the
transitional practical expedient to grandfather
the previous assessment of which existing
arrangements are or contain leases.

Accordingly, contracts that were previously
assessed as leases under IAS 17 continue to
be accounted for as leases under IFRS 16 and
contracts previously assessed as non-lease
service arrangements continue to be
accounted for as executory contracts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5 H#E TN - UAREEZTR)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXBTEE#@
(Continued)
(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective ()

1 January 2019 (continued)

(@)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(ii)

Lease accounting

IFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a
lessee to classify leases as either operating
leases or finance leases, as was previously
required by IAS 17. Instead, the Group is
required to capitalise all leases when it is the
lessee, including leases previously classified
as operating leases under IAS 17, other than
those short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets. As for as the Group is
concerned, these newly capitalised leases
are primarily in relation to property, plant and
equipment as disclosed in note 11.

For a contract that contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease
or non-lease components, a lessee shall
allocate the consideration in the contract to
each lease component on the basis of the
relative stand-alone price of the non-lease
components from lease components, and
instead account for each lease component
and any associated non-lease components as
a single lease component. The Group has
elected not to separate non-lease
components and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for
all leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective
1 January 2019 (continued)

(@) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(il

Lease accounting (Continued)

under IFRS 16, all leases (irrespective of they
are operating leases or finance leases) are
required to be capitalised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, but IFRS 16
provides accounting policy choices for an
entity to choose not to capitalize (i) leases
which are short-term leases and/or (i) leases
for which the underlying asset is of low-value.
The Group has elected not to recognise right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities for low-
value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term less
than 12 months. The lease payments
associated with those leases have been
expensed on straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over the
lease term, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is
calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or rate are not included
in the measurement of the lease liability and
hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o

BRI T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BB EETIN  AARKEST)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXBTEE#@
(Continued)
(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective © FRENFE]/ ST BB B
1 January 2019 (continued) BREE —B8=-F—N
F-H—BRES@®
(@) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (@) BETEHEREH(E)
(i) Lease accounting (Continued) (i)  AEASEEEFE(E)
The right-of-use asset recognised when a RERCHERERER
lease is capitalised is initially measured at e FEEEN T RAAR
cost, which comprises the initial amount of AR HRBEEE

the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets
also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset
or to restore the underlying asset or the site
on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives
received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective
1 January 2019 (continued)

(@) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(il

Lease accounting (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there is
a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or there is a change
arising from the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use assets has been
reduced to zero.

uUnder IFRS 16, the Group is required to
account for all leasehold properties as
investment properties when these properties
are held to earn rental income and/or for the
capital appreciation (“leasehold investment
properties”). The adoption of IFRS 16 does not
have a significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements as the
Group has no leasehold property that is held
to earn rental income and/or for the capital
appreciation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o

BRI T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBIETIN - UAREST)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EREFHE®
(Continued)
(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective © FRENFE]/ ST BB B
1 January 2019 (continued) BREE —B8=-F—N
F—H—BRBER @
(@) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (@) BETEHEREH(E)
(i) Lessor accounting (i) HEA BB E
The Group leases out properties to earn BHE-_Z—-—NLF+=A
rental income for the year ended 31 =t+—HBIEFEAREHE
December 2019 as the lessor of operating EAKEMEMNTHEA
lease. The accounting policies applicable to tH A8 % 18 ) 2 DA B

the Group as a lessor remain substantially
unchanged from those under I1AS 17.

Under IFRS 16, when the Group acts as an
intermediate lessor in a sublease
arrangement, the Group is required to classify
the sublease as a finance lease or an
operating lease by reference to the right-of-
use asset arising from the head lease, instead
of by reference to the underlying assets. The
adoption of IFRS 16 does not have a
significant impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements in this
regard.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective
1 January 2019 (continued)

(b)

Critical accounting judgements and sources
of estimation uncertainty in applying the
above accounting policies

0]

Classification

Classification of interest in leasehold land and
buildings held for own use In accordance with
IAS 16, Property, plant and equipment, the
Group chooses to apply either the cost model
or the revaluation model as its accounting
policy for items of property, plant and
equipment held for own use on a class-by-
class basis. In applying this policy, the Group
has concluded that its registered ownership
interests in leasehold properties and the right
to use other properties leased under tenancy
agreements are two separate groupings of
assets which differ significantly in their nature
and use. Accordingly, they are regarded by
the Group as separate classes of asset for
subsequent measurement policies in
accordance with the above accounting
policies. Specifically, registered ownership
interests are carried under the revaluation
model, while rights to use properties under
tenancy agreements are carried at
depreciated cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o

BRI T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( B = BTSN

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective
1 January 2019 (continued)

(b)

Critical accounting judgements and sources
of estimation uncertainty in applying the
above accounting policies (Continued)

(0

Classification (Continued)

In making this judgement, the Group has
taken into account that, as the registered
owner of a leasehold property, the Group is
able to benefit fully from any changes in the
valuation of these properties whether as
holding gains or by selling the property
interest to others, as well as being able to use
the properties in its operation free of paying
market rents. In contrast, the shorter term
tenancy agreements are typically for periods
of no more than 10 years and are subject to
other restrictions, in particular on
transferability of the Group's tenancy rights
to others. These shorter term tenancy
agreements are executed in order to retain
operational flexibility and to reduce the
Group's exposure to the property market
fluctuation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective
1 January 2019 (continued)

(b)

Critical accounting judgements and sources
of estimation uncertainty in applying the
above accounting policies (Continued)

(il

Determining the lease term

As explained in the above accounting
policies, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term. In
determining the lease term at the
commencement date for leases that include
renewal options exercisable by the Group,
the Group evaluates the likelihood of
exercising the renewal options taking into
account all relevant facts and circumstances
that create an economic incentive for the
Group to exercise the option, including
favourable terms, leasehold improvements
undertaken and the importance of that
underlying asset to the Group's operation.
The lease term is reassessed when there is a
significant event or significant change in
circumstance that is within the Group’s
control. Any increase or decrease in the lease
term would affect the amount of lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised
in future years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective
1 January 2019 (continued)

(c)

Transitional impact

The Group has applied IFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach with a date of initial
application of 1 January 2019, under which the
cumulative effect of initial application is recognised
as at 1 January 2019. As a result, the comparative
information presented in 2018 has not been
restated and continues to be reported under IAS 17
and related interpretations as allowed by the
transition provision in IFRS 16.

At the date of transition to IFRS 16 (i.e. 1 January
2019), the Group determined the length of the
remaining lease terms and measured the lease
liabilities for the leases previously classified as
operating leases at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the
relevant incremental borrowing rates at 1 January
2019.

The Group has elected to recognise all the right-of-
use assets at 1 January 2019 for leases previously
classified operating leases under IAS 17 at an
amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments
relating to that lease recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position immediately before
the date of initial application. For all these right-of-
use assets, the Group has applied IAS 36
Impairment of Assets at 1 January 2019 to assess if
there was any impairment as on that date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o

BRI T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( B 5= BTSN

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective
1 January 2019 (Continued)

()

Transitional impact (Continued)

The Group has applied the following practical
expedients: (i) applied a single discount rate to a
portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics; and (i) applied the exemption of
not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases with term that will end within 12
months of the date of initial application (1 January
2019) and accounted for those leases as short-term
leases.

As mentioned above, the Group has applied IFRS
16 using modified retrospective approach from 1
January 2019, but has not restated comparatives
for the 2018 reporting period, as permitted under
the simplified transition approach in the standard.
The reclassifications and the adjustments arising
from IFRS 16 are therefore recognised in the
opening balances on 1 January 2019.

The following tables summarised the impact of
transition to IFRS 16 on consolidated statement of
financial position as of 31 December 2018 to that of
1 January 2019 as follows (increase/(decrease)):
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Consolidated statement of financial R-ZE—hFE—HF—H®
position as at 1 January 2019 HeMBRiE
Right-of-use assets presented in property, R - WE NMERERNYRZ
plant and equipment ERAEEE 45,559
Lease prepayments HETENK (44,183)
Current-portion of lease prepayments HEFE R BN (1,017)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS R R I A (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( B = BTSN

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective
1 January 2019 (continued)

(c) Transitional impact (Continued)

The following table reconciles the operating lease
commitments as disclosed in note 28(b) as at 31
December 2018 to the opening balance for lease
liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019:

C UAABRHEZTR)

2. EXREFBE®

) MFT:]/ &EIETHERE
FREE — B -F— N
F—H—HEBER S
(c) BESZEE)

TRHFINR_ZE—N\F+_A
=+t HHOKEERERESRR
—T-NF—A—B®ERANHHE
EBENTFYESRZHE

1 January
2019
—E—-hE
—A—H
RMB’000
AR®TT

Operating lease commitments

RIZE—N\FE+ZA=+—Hi

at 31 December 2018 EEHERR 584
Less: commitments relating to leases L BRI R B AR E AL -
exempt from capitalisation:
— short-term leases and other leases — R E KRR
with remaining lease term ending —E-hEFE+ZA=1+—H
on or before 31 December 2019 g2 AEROEBRE (205)
Future interest expenses REFEL H (20)
Total lease liabilities recognised R-B—NF—F—HRRH
at 1 January 2019 HEARSR 359

The right-of-use assets in relation to leases
previously classified as operating leases have been
recognised at an amount equal to the amount
recognised for the remaining lease liabilities,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued
lease payments relating to that lease recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at
31 December 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
T A BTSRRI EE (8

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBERI  AAREZITR)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EREFHE®
(Continued)
(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective € IRMFEE]/ LA T BB B
1 January 2019 (continued) BREER — B8 =-F—N
i—ﬁ —HERER @)
(c) Transitional impact (Continued) (c) BESZEE)
The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not KEEBIHEEIME - BE
meet the definition of investment property in BB FREMEERNSE
“property, plant and equipment” and presents BAEEERBEE 8 BENIEAK
lease liabilities separately in the consolidated MKREFEY o

statement of financial position.

The analysis of the net book value of the Group's ToAREBIZABEEER
right-of-use assets by class of underlying assets at oz EAREERGEERAR
the end of the reporting period and at the date of BEE RS BHREERF 16
transition to IFRS 16 is as follows: R B2 REFED -

At At

31 December 1 January

2019 2019

R-ZE—h&E RZZE—NF

+=B=+—H —A—8

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETT

Included in “Property, plant and AT - BB REE]

equipment”:
Other properties leased for own 37 & 5K 4551 BR 8978 & DA (it

use, carried at depreciated cost @AM EA YR 214 359
Lease payments for land use rights + b (s 4 2 18 &~ 3k 44,183 45,200

HRIAEYERBRD A
—E-NEFFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NN IR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBIETIN - UAREST)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BEXEIBEK®
(Continued)
(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective © IRMFE]/ K&
1 January 2019 (continued) BmELE — 8=

(d) Lease liabilities

The remaining contractual maturities of the Group's
lease liabilities at the end of the reporting period
and at the date of transition to IFRS 16 are as

A

= h

F—-—A—HRER@®
d) BEEE
T AREBREEE RBE
EEBBBREEIE 165Y
B2 REaBEHBA LR -

follows:
At 31 December 2019 At 1 January 2019
A _E-NEFE+-A=1+-H RZZ-N%—A—H
Present Present
value of the Total  value of the Total
minimum  minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
REHEE REBRE RERE HEHRE
HRERE IR®E [THNRE e
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTE ARBTRT AR®Tr ARETR
Within 1 year —£R 187 194 145 158
After 1year but within2 years — —F 5 FREURA 32 32 214 221
219 226 359 379
Less: total future interest B BRI M EE
expenses (7) (20)
Present value of lease HEARMERE
liabilities 219 359
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B8

BB HRRNE @

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(©

(d

Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective
1 January 2019 (continued)

(d) Lease liabilities (Continued)

Current and non-current portion of lease liabilities
as at 31 December 2019 is represented in note 25.

The weighted average lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2019 is 5.13%

p.a.

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Group. Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies
together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit
or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or
up to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of
the Group.

C UABEHEZTR)

2. EXETHBE®)

©

AN FTET A T BB B
BWEEA — B F— A
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(d) HEEEE)
T-AE+=A=+—
=N *ﬂiﬁﬁ1 KR EN A IE R B)
EBOIEMIFE25 57K o

HE-_T-hF+=-A=+—
H - f£A IR R R
MmEAREEa BN NEFY
EFAEEERFNEF5.13% °
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ERettRiEe B L
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

CEF-E -l

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair
value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by IFRSS.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which
case the costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement
period (@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition
date) about the fair value at the acquisition date. All other
subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit
or loss.

C UAABRHEZTR)

2. EXREFBE®

(d)

I}

EBEHNEEEE®)

B8~ Bl SRR IS R R U A A
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RGEBIE AT ESIREIE T
AIERIEEFER L IFt R KRB AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( B 5= BTSN

BRI T

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continuea)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
the subsidiary are accounted for in the same manner as
would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were
disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

C UABEHEZTR)

2. EXETHBE®)

(d)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BB HRRNE @

;\\/T\

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B RIN » AN EREEFIR)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EREFHE®
(Continued)
(e) Subsidiaries € MWEBAF

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(n)).

HIBARIEAREZEFNER - B4

SEH2EZBERETNT O HA

FERBRNZEENALEEBEZE
BITEREIFEZTERE - BIAE

BEZEREBEHRE - NFEAS
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AR EMBRE B %M%EZ“JL
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ZEBRERE - L‘/{&E@WAEF&J»«
HETEENEARER G - ERR
RAMBRREH2HIEE - KER
RARR B EENARSHRERRE
& HIRBER RO BN T A MK
REIR M e AERI A T A8 o

RARBNMBARES  RHER
AR B AR EEEIR (R
MiEE2(n))
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE @

mﬂ‘
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B #RIN » AN EBEFIR)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES BEREFHE®

(Continued)

()

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of
the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment (see note 2(m)(i)). Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share of
the post- acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the
Group's share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group's interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the
carrying amount of the investment under the equity
method together with the Group's long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate.

()
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5 H#E TN - UAREEZTR)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES BEREFHE®
(Continued)
(f) Associates (continued) () BEERR @

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated to
the extent of the Group's interest in the investee, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

In the Group’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(m)(i)).

Goodwill

(i) The aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i) The net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition
date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 2(n)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in
the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( B 5= BTSN

BRI T

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(n)

Derivative financial instruments and other
financial assets

Derivative financial instruments and other financial assets
are recognised initially at fair value. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured. The gain or
loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2(n)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour,
the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the
site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs
(see note 2(2)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BRI T

;\\IT\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBIETIN - UAREST)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXBTEE#@

(Continued)

(1)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives as follows:

— Buildings The shorter of the unexpired term of
lease and their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 20 years after the
date of completion

— Leasehold improvement  Over the unexpired term of lease but
no more than 5 years

— Plant and machinery 10 years

— Furniture, fittings and 5 years
equipment

— Motor vehicles 5 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction and equipment pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment losses
(see note 2(n)). Cost comprises direct costs of
construction and installation during the construction
period. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to property, plant
and equipment when the asset is substantially ready for
its intended use.

No depreciation is provided in respect of the construction
in progress until it is substantially completed and ready
for its intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
& B 1% 2% MY 5T (4

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( B 5= BTSN

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k)

Lease prepayments

Payments for leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases represent up-front payments to acquire
long-term interests in lessee-occupied properties. These
payments are stated at cost and are amortised over the
period of the lease on a straight-line basis as an expense.

Leasing

(@

Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2019

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases
or finance leases) are required to be capitalised in
the consolidated statement of financial position as
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but
accounting policy choices exist for an entity to
choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-
term leases and/or (ii) leases for which the
underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for
which at the commencement date have a lease
term less than 12 months. The lease payments
associated with those leases have been expensed
on straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

CEF-E -l

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(I)  Leasing (continued)

(a)

Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2019 (Continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below for
the accounting policy to account for lease liability);
(i) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; (iii) any initial direct costs incurred by the
lessee and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred
by the lessee in dismantling and removing the
underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories. Except
for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of an
investment property or a class of property, plant
and equipment to which the Group applies the
revaluation model, the Group measures the right-
of-use assets applying a cost model. Under the cost
model, the Group measures the right-to-use at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability. Depreciation is
calculated using the straight-line method over the
lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(I)  Leasing (continued)

(@

Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2019 (Continued)

Leased liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date
of commencement of the lease. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group uses the Group's
incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not
paid at the commencement date of the lease are
considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments
less any lease incentives receivable: (ii) variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at
commencement date; (iii) amounts expected to be
payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees, (iv) the exercise price of a purchase
option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
that option and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

CEF-E -l

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(I)  Leasing (continued)

(a)

Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2019 (Continued)

Leased liability (Continued)

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or
lease modifications, e.g., a change in future lease
payments arising from change in an index or rate, a
change in the lease term, a change in the in
substance fixed lease payments or a change in
assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Accounting as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment property
to a number of tenants. Rental income from
operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
as an expense on the straight-line basis over the
lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(I)  Leasing (continued)

(b)

Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2018

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases
are recorded as receivables at the amount of the
Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the
Group's net investment outstanding in respect of
the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on the
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessor

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets at their fair value or, if lower,
the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding lease commitment is shown as
a liability. Lease payments are analysed between
capital and interest. The interest element is charged
to profit or loss over the period of the lease and is
calculated so that it represents a constant
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

CEF-E -l

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(I)  Leasing (continued)

(b)

Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2018 (Continued)

The total rentals payable under the operating
leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives
received are recognised as an integrated part of
the total rental expense, over the term of the lease.

The land and buildings elements of property leases
are considered separately for the purposes of lease
classification.

(m) Financial Instruments

)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a
significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

nﬂ‘
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B » UAARESR)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)
(m) Fina
(i)

B BT M (@)

ncial Instruments (continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest rate method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI"): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at fair value through OCI. Debt
investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income are subsequently
measured at fair value. Interest income calculated
using the effective interest rate method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income. On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B RIN » AN EREEFIR)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)
(m) Financial Instruments (continued)

(i)

BB HRRNE @

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"): Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely
payments of principal and interest are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding
the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at
amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, as described above, debt
instruments may be designated at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing
so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(m) Fina
(i)

ncial Instruments (continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is
not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment’s fair value in other comprehensive
income. This election is made on an investment-by-
investment basis. Equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income are
measured at fair value. Dividend income are
recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend
income clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investments. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby
changes in fair value, dividends and interest income
are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss (“ECL") on trade receivables, contract
assets, financial assets measured at amortised cost
and debt investments measured at FVOCI. The
ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these are the ECLS that
result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date: and (2) lifetime
ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period
over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

CEF-E -l

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) Financial Instruments (continued)

(M

Financial assets (Continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted
at an approximation to the assets’ original effective
interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances
for trade receivables and contract assets using IFRS
9 simplified approach and has calculated ECLS
based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has established
a provision matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based
on the 12-months ECLs. However, when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the
lifetime ECLSs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information analysis, based on the
Group'’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking
information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o

BRI T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( B 5= BTSN

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) Financial Instruments (continued)

M

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (2) a breach of contract
such as a default or past due event.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset. For non-credit-impaired financial
assets interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair
value and financial liabilities at amortised costs are
initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5 H#E TN - UAREEZTR)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)
(m) Financial Instruments (continued)
(ii)  Financial liabilities (Continued)

BB HRRNE @

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the
near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in profit or l0ss.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at fair value
through profit or loss, except where the embedded
derivative does not significantly modify the cash
flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded
derivative is prohibited.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if
the following criteria are met: (i) the designation
eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the liabilities or recognising gains or
losses on them on a different basis; (i) the liabilities
are part of a group of financial liabilities which are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy; or (iii) the financial liability
contains an embedded derivative that would need
to be separately recorded.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) Financial Instruments (continued)

(ii)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss (Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for the gains and losses arising from the
Group’s own credit risk which are presented in
other comprehensive income with no subsequent
reclassification to the statement of profit or loss.
The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss does not
include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables, borrowings, certain preference
shares and the debt element of convertible loan
note issued by the Group are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
A E B IS R R MY EE ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) Financial Instruments (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in
relation to the financial asset expire or when the
financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with IFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or
in part as a result of renegotiating the terms of that
liability, the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially and
measured at their fair value on the date the
financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If
the fair value of the equity instruments issued
cannot be reliably measured, the equity
instruments are measured to reflect the fair value
of the financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability or part thereof extinguished and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss for
the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
& B 1% 2% MY 5T (4

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBEIETIN - UAREST)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXREFHBE®
(Continued)
(n) Impairment of assets (other than financial (n EERE(2HEERIN)

assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of the following assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

o property, plant and equipment;

o lease prepayments included in right-of-use assets;

o leased properties included in right-of-use assets,

J goodwill;

o non-current prepayments for acquisitions of
property, plant and equipment; and

o investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use) of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as
an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount under another IFRS, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that IFRS.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 5B RSN + AN BESIR)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXEHBE®)

(Continued)

(n) Impairment of assets (other than financial n BEREGEZMEE)®
assets) (continued)
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the MREEENEEREE - BEMKRE
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised B3 HNZ= H AT Uy O & BRI B T (A 5T
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the 1B - M HINE AR EE T BB NER
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying EERCFEVERRBRAEBEMR
amount that would have been determined had no JEEEEERTEE A ERE DA
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior RHER BN - BRIFEHEENS —
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as BB SREER B TR EGH ST
income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried ABR - EZERAT - RERBEREE
at a revalued amount under another IFRS, in which case AR BB SRS ERTE TR ERN
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a g o
revaluation increase under that IFRS.
Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows FABEDNREERSREEENME
expected to be derived from the asset, discounted to AIARBEESREETE - REATRE
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that SEREENRITTIST EAREHE
reflects current market assessments of the time value of BESRCEEEMOE TR
money and the risks specific to the asset or cash ATARER R ALIR o
generating unit.

(0) Inventories (0 &
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net TFEURRA R AT FEMET 2R
realisable value. NN

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

BB HRRNE @

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(0)

INnventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less ECLs (see note 2(m)(i)),
except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less ECLS
(see note 2(m)(i).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the
amount initially recognised and redemption value being
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using an effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(r

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(u)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(u)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided that they are not
part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or
in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(u)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

o in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

o in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

° the same taxable entity; or

o different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

v)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Company or the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(W) Revenue recognition (continued)

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of
the goods or service is transferred over time if the
Group's performance:

provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.

0}

Sale of goods

The principal activities of the Group are
manufacturing and sales of outdoor wooden
products, retail sales of outdoor wooden products
through self-operated retail shops and
manufacturing and sales of renewable energy
products.

The Group’s revenue is derived from selling goods
with revenue recognised at a point in time when
control of the goods has transferred to the
customer. This is generally when the goods are
delivered to the customer. There is limited
judgement needed in identifying the point control
passes: once physical delivery of the products to
the agreed location has occurred, the Group no
longer has physical possession, usually will have a
present right to payment (as a single payment on
delivery) and retains none of the significant risks
and rewards of the goods in question. There is
generally only one performance obligation. Invoices
are usually payable within 90-180 days.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(W) Revenue recognition (continued)

(X)

(ii) Otherincome

Interest income from bank deposits is recognised
as it accrues using the effective interest method.

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.
(iii) Contract assets and liabilities
A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services
that the Group has transferred to a customer that is
not yet unconditional. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is
due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of
financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost
of an asset are recognised as deferred income that is
recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the
useful life of the asset. An unconditional government
grant is recognised in profit or loss as other revenue
when the grant becomes receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
& B 1% 2% MY 5T (4

mﬂ‘

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBEIETIN - UAREST)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EREFHE®
(Continued)
(y) Translation of foreign currencies (y) SNEH

Foreign currency transactions during the period are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates.

The results of operations with functional currency other
than Renminbi are translated into Renminbi at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of transactions. Statement of
financial position items including goodwill arising on
consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or after 1
January 2005, are translated into Renminbi at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation with functional currency
other than Renminbi, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that operation with
functional currency other than Renminbi is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on
disposal is recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

;\\/T\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5 H#E TN - UAREEZTR)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)
(z) Borrowing costs

BB HRRNE @

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

(aa) Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

has control or joint control over the Group;

ii.  has significant influence over the Group; or

iii. is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(aa) Related parties (continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

Vi

Vii.

Vii.

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third party
and the other entity is an associates of the
same third party or vice versa.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly-controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the group or to the
group’s parent.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k55 R5)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(aa) Related parties (continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity and include:

that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

ii. children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

iii.  dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

(bb) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A e IS R I A ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B #RIN » AN EBEFIR)

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The Group believes the following critical accounting policies
involve the most significant judgements and estimates used in
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

(i) Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and distribution expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition and
historical experience of selling products of similar nature.
It could change significantly as a result of competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles or changes
in market conditions. Management reassesses these
estimations at the end of the reporting period to ensure
inventory is shown at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

(ii) Impairment of trade receivables

The impairment of trade receivables are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected credit
loss rates. Management adopts judgement in making
these assumptions and selecting inputs for computing
such impairment loss, broadly based on the available
customers’ historical data, existing market conditions
including forward looking estimates at the end of the
reporting period.

Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying amount
of trade receivables and impairment losses in the periods
in which such estimate has been changed.

R H R AT

fEET AR EMEZ KR
AEEBEE - THMNREHBRESREY
R AR A B EAHIT R 3t -

() FETERFE
FEAERFERATERBIETH
fhET EERM A 78 TR R 2 Ak
Ko ZEMEFDERBITIRARIEE
*EM’I‘E%TED%E’JLEW%?%%G o HAJ

ABFHF AEEERNEXEH
‘sz/ﬂ FEMIFHMITEN R A B RE
B o BEERRE NG REENT
1352%13.# LM%%T? 5 AR AR K2 7]

(i) EZEYERENRE

féf%ﬂ’ﬁlél SIERRETI A B RZOR

RIEHEEBERNRRASEE -
EﬁFB"(’EHjEZiﬁEP“&ﬁ&quEH
% /WEEESTEE‘J%M\%MFHTFEH%#J% :
Z AR BUAS PRSI 2 BUE -
TSR (B R & R ATIE \”}E
T REE o

B BB R G AR - I
RERSHRBETEDIENES

& UK IR KRl (B RS 1R M AR T (B A 7
@,

R RA A
B NETH

131



132

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

CEF-E -l

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Depreciation

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets, after taking into account the estimated
residual value. The management reviews the estimated
useful lives of the assets regularly in order to determine
the amount of depreciation expense to be recorded
during any reporting period. The useful lives are based
on the Group's historical experience with similar assets
and taking into account anticipated technological
changes. The depreciation expense for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes from previous
estimates.

Income tax

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions.
Management carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly.
The tax treatments of these transactions are
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes
in tax legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised for
deductible temporary differences. As those deferred tax
assets can only be recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available,
management’s judgement is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management's
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional
deferred tax assets, if any, are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
4T E B IS R R MY E T ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B » UAARESR)

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(v)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations or fair
value less costs to sell. These calculations require the
use of judgments and estimates.

Management judgment is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the related asset
values may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the asset in
the business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to
be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted
using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management in assessing impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s
financial condition and results of operations. If there is a
significant adverse change in the projected performance
and resulting future cash flow projections, it may be
necessary to take an impairment charge to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR E B TS R R MY E T (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBIETIN - UAREST)

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3. EBIHERMAF
ESTIMATES (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) fhEr NEABAE R E 2 RIR )
(vi) Fair value measurement (vi) AFEFE

A number of assets and liabilities included in the Group's
financial statements require measurement at, and/or
disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s financial and
non-financial assets and liabilities utilises market
observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs
used in determining fair value measurements are
categorised into different levels based on how
observable the inputs used in the valuation technique
utilised are (the “fair value hierarchy”):

. Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

o Level 2. Observable direct or indirect inputs other
than Level 1 inputs;

o Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from
market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is
based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a
significant effect on the fair value measurement of the
item. Transfers of items between levels are recognised in
the period they occur.

The Group measures a number of items at fair value:
o Financial instruments (note 33(f)).
For more detailed information in relation to the fair value

measurement of the items above, please refer to the
applicable notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( A BT

BRI T

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(@)

C UABEHEZTR)

4 WARDHEHR#)

Revenue @ WA
The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing REBENTZXBREERHEFH
and sales of outdoor wooden products, retail sales of RER - BREETEETERINR
outdoor wooden products through self-operated retail LRUREEREEBEERER
shops and manufacturing and sales of renewable energy
products.
Revenue from contracts with customers within the scope RER B REERF 155 &HE R
of IFRS 15: BB &AM
2019 2018
—E-nE T—N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBT T
Sales of outdoor wooden products SHE P INRELR 687,132 618,872
Retail sales of wooden products TERER 29 1,254
Sales of renewable energy products  $4& B4 8LTRE @ 6,891 14,560
694,052 634,686
Information about major customers FBRFTEEZEFNER
For the year ended 31 December 2019, revenues from HE-_Z-NF+-A=+—HItF

one (2018: one) customer of the Group’s sales of outdoor
wooden products amounted to RMB121,947,000 (2018:
RMB66,120,000), which represent 10% or more of the
Group’s revenues.

B REAREEHEEPINRRME—
H(ZZE-N\F: —R)EPHBAR
ANR#121,947,0000(=ZF — \F ¢
AR 66,120,0007T ) + 16 748 & Bl UL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BB R M5 (@)

;\\/T\

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 5B RSN + AN BESIR)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WARDHEHR#)
(Continued)
(@) Revenue (continued) @ WA

Revenue from contracts with customers EFEHNE
Disaggregation of revenue information WADKHER
In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by TREZEFEWEMS T2EREK
primary geographical markets, major products and timing ATEREHE DU ©
of revenue recognition.
2019
—E-0EF
Manufacturing
Manufacturing and sales of
and sales of renewable
wooden Retail energy
products business products Total
EERHE LERNE
AR SEER BERFER st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE®RTT AE®TT AE®TR AERTR
Primary geographical markets TEHEHR
The PRC (place of domicile) B (i) 104,719 29 6,891 111,639
North America JEEM 334,388 - - 334,388
Europe B 45,112 - - 45,112
Asia Pacific (exclusive of the PRC) DAR(TEERE) 4,551 - - 4,551
Australasia BANER 198,362 - - 198,362
687,132 29 6,891 694,052
Major products TEER
Wooden products K& 687,132 29 - 687,161
Renewable energy products BEERER - - 6,891 6,891
687,132 29 6,891 694,052
Timing of revenue recognition It A R R R
Product transferred at a point in time EREBENEERES 687,132 29 6,891 694,052
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
4T E B IS R R MY E T ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Br5 G RN UAREEZTR)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WARDE2HR®)
(Continued)
(@) Revenue (continued) @ YA
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) EEEHWE (&)

Disaggregation of revenue information (Continued)) WMAZIHER ()

2018
—Z-N\§
Manufacturing
Manufacturing and sales of
and sales of renewable
wooden Retail energy
products business products Total
EEREE EERHE
K& TEEB BEERER st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFTL ARBFT ARETTL
Primary geographical markets TEHETHR
The PRC (place of domicile) M (fFpTH) 130,305 1,254 14,560 146,119
North America JEEM 260,111 - - 260,111
Europe BuM 30,349 - - 30,349
Asia Pacific (exclusive of the PRC) DAR(TaERE) 10,162 - - 10,162
Australasia BRAFIAE 187,945 - - 187,945
618,872 1,254 14,560 634,686
Major products TEER
Wooden products RES 618,872 1,254 - 620,126
Renewable energy products BEERER - - 14,560 14,560
618,872 1,254 14,560 634,686
Timing of revenue recognition LR 410
Product transferred at a point in time EREVRENOELEBRY 618,872 1,254 14,560 634,686
PRAEYIEERARAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575

BB HRRNE @

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

(@)

Revenue (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Disaggregation of revenue information (Continued)

The following table provides information about trade
receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with
customers.

C UAABRHEZTR)

4 WARDHEHR#)

(@)

WA ()

B AR ()

WA S BEER ()
TREINEEADWEFTISE 5K
AR A NEENER -

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

—E—-hE —E-N\F

+=B=+—H +=ZA=+—8

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ANREFIT

Trade receivables (note 19) LB 5 e RIA (Bfat 19) 87,294 121,888
Contract liabilities (note 23) SR BE (K7 23) (4,213) (23,133)

The contract liabilities mainly relate to the advance
consideration received from customers. RMB23,133,000
of the contract liabilities as of 31 December 2018 has
been recognised as revenue for the year ended 31
December 2019 from performance obligations satisfied
due to the received orders before 31 December 2018 has
been fulfilled.

As at 31 December 2019, the aggregated amount of the
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations under the Group’s existing contracts is
RMB4,285,000. This amount represents revenue
expected to be recognised in the future from completed
purchase orders from customers. The Group will
recognise the expected revenue in future when or as the
goods is transferred to customers, which is expected to
occur in the next 12 months.
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—“NE+ZA=+t—HBZAR%
23,133,000 & M EBEEREBITE
HEATERR/BE_T-NF+=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A e IS R I A ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B RIN » A EREEFIR)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting

In a manner consistent with how the Group manages its
business and the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’'s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has identified three
reportable segments, namely Manufacturing and sales of
wooden products, Retail business and Manufacturing and
sales of renewable energy products. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the above
reportable segments.

o Manufacturing and sales of wooden products:
manufacturing and sales of outdoor wooden
products to both domestic and overseas
customers, and trading of timber.

o Retail business: retail sales of outdoor wooden
products through self-operated retail shops.

o Manufacturing and sales of renewable energy
products: manufacturing and sales of biomass
pellet fuel to both domestic and overseas
customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

Segment results

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results attributable to
each reportable segment on the following bases:

Reportable segment revenue represents the
revenue derived from the Group’s external
customers by Manufacturing and sales of wooden
products, Retail business and Manufacturing and
sales of renewable energy products, respectively.

The measure used for reportable segment profit/
(loss) is “profit/(loss) after taxation (excluding the
after tax effect of government subsidies)” of
Manufacturing and sales of wooden products,
Retail business and Manufacturing and sales of
renewable energy products, respectively.

A measurement of segment assets and liabilities is
not provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management and accordingly, no
segment assets or liabilities information is
presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
4T E B IS R R MY E T ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B RSN + AN EESIIR)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WARDEHBE®H =)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) b DEPEH =)
(i) Segment results (Continued) () oWEHE)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable REBEZEZZT-NFRZF—N
segments as provided to the Group’s most senior F+ZA=+—HLFE
executive management for the purposes of BIRDE R ERBFERA
resource allocation and assessment of segment ;‘%@?F—E%EJ‘H KB A
performance for the years ended 31 December EEAE2RDHHEREFT N
2019 and 2018 is set out below: N
2019
—Z-n%
Manufacturing
Manufacturing and sales of
and sales of renewable
wooden Retail energy
products husiness products Total
EER
EERME HEBE
AEA SERK ERER it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
IN:3 S ARRTT ARWTT AR®TT

Revenue derived from the Group's ~ BAREENFRP

external customers HBA 687,132 29 6,891 694,052
Inter-segment revenue AHEBA 6,39 190 2,857 9,443
Reportahle segment revenue  WEHFMKA 693,528 219 9,748 703,495

Reportable segment (loss)/profit 2RI B(ER)/BH

((loss)/profit after taxation Btk (81)/ &7
(excluding the after tax effect of (TRERESZ
government subsidies)) BEzE) (73,719) (730) 942 (73,507)

Depreciation charge on owned BRZNE  BRELEE

property, plant and equipment LITE (20,656) (394) (507) (21,557)
Depreciation charge on land use rights B &R EREEEL T

included within right-of-use assets ~ EREZ & (1,017) - - (1,017)
Changes in fair value of derivative T4 4RI AL FEES

financial instruments — unrealised ~ — K& (389) - - (389)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMBLRA s - - 17 17
Impairment of property, 0% BRLRERE

plant and equipment (638) - - (638)
Loss on disposal of property, LENE  BERIERIE

plant and equipment ZER (1,817) (8) - (1,825)
Written-off of interest in an associate  FBA/N R 34 (456) = = (456)
Written-off of inventories, net FEMEEE (4,495) - - (4,495)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
/\\/T\ ﬁﬂv—’% $&i§ IzﬁL III_II_ A= )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B G RN UAREEZTR)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WARDHMEHR =)

142

(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) b HE=2FHwE
(i) Segment results (Continued) (i) MWEEE)
2018
“E-N\EF
Manufacturing
Manufacturing and sales of
and sales of renewable
wooden Retail energy
products business products Total
EER
FEREE HERE
REE TEER HRER it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT AEETT ANRETT AREFTL
Revenue derived from the Group's  BEAEENSEP
external customers A 618,872 1,254 14,560 634,686
Inter-segment revenue PEEBA 11,764 - 2208 13972
Reportable segment revenue  TE2HIHUA 630,63 1,254 16,768 648658
Reportable segment (loss)/profit A2HAF(BIE)/EH
((loss)/profit after taxation BH#% (Bi8)/ &7
(excluding the after tax effect of (TEERR#ERZ
government subsidies)) MEye)) (186,107) (1,622) 2512 (185,217)
Depreciation charge on owned BEINE BEREEZ
property, plant and equipment g (32,790) (436) (507) (33,733)
Amortisation of lease payment RERMHBH (1,635) - - (1,635)
Changes in fair value of derivative {144 BIAATESH —
financial instruments — unrealised K 190 - - 190
Impairment of property, NE - BRERERE
plant and equipment (139,251) - - (139,251)
Impairment of lease prepayments &R ZERE (23263) - - (23263)
Write-off of inventories FEMH (7,931) - - (7,931)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
T A BTSRRI EE (8

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBERI  AAREZITR)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WARDEHEH @)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) () HEB2H@)
(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment (i) TEFRIBURAHETTZ2HS I
revenue and reportable segment loss EENHE
2019 2018
—E-NE —Z=-)\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Revenue A
Reportable segment revenue 2N FHWA 703,495 648,658
Elimination of inter-segment HEH D FBEWA

revenue (9,443) (13,972)
Consolidated revenue ERE WA 694,052 634,686
Loss Fi]

Reportable segment loss derived REAEBEINSE PR

from the Group's external AE2HH EEE

customers (73,507) (185,217)
Government subsidies (net of tax)  BAFAEL (FNRFLIE) 15,490 5,849
Depreciation on right-of-use assets & &EHE W ¥ v & B#E

included within leased properties ~ BEZiTE 150 -
Unallocated head office and ROBLBIERE R

corporate expenses NGl R (6,304) (5,563)
Consolidated loss after taxation e EE (64,471) (184,931)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
T A BTSRRI EE (B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBETIN  AARESITR)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WARDEEH @)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continuead) () HEB2Hw@)
(iii) Geographical information (iii) HIMER
Revenue from external customers RESIEEF LA
The geographical location of customers is based on BEAMIBAE NG R
the location at which the goods were delivered. BhRYE o
2019 2018
—B-hF —TN\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETT

The PRC (place of domicile) HRE (fEFTih) 111,639 146,119
North America 1EEM 334,388 260,111
Europe BOM 45,112 30,349
Asia Pacific (exclusive of the PRC) K& (Ta1EFEH) 4,551 10,162
Australia SRAFIPIE 198,362 187,945

582,413 488,567

694,052 634,686
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( B 5= BTSN

(@)

BRI T

C UABEHEZTR)

5. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET LOSS 5. HW AR EMERZEEE
Other revenue (@) HARA

2019 2018
—E—-hEFE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTIT
Interest income on bank deposits SRITFEHF BUA 347 797
Government subsidies SR, 18,223 7,022
Dividend income f& B A 531 461
Rental income GERAL PN 62 290
Others Eph 693 910
19,856 9,480

The Group received unconditional government subsidies BE-T-NSFT-A=1+—ALLF

of RMB18,223,000 (2018: RMB5,859,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2019 in respect of operating and
research and development activities. These government
subsidies were granted to Fujian Zhangping Kimura
Forestry Products Co, Ltd. (“Zhangping Kimura”) and
Unicreed Industry & Trade Co., Ltd. There were no
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attaching to these
government grants.

The Group recognised government subsidies as deferred
income which compensated the Group for the cost of its
land use right and the cost of infrastructure development.
Deferred income of RMB1,163,000 was amortised in
profit or loss as other revenue for the year ended 31
December 2018, which was on a systematic basis over
the useful life of the relevant assets. All deferred income
was offset against impairment of property, plant and
equipment and lease payments as at 31 December 2018.

& - RS BB E R BT R R AR
#18,223,000L(Z T — N\F: AR
#£5,859,0007T) © fREEE EFARF
EARAR(DEFEAN ] RiGNEA
ITEBBERARERIEFEARE © %
LSBT AR R EF s
£IF o

RNEEERBUT R AEEWAIER
THEAREE L AR A R AR
BREKAN - BHEZT—\F+=A
=+—BIEFE - BUSHE GEZYR

A)AREE1,163,000 L E R AHA
WA Il Ty IR B 2= R Al {4 AP
BRGHMER - R_T—\FE+=A
=+t—HB: AIBECRAEERED
¥ WERBEZRE -

PRENERARAT
—E-NEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
T A BTSRRI EE (B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBETIN  AARESITR)

5. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET LOSS 5. HtWAREMERFHE®)

(Continued)
(b) Other net loss (b)) EHMEEFE
2019 2018
ZE-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ANEEFIT
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) 0 5 U ss (E518) F58 6,749 (5,346)
Changes in fair value of derivative MTESRITAANTFEZD
financial instruments — realised — O#R (4,542) (4,036)
Changes in fair value of derivative PTHESBMIANFEE
financial instruments — unrealised — KRR (389) 190
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMB ARk 17 -
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BB MEE
plant and equipment Z (E518) WS (1,825) 1
Impairment of property, plant and WE -« BB MR ERE
equipment (638) (139,251)
Impairment of lease prepayments FAETENRERE = (23,263)
Write-off of interest in an associate BB B 2 S5 Sy (456) -
Write-off of inventories EATE I E (4,495) (7,931)
Others HAtb 879 (387)

(4,700) (180,023)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
4T E B IS R R MY E T ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B RSN + AN EESIIR)

6.

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging:

(@)

Finance costs

BRELATE 1R

BB REGR TS RE ST

(@) BEERA

2019 2018
—E-nE —F-)\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREEFIT

Interest expense on bank loans and  $RITER R EAEHT BB
debentures 1,802 8,895
Interest expense on lease liabilities MEAENNERX 13 -
1,815 8,895

Staff costs

(b) BIA

Salaries, wages and other benefits
Contributions to defined contribution
retirement schemes

¥ TEREMER
FERHFRING 8

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB‘000
AR®TR AREBT T

34,111 33,979

1,153 1,497

35,264 35,476

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in
the PRC, the Group’s entities in the PRC participate in
defined contribution retirement benefit schemes (the
“Schemes”) organised by the local authorities whereby
the entities are required to make contributions to the
Schemes based on a percentage of the eligible
employees’ salaries during the years ended 31 December
2019 and 2018. Contributions to the Schemes vest
immediately. Under the Schemes, retirement benefits of
existing and retired employees are payable by the
relevant scheme administrators and the Group has no
further obligations beyond the annual contributions.

RIEBFENERBEEAER - A
SEUNTENERS NN ERE
e E B FUR KR A B (T Rxat
) Bt FRERARBE_T
—NERZF-N\F+-_A=+—H
LHEERAEBKRERFMN—EA D
LerRazat BIME L 3R - aEt 8
MR ENET BRI o IRIZA RIS - 3R
B FoR KR B R IR FI e AR AR 81
BB - BREREHEZIN A%
EEgE—FRE-

PRENERARAT
—E-NEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
T A BTSRRI EE (B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBETIN  AARESITR)

6. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6. BRBiAIEE &)
(c) Otheritems (c) EfbiEH
2019 2018
—E—hE —E—N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Cost of inventories recognised as BRATEKRACZER

expenses (note (i) (K () 685,428 566,161

Depreciation charge (note 11) e (et 11)
— Owned property, plant and —BEVE - -BEX

equipment R E 21,557 33,733
— Right-of-use assets included —BEENTEE 2 F A

within (note (ii): BE (M) -

— Land use rights —HEBEMK 1,017 -

— Leased properties — 150 -
Low-value assets leases expenses KEEEHEEA 116 -
Amortisation of lease prepayments THETBN FE s (et 12)

(note 12) = 1,635
Operating lease charges for properties ¥ & &4 H = 451
Research and development expenses — ff 2k 7 21,418 22,969
Auditor’s remuneration 12 EL A B 1,016 1,066
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
B B & 3R MY 5T ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B8

6.

7.

/T\

(©)

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

Other items (continued)

Notes:

(ii)

Cost of inventories includes RMB40,845,000 (2018: RMB52,223,000)
for the year ended 31 December 2019 relating to staff costs and
depreciation, which amount is also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above or in note 6(b) for each of
these types of expenses.

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach with a date of initial application of 1
January 2019, under which the cumulative effect of initial
application is recognised as at 1 January 2019. After initial
recognition at 1 January 2019, the Group as lessee is required to
recognise the depreciation of right-of-use assets, instead of the
previous policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under
operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
under this approach, the comparative information has not been
restated.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Taxation in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss represents:

(@)

C UABEHEZTR)

6. BRBIAIEE (&)
HMIER (&)

(©

et -

BiEE

BE-Z-NEF+-A=1T—HLHF
& T?EEJZZK@TE/\EMAO,MS,OOOE
(ZZ—\F : AR¥52,2230007T) %
REBTIRARFE  BHLETCA
R EXFEKMTeb) S BREZER T EE
RENESEA -

AEEERERERAH -—T-NEF—
H—RRABEIET 0B WA e R B Ef
BHRELRF 165 HBUILTIREANHR
ARER-T-NF-A-A®ER R
ZE-NEF-A-RUSERER A&
BERATRAREREREEENT
B mMAREANBRRUERERERE
ERANELLHETHENES I -
EERDET  LBESALARED -

RABFTEH

FEBRRANNTRIAR

RNy =]

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%®TR AREETTT
Current tax — PRC corporate ENHIRIE — PEILERER
income tax
Provision for the year FRE A 263 182
Over-provision for prior year BB FE AR B AR (8) (210)
Deferred tax (credit)/expenses EIEIRIE
Origination and reversal of temporary 4 REE 2R (ff:117)
differences (note 17) (87) 2,163
168 2,135

RN ERERAT
e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BB R M5 (@)

an\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 5B RSN + AN BESIR)
7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7. REBEZERANVFAEHR #)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and b) HEAMEFTENH AR
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: HA & 5 F A ¥ 8R -
2019 2018
—E-nE T—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBT T
Loss before taxation M EiRTE 1B (64,303) (182,796)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, B AIEENZERE -
calculated at the rates applicable LB EER
in the tax jurisdictions concerned HARAMBETE
(note (i) & (ii)) (HaE ) 2 (i) (9,189) (42,522)
Effect of non-taxable income HERBWA 22 (1) Q)
Effect of income reduction (note (iv)) W ASH A B8 2 (K15E (V) (244) 419)
Effect of non-deductible expenses EMRT E MBS 2,649 43,174
Effect of research and development — FFZEFEI S NETIB AR 2
expenses bonus deduction (note (i) (HtaE (i) (1,606) (4,307)
Tax losses not recognised RERZBIEER 8,567 6,420
Over-provision in prior year BRI FER B BEEE (8) (210)
Actual tax expense BEEMES L 168 2,135
Notes: Htet -

25 B 1) BB B A B R IR 25% 5 TE TR
EHMPBEEMEHR - SHERER
Hh o

The Group's PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC corporate income
tax at the statutory rate of 25% unless otherwise specified.

PR b BLERE R OB B R R BLE S 5
BEWRAERORITEE R ETH -

Taxation for subsidiaries in other jurisdictions is charged at the
appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in relevant jurisdictions
respectively.

BE-_Z-NAFER-FT-NF+-A
=+- EIJtEJE N [0 R AR A
MEBNESRAOEMERBER - 83X
EREEFISTR R A -

No provision was made for Hong Kong Profits Tax as the Group
did not earn any assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits
Tax during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o

B MR R M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B8

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

Notes: (Continued)

Vi.

Zhangping Kimura applied and was approved for the High and
New Technology Entities ("HNTE") qualification under the PRC
Corporate Income Tax Law and its relevant regulations during
2019, and therefore is entitled to the preferential income tax rate
of 15% for a period of three years from 2019 to 2021. The
qualification was renewed during the year and the preferential
income tax rate of 15% was then extended for a period of three
years from 2019 to 2021.

According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and its relevant
regulations, qualified research and development expenses are
subject to income tax deductions at 175% (2018: 175%) on the
amount actually incurred.

Income reduction as stated in Article 33 of the Enterprise Income
Tax Law shall refer to the treatment that where an enterprise uses
the resources stipulated in the Catalogue for Comprehensive
Utilization of Resources Qualified for Enterprise Income Tax
Preferential Treatment as its major raw materials to produce
products that are not restricted or prohibited by the State and
satisfy the relevant State and industrial criteria and only 90% of
the income derived shall be calculated in its total income.

According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and its relevant
regulations, dividends receivable by non-PRC resident corporate
investors from PRC resident enterprises are subject to withholding
income tax at 10%, unless reduced by tax treaties or
arrangements, for profits earned since 1 January 2008.

Since the Group can control the quantum and timing of
distribution of profits of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC,
deferred tax liabilities are only recognised to the extent that such
profits are expected to be distributed through dividend payment
by the Group’s PRC subsidiaries in the foreseeable future. As at 31
December 2018, temporary differences relating to the
undistributed profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries to overseas
holding company amounted to RMB259,463,000 (2018:
RMB278,746,000) and deferred tax liabilities of RMB25,946,000
(2018: RMB27,875,000) have not been recognised.

In addition to the amount charged to the other comprehensive
income, deferred tax of RMB33,000 (2018: RMB121,000) relating to
the change in fair value of the financial assets for the year ended
31 December 2019 has been credited to other comprehensive
income.

C UABEHEZTR)

7. GEBBERAMNFAEHR @

(b) =@ M=

ETE R R IR F
HA & 5 F A ¥ 8R -

fat - (%)

Vi,

EFANBER-_Z-AFREFEIE
FSBE R EERAR B L ES S
g (R i) MR E?
B MR B NFE_R_—F=F
HEEEZH 15%NEEMEHHE -

RFBEHEIDEMSEEREBRER -
AERMEMITRERELSED
175% (=T — \EF : 175%) IR FTIS 5L ©

(IR SRS T 0E) S 33 {6 P it 1) FE Rt U
ARRIEEENEREEFMAEEMRS
HEBEHIRENEREATERM
£ EE%#FE%U&T—’EJLJ‘H%A%
RATHMAMEENERIUSHRA

B 90% st AURAABFR -

RIBEFEREMEERREARER -
FHEEREEERTBERROERR
ZTE)N\F— A — B REE & T 69 &
Y i B IR 10% B Bt SR BURTEAI B - 1
TR IR MR HEVE R S Al S5 R Bl o

7 74 5 [ AT A 51| A SR [EIAE o B A
REVFE S B AR AR - EHuEE
TREASEN TR FAREAERMAR
BB BN A BB A ATE TR
EEMSHAaE R_F-NF+=A
=+—8 BAEEDEHBERFARD
EMBEEEIMERARABNERZR
A AR M259,463,0007T( =& — )\ :
AR 278,746,000 7T) FIRIET IR & (&
AR 25946000 (=2 —\F : AR
# 27,875,000 7T ) AR HEA

BREFAEMEEREHSEIN  HEZ
T-NEF+-A=t—BLFEEBES
MEEATFEEPHNETCHBEARE
33,0007T(=F—/\F : AR#¥ 121,000
7o) BRt AR A AR AU o

TREMERERAE
—E-NEFFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
T A BTSRRI EE (B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBETIN  AARESITR)

8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 8. EEEHM
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of RIEBRB R EHEDISE383() BT A A (R
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the EENTER)ROE2HEERE  EF
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of FER ¢

Directors) Regulation is as follows:

2019
- 2 182
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and henefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind honuses contributions Total
RN 1Y
£ 30k Endg WL EHRER #xt

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
N A AERTFT ABBTT AR®TT AR®TFT

Executive directors BiTEE

Wu Zheyan REE 1,280 52 - 4 1,336

Xie Qingmei ENES 57 1 4 - 62
77777 1,337 53 4 4 1,398

Non-executive director FUTER

Wu Dongping RET 144 - 12 - 156

Independent non-executive directors BIkNTESR

Lam Hin Chi EEB 106 o - - 106

JinZhongwei $EAR 106 - - - 106

SuWengiang By 106 - - - 106

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, ol - 5 Ay

1799 53 16 4 1,872
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AT E B TS R R MY E T (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( A BT

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

C UABEHEZTR)

8. EEHFM»)

2018
“F-)\E
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees inkind bonuses  contributions Total
B4 BER
E208 ENAlE BERT  BRGHEIER b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT AEEFT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Executive directors HiEE

Wu Zheyan REZ 738 4 31 4 777

Xie Qingmei HEx 47 1 9 - 57

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, L . R SR o

Non-executive director FUTEE

Wu Dongping RRY 143 - 1 - 154

Independent non-executive directors BUkHTES

Lam Hin Chi EEE 100 - - _ 10

JinZhongwei 2ER 102 - - - 102

SuWengiang £y e 102 - - - 102

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, T
1,234 5 51 4 1,29

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, there REEZ_ZE-NLFR=ZZE—-NF+=A

were no amounts paid or payable by the Group to the directors ST-BLFE AEBRHEAESHT

or any of the highest paid individuals set out in note 9 below as SRS R 9 FAT 0 £ 1) 8% = 6 A - 32 A+ 3

Ed s > I At
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as FERHERISR - 1R/RIR 5|55 B A R E

compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement
under which a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the years ended 31 December 2019 and

2018.

RN MBAREERNES - RIERRERM
E-RBE_FT-NFR-F-N\F+=
A=Z+—HILFE  EEHERBEMNR
BEMERRBERET AN -

RN ERERAT
e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 G551 -

BB ERRW T @

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2018:
two) are directors for the year ended 31 December 2019,
whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of

KA BRHESIR)

REHMA L

BE_T—
haEERFMALS

NWE+=—A=+—B8LFE -
THR(ZE—NF

TRIREFR RENFMNMESHE

the emoluments in respect of the other three (2018: three) BTIZZ(ZE—N\F: =ZF) ATH
individuals are as follows: FEEE N
2019 2018
—E-nE —N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥®TT AREEF T
Salaries and other emoluments e K H A B 425 573
Discretionary bonuses E’]l TE4T 38 27
Retirement scheme contributions RKET 2 6 17
469 617
The emoluments of the three individuals (2018: three =R (ZE-N\F: ZR)EeFMHALY
individuals) with the highest emoluments are within the BN ?T’i‘Ji@s
following bands:
2019 2018
—E-nE —)\F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AB ANEL
Nil to RMB1,000,000 == AR% 1,000,00070 3 3
3 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A e IS R I A ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 BTSN » LUAREEZITR)

10. LOSS PER SHARE 10. ’EFHQE?E

The calculation of basic and dilute loss per share for the year
ended 31 December 2019 is based on the loss attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company of RMB64,471,000 (2018:
RMB184,931,000) and weighted average of 617,667,000 shares
(2018: 617,667,000 shares adjusted for the effect of the share
consolidation on 22 October 2019) in issue during the year
ended 31 December 2019, calculated as follows:

HEZZ-NF+-A=1+—HILFEN
Hﬁ%$&?§ﬁ>§)§ﬁ?ﬁﬂ?ﬁ@i_§*ﬂ¢
TTAZt—BILEFENRAREREEE
ANE(REB AR 64,471,000 (ZF— )\
F . AR#184,931,0007T) " U REE =
T-NF+ZA=+—BLEFEN
617,667,000 % B B 1TIR M (=T — J\&F -
617,667,000 BRI 1ZIK = ZF — L F + A
ZTZAZRHEN 2 ERE) RINET
HEHE - HFWT -

Number of share

Ein® A
2019 2018
ZE-hF —EN\E
‘000 ‘000
T TR
(Restated)
(f&E5))
Weighted average number of ordinary THEIREAR RESEEE
shares for the purpose of basic and S B @A hnAE T 19 &
diluted loss per share 617,667 617,667

Weighted average of 617,667,000 shares for the year ended 31
December 2019 and 2018 (restated) are derived from
3,088,335,000 ordinary shares in issue as at 1 January 2018
after taking into account the effects of the share consolidation
which was effective on 22 October 2019.

HE-_Z-—NWFR-ZFE—-NF+=A
ST —BIEFEEESI) 2 nEFHR’RE
617,667,000k 2ER = — \F—HA—H
2 B 317 R% 1) 3,088,335,000 i B 5T K A =
T-NF+AZ+—ARERZBRMHE G
SBFTETH -

PRENERARAT
—E-NEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BB R M5 (@)

A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fx S EETRIN + AARKEZITR)
e N
11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 1. 1% BERRZRE
Furniture,
Leasehold  Plantand fittings and Motor Construction Right-of-
Buildings improvement  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Subtotal  use asset Total
HE & KB
[ NRRE RERES R RE ERIE Pt EREEE @it
RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR®TT ARWTT ARRTRT ARRTR AERTRT ARMTRT ARRTRT ARRTR AERTR
cosT BE:
At 1 January 2018 RZ%-0\¥-F-A 520478 5839 135,309 6,274 8,057 59,972 735929 - 735929
Additions RE - 6 2026 2 2852 15,096 20,006 - 20,006
Disposals firf 3 - - (12,052) (209) (1,165) - (13,426) - (13,426)
Transfers i 40,493 - 5136 61 - (45,690) - - -
At 31 December 2018 and RZB-\¥+ZB=+-H
1 January 2019 R=-Z-n%-RA-H 560971 5845 130,419 6,152 9,744 29,378 742,509 - 742,509
Adoption of IFRS 16 RPERHBREEAE 65 - - - - - - - 83,561 83,561
At 1 January 2019 RZB-n%-RA-H
(restated) (BES) 560,971 5,845 130,419 6,152 9,744 29378 742,509 83,561 826,070
Additions WE - - 4,140 1 3449 6,194 13,784 - 13784
Disposals it - - (228) (100) (3,660) - (3,988) - (3,988)
Transfers E 5878 - 902 - - (6,780) - - -
Exchange alignment EXBE - 3 - - - - 3 8 1
At 31 December 2019 R-EB-n%+-B=+-H 566,849 5848 135,233 6,053 9,533 28,792 752,308 83,569 835,877
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Rt RH{E :
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-N\%-B-A 46,207 5732 42,517 4231 6,073 - 104,760 - 104,760
Charge for the year FRZH 20423 84 1,762 546 918 - 33733 - 33733
Elimination on disposals R SRS - - (7,005) (15¢) (1,090) - (8251) - 8,251)
Impairment losses REEE 142,690 - 6995 145 23 - 150,073 - 150,073
At 31 December 2018 and RZ$-N\F+ZA=+-B
1 January 2019 R-2-A%-A-H 209,320 5816 54,269 4,766 6,144 - 280,315 - 280,315
Adoption of IFRS 16 BREABHEREENS 165 - - - - - - - 38002 38,002
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-71%¥-F-A
(restated) (#E7) 209,320 5816 54,269 4766 6144 - 280315 3,002 318317
Charge for the year FRXI 9,544 29 10753 454 m - 21557 1167 22,724
Elimination on disposals A E RS - - (147) (83) (1,367) - (1,602) - (1,602)
Impairment loss REEE - - 17 - ¥ - 216 42 638
Exchange alignment EHER - 3 - - - N 3 3 6
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-AE+ZA=+-H 218,864 5848 65,052 5132 5593 - 300,489 39,594 340,083
NET BOOK VALUE REPE:
At 31 December 2019 R-B-AF+-A=1+-H 347,985 - 70,181 N 3940 28,792 451,819 43975 495,794
At 31 December 2018 R-2-\E+-B=+-H 351,651 29 76,150 1,386 3,600 29,378 462,194 - 462,194
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
& B 1% 2% MY 5T (4

mﬂ‘
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBEIETIN - UAREST)
11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 1. 1% BERRZRE®

(Continued)

The net book value of construction in progress consists of an
amount of RMB15,694,000 (2018: RMB15,392,000) relating to
the Group’s new manufacturing complex which will be
depreciated once the property is complete and available for
use. The estimated cost to completion of the property, and to
which the Group is contractually committed, is RMB48,660,000
(2018: RMB48,660,000).

Buildings which are held for own use are situated in the PRC.
At 31 December 2019, buildings with net book value of
RMB108,102,000 (2018: RMB59,631,000) were pledged to banks
for certain banking facilities granted to the Group (see note 24).

At 31 December 2018, plant and machinery with net book
value of RMB59,029,000 and construction in progress with net
book value of RMB4,757,000 were pledged to a bank for certain
banking facilities granted to the Group. These two pledged
assets were released during the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, two of the subsidiaries
of the Group were subjected to impairment review. An
impairment loss of RMB638,000 (2018: net impairment loss of
RMB139,251,000 after netting off of deferred income at
RMB16,038,000) was recognised in other net loss to write the
carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment down to
its recoverable amount of RMB495,794,000 (2018:
RMB462,194,000).

FERIRZERFERSARE15694,000
T(ZZT—\F: AR15392,0007T)
MAEECHEERWAR  ZPWERT
WAl REGITE - REBITAAEZ
) 2R TR AR /3 A R 85 48,660,000 7T
(ZZ—N\F : AR¥48,660,0007T) °

URPBEZEBFHEEER -RZT—N
F+-A=Z+—B EREFEAARKE
108,102,000t( = ZF — N F: AR
wonmmwz$ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ7v¢%$
SEERNE TIRTRERE ZER (R
FX24) °

WZZ—NE+-A=+—H8 EEFE
AR ¥ 59,029,000 7T 2 B M 82 & Bk T
SFEA R 4,757,000 T B TE &2 T2 B K
TIRT - EATEEERNE TRITEE
BMEZEM - aMECEEEECHRER
BRBR o

HE-ZT-NF+ZA=T—RHIEFE "
AREBEPREHE AR EETRER
BIEEEARKE638,000T(ZF— )\ :
HIBR IR T WA A R 85 16,038,000 7T 14 75 8
B 518 139,251,000 7T ) 7 £ 4t Uy 55 K B5 18
PR AKWE - BRER&EHREAEMY
R E AU £ 58 AR 495,794,000 (=
T— \4F : 462,194,0007T) °

R RA A
B NETH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR A IS R I A ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B RIN » AN EREEFIR)

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11.
(Continued)

The recoverable amount was based on the fair value less cost

ME - BEKSE®

AR EeENELERBEREYE  BE

of disposal of the property, plant and equipment estimated by
reference to the market value for the existing use of the
property, plant and equipment and the costs to reproduce or
replace in new condition the property, plant and equipment
being valued in accordance with current construction costs for
similar property, plant and equipment, with allowance for
accrued depreciation as evidenced by observed condition or
obsolescence present, whether arising from physical,
functional or economic causes. The fair value less cost of
disposal of the property, plant and equipment is classified as a
level 3 measurement.

RBRBEHZMSERBZME  BE R
RERFRATERHEHEE Z (AEKX
AURFERLEDE - BB RRBERA
et WREINBR B A BR Z RIS REM
SRR RSME - TR A E T 2 BRE)
P& Z FERTATE - Ai@ﬁ%% i
RBZHERADBRFE=NE -

Right-of-use assets EAEEE
Leased Land use
properties rights Total
HEME T it {E 4 #agt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TT AR#®TR
At 1 January 2019 359 45,200 45,547
Amortisation (150) (1,017) (1,167)
Impairment loss - (422) (422)
Exchange alignment 5 - 5
At 31 December 2019 214 43,761 43,975

At 31 December 2019, land use rights with an aggregate
carrying amount of RMB18,376,000 (2018: RMB19,200,000)
were pledged as securities for certain banking facilities granted
to the Group (see note 24).

T-NF+ZA=+—H0 FHEHLE
J%AEM1837600075(_7 NE - AR
#19,200,000 7T) B T i B IECAEARE T
REBMAETRITHENERR (R
24) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS R R I A (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBERI  AAREZITR)

12. LEASE PREPAYMENTS

12.

HEREMAR
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBETT

Cost: B
At 1 January n—H—H 83,202 83,202
Adoption of IFRS 16 BB B R S 2E RIS 16 9% (83,202) -
At 1 January (restated) and R+ZA=+—H

at 31 December - 83,202
Accumulated amortisation ReHEMRRE :

and impairment:
At 1 January wn—A—H 38,002 7,888
Adoption of IFRS 16 FRANBI R B S RS YE RSB 16 5% (38,002) -
At 1 January (restated) R+-—A=+—H - 7,888
Charge for the year FRZH - 1,635
Impairment losses RIEEE - 28,479
At 31 December R+-_A=+—H = 38,002
Net book value: IRERE :
At 31 December ®w+-A=+—~H - 45,200
Represented hy: Bp :
Current portion BNEAES 5 = 1,017
Non-current portion JERNEREL & - 44,183

- 45,200

The lease prepayments represent costs of obtaining the land
use rights in respect of land located in the PRC and the
capitalised costs relating to dredging and leveling of land. The
carrying amount as at 1 January 2019 was restated and
transferred to property, plant and equipment (note 11) in
accordance with the adoption of IFRS 16.

AEEMNREESMRPEMN L i
FREAKRA  ARERBMFELE
Eﬁ%i§$1tﬂ$ AR B B R B 755 3 45 22 )
FIHRORN N2 NF—A—AH
REAECENVEBEEDE  BEREE
(BFEETT) ©

PRENERARAT
—E-NEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NN IR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBIETIN - UAREST)

13. NON-CURRENT PREPAYMENTS FOR
ACQUISITIONS OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

The amount mainly represented prepayments for construction
in progress and plant and machinery. An analysis of non-
current prepayments for acquisitions of property, plant and
equipment is as follows:

13.

WREYI X - BB R REHIFERD
TR K

ZEBRIBRERIRRETRMNR W
BYE  BE &R EHIFNREN RO
LU

2019 2018
—E-nE —F-)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBET T

Prepayment for construction of sk S BUEM ) FERT R
manufacturing complex 9,031 9,031
Prepayment for other constructions and ~ EAZEURME  BER
property, plant and equipment HERTEAR 2,043 5,298
11,074 14,329

14. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

2019 2018
—B-hE —ZE-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Share of net assets E(hEEFE

15,666 24,716
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
T A BTSRRI EE (8

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBERI  AAREZITR)

14. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 14. REBEER ﬂ*gﬁﬁ(ﬁ)

Details of the Group's interests in the associates are as follows: REEREE QRSB T

Proportion of
ownership interest

FrAEERLL)
Place of Group's
establishment effective Held by
Name of associate and operation interest subsidiaries Principal activity
FHRED
BENTEE B REEHE ERER aMBLRRE XEED
Jiangxi Lvyuan Trading Co., Ltd. The PRC 45% 45% Trading of imported
(“Lvyuan”) H timber
IFAGRESBRAF ([4R]) BEE#EOAMN
Longyan Deliyuan Biomass Energy The PRC 45% 45% Research & development
Co., Ltd. (“Deliyuan”) i and sales of biomass
EEmMSHREMERERAR energy
([15FDRD) EMERREIFEREE
Fujian Longyan Zhangping Weston Wood The PRC 45% 45% Manufacture and sale of
Component and Material Company i wooden products
Limited (“Weston Wood") AREMBERHE

BRAEETETREARETH
ERAT ((BEFE)

HRIAEYERBRD A
Zenezn 101
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR A IS R I A ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575

14. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

On 31 October 2019, Xiamen zhonglisheng Trading Co., Ltd.
("Zhonglisheng”), an associate of the Group with 45% effective
interest, was de-registered resulting in loss on write off of
interest in an associate of RMB456,000 (note 5(b)).

C UAABRHEZTR)

14.

REEE DTSR 2)
R-E—hFE+A=+—8 ~EEHE
B E245% 2 A AT EFRFBE S
BEAT(RFE]) DN SBEE—
TR % 2 ) 4B 25 65 18 A R #5456,0007T (P
FE5(0)) °

Lvyuan, Deliyuan and Weston Wood are accounted for using AR~ BAIR - BATER RS B RE N
the equity method in the consolidated financial statements. RAESEANK -
summary of financial information of the associates: SBARRNABARRE :
Lvyuan Deliyuan Zhonglisheng Weston Wood
#iF @5 B B
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-0E “E)\E ZB-Af —ET)\F ZEB-AE —2)\F ZE-AF —T)\E
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB'000  RMB'000
AERTRE ARETT AEMTR ARETT ARRTR AEETT ARWTR AR%T:E
Non-current assets FraiE - - - N/A 2,527 3467
Current assets REEE 5441 5872 9,985 9,986 N/A 10,019 8,531 13,874
Non-current liabilities FRBaE - - - - N/A - - -
Current liabilities RHAE - (186) (1) (1) N/A (15 (6,049)  (13404)
Net assets BEFE 5441 5,686 9,984 9,985 N/A 10,004 5,009 3,937
Reconciliation to the Group's E2AE BN E& 7]
interests in associates: B8R
Group's share of net assets R EE {5 H4 A A
of the associates BEFE 2,448 2,559 4,493 4,493 N/A 4,502 2,254 1,172
Revenue A 230 1,606 = - N/A - 44,617 47,464
Profit or loss from BECEN(ER)/
continuing operations eyl (243) (355) (1) (1) N/A 2) 1,075 810
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e

B TR T (E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBERI  AAREZITR)

15. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

HttemEE
2019 2018
—E—-hE —2-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

Equity instruments measured

at FVOCI (note a, b) AT A (ffita, b)

A B AR 2 E a2

3,048 3,267

@

The above financial assets represent investment in equity
securities of a PRC local bank in Zhangping City, Fujian
Province. The Group holds 5.0% of equity interest in the
PRC local bank.

The equity investment was irrevocably designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income as the Group
considers these investments to be strategic in nature.

The dividend income received related to the equity
securities not included in the table above for the year
ended 31 December 2019 was RMB532,000 (2018:
RMB461,000).

biiemEERRPERBEREETH
HWITIRITH B ANE HILE

RRAHLE T AR E AR T AR AT
BFf AREMEZEERIIE  RESA
SER/ZEEEBREILE

B A BRI IR B A B
ARMES32,000T(ZFE—N\F : AR
#461,0007T) @ WARFTA EXEHE=
T-NEF+-A=+—HLEFENR

f -

RN ERERAT
e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS R R I A (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBETIN  AARESITR)

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16.

Details of the subsidiaries are set out below. The class of
shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

RETE QB R
E@W%“ﬂm%FﬁWmT CEEL
B5h - B AR AL

Attributable equity
interest held by
the Company
Place and date of Particulars of b YNt
incorporation/ issued and paid up/ 313
Name of company establishment registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
30T g BRTRBERT/
LFER HERAH EME RS EE ME IEEH
Green Oceans Investment The British Virgin 10 shares of 100% - Investment holding
Holdings Limited Islands (“BVI") USD1 each
7 November 2011
Green Oceans Investment Holdings ~ EBELEE 10RER1ETHRN RERR
Limited (EBRRES])
—E2——451+—-AtH
King Wood (Hong Kong) Hong Kong 10,000 shares of - 100%  Sales of outdoor
Holding Limited 5 August 2010 HKD1 each wooden products
R (B BRERAR BE 10,000 5% HEPIER
—2-Z5)\ATA BiR1ETARKN
Fujian Zhangping Kimura Forestry ~ The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Manufacturing and sales
Products Co., Ltd. 17 December 1995 RMB600,000,000 of outdoor wooden
(notes (i) and (iii)) products
BEERIANMEBRAT HE AR EERHEPIRER
(Wi ) & iip) “AARE+ZATEE  ARE380,000,0007
Merry Garden (Shanghai) Household  The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Retail sales of outdoor
Co., Ltd. (notes (i) and (iif) 24 February 2012 RMB1,000,000 wooden products
through self-operated
retail shops
ZEFRE (LB FEBRAA HE AR BREETEETE
(R () & (i) “E-CEZAZTMA ARE1,0000007 PIRER
Merry Garden (Xiamen) Household ~ The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Retail sales of outdoor
Co., Ltd. (notes (i) and (iif) 14 November 2012 RMB5,000,000 wooden products
through self-operated
retail shops
ZEZFR(EFN)REERAF HE AR BREETEETE
(Hraz (i) & (i) ZE-ZF+-ATmA  ARKES5000,0007T PIVRER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
T A BTSRRI EE (8

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBERI  AAREZITR)

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. RIB AR RER (&)
Attributable equity
interest held by
the Company
Place and date of Particulars of b I
incorporation/ issued and paid up/ 313
Name of company establishment registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
e AL B BRTRBEEST/
LFER RO HEMEF RS B ME IEEH
Zhangping Merry Garden Import and The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Trading of timber and
Export Co. Ltd. ("MG Import and 27 February 2013 RMB30,000,000 sales of outdoor
Export”) (notes (i) and (iif) wooden products
BEMEBREELOERAR HE ERIEEN AMESREERIH
((ZBZE#HO]) ZE-Z¥-A-+tB AKRE30,000,0007 REm
(Wi (i) & (i)
Merry Garden Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1 share of - 100%  Investment holding
(note (v)) 3 August 2016 HKD1 each
ZEREERBRBRAA Bk 1RER BTN REER
(Wt () —Z-~%N\A=A
Zhangping Merry Garden Biomass  The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Manufacturing and sales
Energy Development Ltd. 31 March 2014 RMB20,000,000 of renewable energy
(notes (i) and (iv)) products
BImEBREENERR HE FER FERHERE
BEERAR(WH L) “E-mF=A=t-H  AR¥30,000,0007 AR E m
Unicreed Holdings Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of - 100%  Investment holding
20 January 2011 HKD1 each
BRASSEBRAR Bk 10,000 5% REER

“E——%—-A=+H R 5,653.39 78 LRI (7

Unicreed industry & trade Co., Ltd.  The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Manufacturing and sales
{formerly known as Unicreed 10 June 2011 USD7,850,000 of outdoor wooden
(China) Electronics Company products
Limited) (notes (i) and (i)

BNREITEAR A HE FER EERHEETER
(AIEHNRE (FE)EF T4 ATH 7,850,000 ¢

BRDE) (W () % i)

RN ERERAT
e
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k55 R5)

B MR R M ()

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

On 8 March 2019, the Company’s subsidiary, Green Oceans
Investment Holdings Limited, transferred all shareholding in
Merry Garden Biomass Energy Holdings Limited to a third party
for cash consideration of HK$10,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB9,000). Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
amounting to RMB17,000 was recognised (note 27).

On 30 September 2019, the Administration for Industry and
Ccommerce of Zhangping approved the liquidation of Zhangping
Kimura Merry Garden Wooden Structure Design and Installation
Co., Ltd., an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

Notes:

(i) These entities are wholly foreign-owned enterprises established in the
PRC.

(i) These entities are limited liability companies established in the PRC and
are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Zhangping Kimura.

(iii) The English translation of the company names is for reference only. The
official names of these companies are in Chinese.

(iv) This entity is a limited liability company established in the PRC and is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of MG Import and Export.

(V) This entity is a limited liability company established in Hong Kong and is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of King Wood (Hong Kong) Holding Limited.

C UAABRHEZTR)

16.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R B AR AR (2)
—hF=ANE  ARFZHBA
Al Green Oceans Investment Holdings
LimitedEDAiﬁ/fﬁ{E;‘%ﬁ%m 000 T (HE&
A #) A R 9,000t ) $ 3#Merry Garden
Biomass Energy Holdings Limited Z £ & &
BY—B=h UVEBRLEWMBARZ

Ugzs AR EE 17,000 7T (3£ 27) o

BYMIATREERR -ZE—NFNA
ZtAREREARAZHEEZEFAR
BEFANEBIEEAGBRIALEARA
Gl

et

0] ZERBANTBK NI EBERSE -

(ii) ZEERRNFERINERA R REFANE
2EMBAT -

RMEEREERSE  HEARREUS

(iii) AN

(v  ZEBA—HNTBERIZERARTEAEER
EfH AN EHERR

() ZEERANBERLMNER AR RAN(FE)
ERERABHEZEMB AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

/\‘/T\

(@)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Br5 G RN UAREEZTR)
17. DEFERRED TAXATION 17. EEFIE
Deferred tax assets and liabilities @ EMRANELEHREEE X
recognised =N
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) FARGEE P BRAERPEERRE
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial ERIBEE,(BE) S RESH0
position and the movements during the year are as ™
follows:
Fair value
adjustments
Unrealised of equity
gain/loss on PRC investment
Unrealised derivative dividend Impairment  through other
Deferred profits on financial  withholding Interest under  comprehensive
income inventories  instruments tax capitalisation ECL model income Total
fiEam HARH2ERA
R IAMFER FERR Filifas HREREY
BERA FEREH KR/ (BR) FfR feEst EREREE ATEHE #it
RVB00 RMBO0D RVBO0) RMBO0D RVBO0) RMB00D RMBO0) RMBO0D
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT AREFT ARETT
Deferred tax arising from: ~ BERERE :
At 1 January 2018 R=5-\5-F-H 4301 5 1678 (1,707) (3,889) - - 38
Effect of adoption of IFRS 9 RREREBREER
9528 - - - - - 871 (23) 634
At 1 January 2018 (restatec) RZE-N\§-A-H
(7)) 4301 5 1678 (1,707 (3889) 871 (237) 102
(Charged)/credited to profit (MBe)/FAERR
orloss (note 73) (Hit7) (4,301) 6 (1,70¢) - 3889 ] - 2163
Credited to other comprehensive 3t AE 2 ERA
income - - - - - - 11 2
At 31 December 2018 RZB-N\E
+ZA=+-A - - ) (1707 - 81 (116) (100
At 1 January 2019 RZF-NE-A-B - - (28) (1,707 - 831 (116) 1,020
Credited to profit or loss HAERR
(note 7(a) (Wit7g) - - & - - - - &
Credted to other comprenensive  2f AEH2EMA
income - - - - - - k¢! 3
At 31 December 2019 Z2-0E
+ZA=+-A - - 5 (1,707) - 831 83 (900)

B FEHRRW T @

HRIAEYERBRD A
—E-NEFFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
T A BTSRRI EE (B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBETIN  AARESITR)

17. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 17. EERIE (2)
(a) Deferred tax assets and liabilities b)) EEZRHELEHIEBEEE &
recognised (continued) BEw@)
Reconciliation to consolidated statement of financial REEMEMRRRPEHENT ¢
position:
2019 2018
—E—-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Net deferred tax asset recognised in R 4R 4 BI SRR & P R
the consolidated statement of EERIBEEFE
financial position 890 831
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised 744 BTSN X P #ERE
in the consolidated statement of EERIBEEFE
financial position (1,790) (1,851)
(900) (1,020)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities not b) AERNELERIBEE K
recognised BfE
A deferred tax asset has not been recognised for the TR IS E R RER
following:
2019 2018
—E—-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTT AREEF T
Unused tax losses: REATBEE
At 1 January n—A—H 74,025 48,345
Unused tax losses recognised, net EHRZ ABBRIBEERFHE 56,147 25,680
At 31 December Rt+-—A=+—H 130,172 74,025
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS R R I A (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBERI  AAREZITR)

17. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities not
recognised (continued)

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
certain unused tax losses due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. The unused tax losses will expire in
1 to 5 years. The deductible temporary differences can
be carried forward indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

17. EEFIE (&)
b) RAEZHELEHIBEEEKR
BEw@
B AR SRR R B0 R AT T+ Rt
FEER LSR5 AR A BB
TEEE o REAHOBURIERIEE -5
CEPQPIEY o AT BB 4 2 AT A
R R4S o TR A AT A7 FE AR Y
S I S AT N R 2 R -
R bt 4 7 Bt bt 55 A S0 0 M
REMEEMBREE °

18. INVENTORIES 18. &
(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement @ REETBRAEXRFNE

of financial position comprise: BEIE
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TRT ARMTFT
Raw materials YRR 140,321 165,793
Work in progress EE R 22,599 34,915
Finished goods 2K 62,486 144,779
225,406 345,487

A provision of RMB3,254,000 made in prior years against

REFHREX R EMEERZBEBAR

the carrying value of finished goods have been reversed. # 3,254,000 T BB - ZEEEANFERN
This reversal arose due to the sales of impaired finished &R ER K RATE o
goods during the year.

RREYIERERAT

e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
T A BTSRRI EE (B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBETIN  AARESITR)

18. INVENTORIES (continued) 18. & #)
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories b)) EEREAZIGTAER
recognised as an expense and included in WEFEEEITWT

profit or loss is as follows:

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Carrying amount of inventories sold 2 &7 &M EEE 685,428 566,161
19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. ES R HAMEWRFIE
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Trade receivables B EEWEIA R EWEE 108,095 120,761

Trade receivables from associates JEUEE 2 N RN B 5 508 92 9,246
Less: Loss allowance B IR (20,893) (8,119
Total trade receivables B 5 REWEIEEEE 87,294 121,888
Prepayment for raw materials R BT 3K 47,267 71,134
Derivative financial instruments (note 33 (f) $7£4£ @ T & (K153 33(1)) 310 2,736
Amount due from a related company FEU AR A B 2hE

(note 31(c)) (Kta£31(c)) 71 71

Amounts due from associates FEURES & R B FRIA 5 1,973
Amount due from a director e — B EEFIE = 30
Other receivables H e U TR IE 11,369 18,326
Less: Loss allowance B B (385) (385)
Total other receivables H it fE U kB 4B 5 58,637 93,885
Trade and other receivables B 5 I E At E Uk FR A 145,931 215,773
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AT E B TS R R MY E T (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBERI  AAREZITR)

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continved)  19. B2 R H I EWFRIE ()

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

Financial assets at amortised cost represent the wealth
management products acquired from the banks to hold for
collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost.

Amounts due from a related company and associates are
interest free, unsecured and repayable on demand.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on invoice date
and net of loss allowances as of the end of reporting period, is
as follows:

HEEBE R S A RYGERR —F R
WEIHHERBFHX

DEHBRRAGTENEREERBIIRTE
BURBUREARRERENEN Em -
HhEeReREERRETSMAEH
o ABEBREX ARG E o

ER—REERR LB ERRFA/RE

BRI LR ERIEE

RBERR  REZBBMYNREIERE
B ZRUGEREK OMAT -

2019 2018

—E—-hE —ZE-)N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT AREEF T

Within 1 month 1MEAMR 49,821 45,592
1to 2 months 1E21@A 14,185 25,581
2 to 3 months 2Z= 3@ A 9,516 6,562
Over 3 months 3MEALA L 13,772 44,153
87,294 121,888

Trade receivables are normally due within 90 days to 180 days
from the date of billing. Further details of the Group's credit

B 5 RUWHIE— R AR R HEE 90
BE1B0EANEIH - AEEEEBRA#E

policy are set out in note 33(a). — B IBEEF M EE 33(a)
The Group recognised impairment loss based on the 7N 52 EAR 4 B 5 2(m) (i) BT il 89 & 5T IR 3R B
accounting policy stated in Note 2(m)(i). YRR =N

R AEYEREIRA E

—E-NEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
/\\/T\ ﬁﬂv—’% $&i§ IzﬁL III_II_ ,.,\

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B G RN UAREEZTR)

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)  19. B 5 & H it FEUFKIE (4)

The below table reconciled the impairment losses of trade FNE 5 K H Ath & YR IE R B 5 18 ¥ BR a0
receivables for the year: K
Amount
tue from a Amounts
Trade related due from Other
receivables company  associates  receivables Total
il i 4
EARERE RHRARSRE BRELRRE  EHEERE it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETR ANRBTT ARETR ARETR

Balance at 31 December 2017 under 1RIEER &EER|E 395
IAS 39 R-E—+&
T A=t-BfNEs 3493 - - - 3493

Impact of initial application of IFRS 9 & /% e FA Bl Bt R 5 £ A
FORMETE 3578 2 3 786 4,369

Balanceat 1 January 2018 under  IRIFEIRE KRS REIZ 9%
IFRS 9 RZE-N\E-A—AH
B4 7,071 2 3 786 7.862

Impairment losses recognised FREEDRESR
during the year 1,048 - 3 (403) 642

At 31 December 2018 RZE-\F
+-A=1-8 8,119 2 - 383 8,504

Impairment losses recognised FNERTHETER
during the year, net 12,774 - - - 12,774

At 31 December 2019 RZE-n&E
+-A=1-8 20,893 2 - 383 21,278
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( A BT

19.

20.

21.

BRI T

C UABEHEZTR)

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continves) 19. E5 R EMEWFRIE &)
The following significant increase in trade receivables past due HARBEI90 R A |2 B 5 UK K12 3 AN
over 90 days contributed to the increase in the net loss BYEE_T-NFT_A=+T—HIF
allowance amounting to RMB12,774,000 during the year ended EMFEEEEEE NE ARK12,774,000
31 December 2019. JC °
In determining the ECL for other receivables, the Group has TETETE A JE MR TR BRE R IR K - K
made individual assessment on the recoverability of other EERBESLERRE - UELEBTAIE
receivable based on historical settlement records, past B L H Aty R UK AT U Bl 1T T B
experience and forward-looking information. The Group BREE o NEBERABE N EMEY A E
considers the consistently low recoverability of other WR—ERIE - BHMIFE33@ R ryTEE
receivables during the year resulting in increase of expected KEEFo
loss rates in note 33(a).
PLEDGED DEPOSITS 20. 2EFEFER
Pledged deposits with banks have been placed as security for IR FIRITNFACE AERITR A S E 3%
banking facilities issued by banks to the Group (see note 24). HERTTREE R (R 24) -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21. iﬁ%&ﬁ%gﬁw
(@) Cash and cash equivalents in the ) ﬁﬁzr“ﬂj: WE & =)
consolidated statement of financial EE EMEXRANIR S KR
position and consolidated cash flow SEHEEMEIE
Statement comprise:
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBFIT
Deposits with banks and other RIT R E M &7
financial institutions HEER 30,000 6,846
Cash at banks and in hand HITRFERS 46,024 31,154
76,024 38,000

At 31 December 2019, cash and cash equivalents in the
amount of RMB22,318,000 (2018: RMB27,462,000) are
denominated in RMB and are deposited in the PRC in the
ordinary course of business. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency and the remittance of funds out of

Z—-NE+-A=+—8 A%
AR #22318000 (=T — N\ 5 :
ANR#27,462,00070) MIE & RIS
LEWIIAAREE  WHRATE
HRBPFHAFE - ARBITIER

. . . BERAIBHEE  HHhEELESE
the PRC is subject to the relevant rules and regulations of -
| : & e BT AR A 0SB 2 5 ) R e
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
FRPTBR & o
government.
RREYIERERAT

—E-NEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR E B TS R R MY E T (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBIETIN - UAREST)

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continuea) 21. RERBAEEEN @)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to AT 355 | B 4 A% e gk
cash generated from operations: ©) Hmﬁ J i M| SR AE BT PR

BIR e ¥R
2019 2018
—E-nE —Z2-N\F
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
Wiz AR®BTRT ARETT
Loss before taxation PR R B 1R (64,303) (182,796)
Adjustments for: AT EIBEH %
Interest expense on bank RITERRESHFE
borrowings and debenture é(a) 1,802 8,895
Interest expense on lease liability HEABHNHE é() 13 -
Depreciation of property, plant mE - BER
and equipment BEHNTE é(c) 21,557 33,733
Depreciation of land use right included BETEFRAEEED
within right-of-use assets THE R ITE 6(c) 1,017 -
Depreciation of leased properties BREEGAEEEN
included within right-of-use assets HEWME TE é(c) 150 -
Amortisation of lease prepayments THETB é(c) = 1,635
Amortisation of deferred income B AEE = (1,163)
Changes in fair value of derivative ﬁié@ﬂlﬂ
financial instruments NEEEE) 5(b) 579 (190)
Interest income SN ON 5(@) (347) (797)
Dividend income BB WA 5() (531) (461)
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of HEME  BER
property, plant and equipment HEWE TR 5(b) 1,825 (1
Share of profits of associates, JEIGEEE D RRT -
net of tax N%RFIE (401) (282)
Impairment 10sses on property, ME - HE R
plant and equipment XERE 638 139,251
Impairment losses on lease prepayments 8 &8 2R EE R = 23,263
Expected credit loss on financial assets CREEEH
EEEE 12,774 642
Provision for impairment loss FERERE
on inventories 4,495 -
Provision for onerous contracts J‘éﬂ@/\ B 293 -
Write-off of interest in an associate Nl NEILEa Z%ﬁﬁ 456 -
Write-off of payables and amount }f H K% A
due to a related company UNCIWE 6= (493) -
Changes in working capital: HEEGEY
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD,/(Em) 115,586 (14,369)
Decrease/(increase) in trade 25 K E WA
and other receivables m/ (&) 54,642 2,131)
Decrease in trade 25 R EMERNFIAR
and other payables /W/J\ (1,494) (4,432)
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilites ~ &#BE&CRL ),/ (18,847) 23,133
Cash generated from operations REHIKFTSIRE 129,411 23,930
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

B MR R M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B8

C UABEHEZTR)

22. ESREMENRE

2019 2018
—E-hE —F—)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFIT

Trade payables =) AN 13,039 12,018

Amounts due to associates ARL A NCIE O 14,281 23,276

Derivative financial instruments (note i) PTHESRT A (MWL) 699 2,546

Amount due to a director N —REEHRIE 13 12

Amount due to a related company JE 15T BAESE A Bl 5RIE

(note 31(c)) (H13£31(c)) = 283

Other payables and accruals (note i) Hin e IB N EETE A

(Btazii) 16,806 19,165
44,838 57,300
Note: HiaE -
At 31 December 2019, the Group has foreign currency forward contracts T-NF+-—A=+—H0 &%
with their fair values recognised as derivative financial instruments BHRANESGH(ERAABEDER
(liabilities) of RMB699,000 (2018: RMB2,546,000). The changes in fair value EMEemIAE(AE)) ARK
of the foreign currency forward contracts are recognised in the 699,000t —FE— NF: AR
consolidated statement of profit or loss. All of the foreign currency 2,546,0007T) ° imHEBINEES K 2 ATt
forward contracts are to be settled within one year. EZHERGRIERKRTPER - TE
mHEINES B R —FARNEE -

i, Balance mainly represents salaries, wages, bonus and other accrued i, EHREERFHe  TE - TEaAEM
benefits, and payables for the acquisition of property, plant and FEAEFNULREBEYE  BENERE
equipment. HYFET FXIE

All of the above balances are expected to be settled within one FrE Ll A TRt iR — FREN RILE

year or repayable on demand.

Amounts due to associates, a director and a related company JEREEE AT - EEMEAE A RIMNKIER
are interest free, unsecured and repayable on demand. B B A EENRERE -
RRMEYIERERLE

—T-NEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( =B HHETI

B MR (E

C UAABRHEZTR)

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 22. E5 KZ,HJH_’,FE’H RIH (&)
(@) A maturity analysis of the trade payables is @ BZENZENINEAS
as follows: TﬁpuT :
The maturity analysis of the trade payables balance is as E S RENFIBEAGIEA ST
follows: T
2019 2018
—E-nE —F—)\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR#TT AREFIT
Due within 1 month or on demand 1{E A AE HER IR Bk EN 9,017 9,669
Due after 1 month but within 3 months 11& A 1218 3{& A R | 23 (& 4,022 2,349
13,039 12,018
CONTRACT LIABILITIES . BHEE

23.

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

—ZE—-hE —E-N\F

+=BA=+—H +ZA=+—8H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR#BTRT ARBFT

Contract liabilities SREE 4,213 23,133
The contract liabilities represented the aggregate amount of SHEERBERERERARSEERTHKE

the transaction price allocated to the performance obligations
that are unsatisfied as of the end of the reporting period. The
Group expects the transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied
performance obligations will be recognised as revenue when
the Group transfers goods to the customer.

The contract liabilities represented receipt in advance from
customers for goods that have not yet been transferred to the
customers. As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the contract
liabilities mainly included the receipt in advance received from
sales of wooden products. The contract liabilities decreased by
RMB18,848,000 during the year ended 31 December 2019
primarily due to the decrease in sales with receipt in advance.

HMETNRZEBRERE AEERHMOE
ERTRBENETNRZERERAEE
AEPERE MRS W -

MAEBERKHRAEFERENNE
B-RIE-NFR_ZE-NFt+=
T—H ANAETIZEREEARR
FMRRFB - BE-_T-NAF+ =
=tT—HIEFE  AHBEENMARYE
,848,0007T + = 2 i $H & FEYGKIRIE N
FTEg

>§ 1] %*

N
ﬁ
A
ah
A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AT E B TS R R MY E T (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBERI  AAREZITR)

23. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued) 23. a8 Ew
During the year ended 31 December 2019, all brought-forward HE-_Z-NF+_A=+t—HILFE"
contract liabilities at the beginning of the financial period were HEYIR B AR & A B EE B EE
fully recognised as revenue. RN ©
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract HEHRENEESHBRTEN KX
liabilities recognised are as follows: RHEFWT -
Sales deposits HEZRS
When the Group receives a deposit before the delivery of EAEEESNEYZATKEIRESH 1%
goods, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a SHNENRBEREESNEE  E3®
contract, until the revenue recognised exceeds the amount of ROPABBECEE - HEKENEHE
the deposit. The amount of the sales deposit, if any, was (B HIRBEAEEBRARSIBEmIE

negotiated on a case by case basis with customers.

2019 2018
—E-nE T )\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

At 1 January Hn—A—H 23,133 10,094
Amounts included in contract liabilities R E AR AU HE 40

that was recognised as revenue BENSIRMFRIA

during the year (23,133) (10,094)
Cash received in advance of performance gt I8 78U K& G R R FER

and not recognised as revenue BlENRS

during the year 4,213 23,133
At 31 December W+=A=+—" 4,213 23,133

HRIAEYERBRD A
Seneen | //
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k55 R5)

BB HRRNE @

24. BANK LOANS

At 31 December 2018, the Group had secured bank loans
which were repayable within 1 year or on demand of
RMB91,152,000. The secured bank loans were fully repaid
during the year and no bank loan is carried forward as at 31
December 2019.

The secured banking facilities were secured by the following
assets with carrying values as follows:

C UAABRHEZTR)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

24. SRITERK

RZZ—NF+=ZA=+—0 £&£EH
HHRTERBER —FANEEREERE
B ARE91,152,0007T - Z B EFERTE
HERFABHEERE MR_T—NF
T-A=t+—BUYELERITER -

FEMRITHMEATIEENREEER
peci I

2019 2018

—hE —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR AREET T

Pledged deposits (note 20) BT (M7 20) 7,613 18,084

Buildings (note 11) gF(Mar11) 108,102 59,631

Plant and machinery (note 11) = e es (Mfat 11) - 59,029

Construction in progress (note 11) TR (A1) = 4,757
Land use rights (note 11) T+ s {sE A (MTat 11) 18,376

Lease prepayments (note 12) mEBAR(ME12) = 19,200

134,091 160,701

During 2019 and 2018, all of the Group’s banking facilities were
subject to the fulfilment of certain covenants, as are commonly
found in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the
Group were to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities
would become payable on demand. The Group regularly
monitors its compliance with these covenants.

The Group had sixteen secured bank loans with carrying
amounts of RMB91,152,000 at 31 December 2018 with maturity
date during 2019. The loan agreements contained certain
covenants on profit for which the Group did not meet the profit
making requirement during year 2018.

—NER-ZT-N\F AEBE®H
BRTREDXBEITHRSBEBR LHE
ERPFP-—RERNETROMMAR - fi
AEEERRY  AIERBNEESAR
EREER - AREEREEBREETH
R o

FEBBAR -E—NAFHHN+AES
BHRTES AREER=F—N\F
+ZB=+—HAAAR¥91,152,0007T °
BRI aE THRASEEREN _F
—NEMEERO BN EHNREL) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B8

BB HRRNE @

24. BANK LOANS (continued)

25.

The Company complied with its obligation to pay and repaid
the principals when they fell due. The Bank considered it not
necessary at present to exercise its rights given by the loan
agreements upon the Group not meeting the abovementioned
covenant prior to the respective maturity dates of the loans in
2018.

Except for the above, the Company has fulfilled the covenants
relating to drawn down facilities during 2019 and 2018. Details
of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in note
33(b).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has banking facilities with
the aggregate amount of RMB151,712,000 (2018:
RMB237,200,000) and no facility has been utilised (2018:
utilised facilities amounting to RMB91,152,000). The Group has
no intention to cancel the banking facilities which will be
utilised in the foreseeable future.

LEASE LIABILITY

The Group leases an office premise in Hong Kong. Following
the adoption of IFRS 16 by the Company on 1 January 2019, the
lease liability in respect of the lease was recognised at the
beginning of the lease period. The movement in lease liability
during the year is as follows:

C UABEHEZTR)

24. SRITER(#&)

25.

AR BETE AN RE EL SR A S B B
ETEE BEAKENR T —/\FREE
REBERBE AT EXATLREL - B3R
TRBBNHATEER M THA%E
7 o

Br EaliEN RZE—NFR_F—\F -
RARBEKEBRIEBENRZY - 5
AEBEERBSESRABRNFBIHNM T
33(b) °

—hE+-A=+—8 KEEH
BRITEEBEATT AR 151,712,000

— [\ AR¥237,200,0005T) © I
EANEEEERSE(ZZ—\F B
BWREBEEAARE91,152,0007T) « &
EEESEUHE A TR R RN E R 2 RIT
BE -

HESE

AEFEEREHE-—FHRIE - ARAR
—E-NE-A-BRBERMEHREE
165812 - ARG THEAGBAEHRE
HRBRER AFE HEAREDE
AT

2019 2018

—E-NnEF —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT AREFT

Balance at 1 January R—A—BM&EH 359 -

Interest charged F B 13 -

Rental paid EXAfES (158) -

Exchange difference =S 5 -

Balance at 31 December R+—A=+—HN&% 219 -
Represented hy: Bp :

Current portion BVEREE 187 -

Non-current portion JERNEAER 5 32 -

219 -

RREYIERERAT

—E-NEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575

26.

& R R M (@)

DEBENTURES

The Group entered into agreements with two individual third
parties issuing unsecured debentures with principal amounting
to HK$20,000,000 during year 2018. Its carrying amount was
approximately at HK$20,000,000 and HK$20,000,000 at 31
December 2019 and 2018 respectively. The debentures are
bearing interest at 3% per annum, unsecured and repayable on
29 August 2022.

C UAABRHEZTR)

26. &%

AEEDHMEE = FBEAG L hE - &
177K % #820,000,0007% JL &V K E % -
HEAEHRRF B I%THE - AEKFAER
ZEZZFNAZ+NBEEE -

Group and Company

FERERKEXALT

2019 2018

—E—hE —ZT—)N\F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARBTT

Balance at 1 January R—A—BH&ES 17,620 16,790
Interest expenses B 549 527
Interest paid BXAFE (528) (508)
Exchange difference EHEE 394 811
Balance at 31 December RTZA=+—H0N%E 18,035 17,620

Represented by: B :

Current portion BNERES 5 13,279 -
Non-current portion FEBNERER 2 4,756 17,620
18,035 17,620

Interest expense on the debenture is calculated by applying
the interest rate of 3% per annum (2018: 3%) to the carrying
amount of debentures.

On 22 December 2019, the Company entered into the
subscription agreements with debenture holders, to capitalise
partial amounts of debenture together with accrued interest
thereon in the amount of HK$14,824,000 (equivalent to
RMB13,279,000) by issuing an aggregate of 123,533,400 new
shares at HK$0.12 (note 37). The capitalisation has been
completed on 14 February 2020. Amount of RMB13,279,000 is
then reallocated to current liabilities as at 31 December 2019.

BT B RIBIBIS SEI%FIR (=
—J\EE : 3%) RN ESZ REEE -

—NF+ZA=Z+=H A "H
EHFE AR REHZ - uatxﬁﬁo 12
S TUEE 1T A $£123,533,400 BT & - 15
%%&E%ﬁﬂ%m&mmw&d%éA

R#13,279,0007T) &AL (HH5E37) « B
{EFERZZ_ZF_AFTHAZR - R=
T-NANF+ZA=Z+—HB ARE
13,279,000 TE EFM D EE KB ALE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AT E B TS R R MY E T (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBEIETIN - UAREST)

27. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 27. HEKWEQH
On 8 March 2019, the Company entered into an agreement to RZZE—NF=AN\B ' KRR LIH#E
dispose the entire issued share capital of a subsidiary, Merry AR & KB 10,0008 T (HERHARKE
Garden Biomass Energy Holdings Limited, for a cash 9,000 7T ) H & M B A AR EE R £V HE 58
consideration of HK$10,000 (equivalent to approximately ,J?% BRERARZZEEEITRA - R
RMB®9,000). The net liabilities disposed of, the resulting gain on MXSHHEAEFE MEENHE
disposal and the net cash inflow in respect of the above H&z SANRIREBTRAFREAT

transaction were as follows:

2019
—E-hE
RMB’000
AR®TR
Net liabilities disposed of: HE&RSBHE:
Amount due from an intermediate holding company f&lUt — 5 & # 5 A% A &) =
Cash and cash equivalents RERBREEED 37
Amount due to ultimate holding company JEH R ARIEAR A A (2)
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary B —RKEZTFAA (43)
(8)
Gain on disposal: HEKRS :
Consideration received EWRE 9
Net liabilities disposed of BEHEFARE 8
Cumulative currency translation reserve in respect S HEFRRIBEZ 25T EBITE
of the subsidiary disposed of reclassified from EEtESE S RENERS
equity to profit or loss on disposal —#
17
Net cash outflow: REBR -
Total consideration wmRE 9
Less: Cash and cash equivalents disposed of W EHEZEERBEEEY (37)
(28)
# Balances less than RMB1,000 # HBEE N AR 1,000 7T

PRENERARAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B MR @)

;\\/T\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B T5) » LUAREEZITR)
28. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 28.

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details

X #EK

BRAEEE A EREH m%m&ﬂx
BEUERTINGAREEDE - A2
%miﬁﬁn%iﬁ&ii\ﬁﬁﬁﬁw

of the changes in the Company’s individual components of T~
equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:
(@) Movements in components of equity (@) EZEoHEF
The Company RAT
Share Share  Exchange Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve losses equity
L2 el | E R G 2GR Ha8H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT  AR¥FT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR
Balance at 31 December 2017 as A_E—tE+ZR=+-H
originally (F5) 25,544 678,732 20,426 (28,631) 696,071
Initial application of IFRS 9 MAERERSBREE
£9% - - - (31,889) (31,889)
Balance at 1 January 2018 RERMEREENEIR
under IFRS 9: RZE-\E-A-B&R 25,944 678,132 20,426 (60519 664,183
Loss for the year EREE - - - (5,297) (5,297)
Other comprehensive income Et2mbeE - - 3182 - 3182
Total comprehensive income for the year — ER2ENELE - - 3182 (5,297) 26,529
Balance at 31 December 2018 R-B-\E+-A=+-H
b1 25,544 678,732 52,252 (65,816) 690,712
Loss for the year FRER - - - (36,090) (36,090)
Other comprehensive income Et2mbeE - - 14,804 - 14,804
Total comprehensive income for the year  FRZENGELES - - 14,804 (36,090) (21,286)
Balance at 31 December 2019 R-B-7E+=A=+-H
HEsee 25,544 678,732 67,056 (101,906) 669,426

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
T A BTSRRI EE (8

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBEIETIN - UAREST)

28. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 28. EX - ERRE @
(Continued)
(b) Share capital (O N
Authorised and issued share capital AEREBRITERA
2019 2018
—Z-nE ZE-)N\F
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
Bin&E &8 POEE Exl
('000) HK$'000 ('000) HK$'000
T TiEx T TiEx
Authorised: EE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at R—A—ARTZA=+-H
1 January and 31 December BRAEIMETHTAR 10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000
2019 2018
ZZ-nE —2-)\E
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
Biz8E &8 KA £
('000) HK$'000 ('000) HK$'000
T TR TR TiEn

Ordinary shares, issued and HiER - BORER

fully paid:
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—A 3,088,335 30,883 3,088,335 30,883
Equivalent to (RMB'000) HERARETT) 25,544 25,544

ARV RERA A
by afuli: 183
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
A E B IS R R MY EE ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

28. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

0}

(ii)

(i)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference
between the par value of the shares of the
Company and proceeds received from the issue of
the shares of the Company.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the funds in the share premium account of the
Company is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company would be in a position to
pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
currency differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of the entities with
functional currency other than Renminbi. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(y).

Statutory reserve

Transfers from retained profits to PRC statutory
reserve are made in accordance with the relevant
PRC rules and regulations and the articles of
association of the Company’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC and were approved by the
respective boards of directors.

The subsidiaries in the PRC are required to
appropriate 10% of its after-tax profit, as
determined in accordance with the PRC accounting
rules and regulations, to statutory general reserve
until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the
registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must
be made before distribution of a dividend to
shareholders.

(BB UARKEIT)

28. EX - BEERE (®)

© FHEEEKRBH

(M

(ii)

(iii)

R4 E

i EREA QBN R EE
SREETT AR R PTUCER PR A5
IR ZEHEER -

RERSHEARE  AQA
Bt ERANESAHED IR
FTARRBHBIR - HEEREEZ
KBS BER - AR AR
MEN —RERBRETD BN
&7 o

R4

FE 3 B R A A R ASMNG
M e R EXRE R R
EARTELNMEINEEE - Z
FEETIRIEH A FTE &
FTERR BRI -

EE
BRERNEREPBREER
18 To AR ¥ AR B o B AR B B AR 1
VAR 75 22 B 7E o B AR SZ A9 BT
NRMABERMAET X
CEARESSHAE -

B Y BT B A B ZE B H 10% &Y
BREEEFM(EDREPEE
FTRAIREAEE)E KA
T EERESESETR
BARH50% A 1E o BEEHE
B MR D KA B RTHETT ©
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o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

BB HRRNE @

28. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(©

(d

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(iii) Statutory reserve (Continued)

Statutory general reserve can be used to make
good prior years' losses, if any, and may be
converted into paid-up capital provided that the
balance after such conversion is not less than 25%
of the registered capital.

Distributable reserves

The aggregate amounts of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company were
RMB643,882,000 (2018: RMB665,168,000).

After the end of the reporting period, the directors
proposed no final dividend (2018: proposed no final
dividend).

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products and services commensurate with the
level of risk and by securing access to financing at a
reasonable cost.

The Group defined “capital” as including all components
of equity. Trade balances arise in the course of ordinary
business are not regarded by the Group as capital. On
this basis, the amount of capital employed by the Group
at 31 December 2019 were RMB811,378,000 (2018:
RMB931,829,000).

C UABEHEZTR)

28. EX - RERRKRE @)

©

EEEE R B8 @)

(i) EEGHEE)
—WEERBAUARFEERT
FEBE(WMA)  WAEhE
BRBA  EBEBRENE
BRI 5 B A ) 25% ©

Al 73k &1
AIARRABIERIFTEAD IR FiEE
55 AR 643,882,000 T (ZFE— N\
£ ARME 665,168,000 7T) °

REmEHRAERE  EFLEZHKR
BRBRE(ZZE—\F - TEHK
BRHIRE) ©

BEARER
AEBEEEANTZEHIZEE BHE
[RBRFZE IC i = b R ARTS B (B B
BIRSERARGRE  REASLE
SIEIRLIRE  LABEH AL E AR
R R ER KL AEERSE BT RF

3z
z

YN

o

Bk

REERGEXR| ERABIEMEE
b o AEEE —MEBBIERE
EHE SEHRERRITERTER
BER BRI EE - REEARZ
—NFrZA=+—BEBENELS
B A AR #3811,378,000( =
—\F + ARH931,829,0007T) °

R RA A
e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575

BB ERRW T @

28. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

C UAABRHEZTR)

28. EX - RERKRE @)

(Continued)
(e) Capital management (continued) e BEAREIE
The Group manages its capital structure to maintain a REBEEEEAREE  UBEFES
balance between the higher shareholder returns that fREREIRER S - ZFERAEA
might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and EERMEERBEERNKAMES
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital HB NIRIE - WAL EREFEAK
position, and makes adjustment to the capital structure BRI B B B AR T T EE -
in light of changes in economic conditions affecting the
Group.
Except for the banking facilities which require the Br/EENMIE2AFT B R A TRE
fulfilment of certain covenants as disclosed in note 24, WIRTTEEI  RBEFEXARF
neither the Company nor any of the subsidiaries are [ RAFSRAMN B AR HAL
subject to externally imposed capital requirements in SNEBHEINE AT K
either prior or current year.
29. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 29. &iE
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2019 not R EREMBRRARELBHEERZ
provided for in these consolidated financial statements were Z-NF+A=+—HHERERNER
as follows: AT
2019 2018
—E-hEF T )\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBEFIT
Contracted for (note (i) EETR (B aE () 23,642 23,374
23,642 23,374

Note:

@

Capital commitments are mainly related to construction of manufacturing
complex and acquisition of plant and machinery for Zhangping Kimura
and Unicreed.

Bat

(i) ARAEEZBMRE AN RGNE
BRI AR B E RAE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AT E B TS R R MY E T (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBERI  AAREZITR)

30. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 30. iEZEBIELEMNEEBEZHER
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in Group's liabilities arising TERFMAEEREZHEEANEE
from financing activities. b o
Bank Lease
loans Debentures liability Total
BITH &% HEAR A5t
(note 24) (note 26) (note 25)
(ff:£24) (st 26) (st 25)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

At 1 January 2018 A_Z—N\F—F—H 233,187 16,790 - 249,977
Cash flows Reng (142,035) (508) - (142,543)
Non-cash flows FRERE
— Interest expenses —FBR% - 527 - 527
— Effects of foreign exchange  —E R £ - 811 - 811

At 31 December 2018 and W-ZE—N\E+=A

1 January 2019 =+—-HRZZ-0E
—A—H 91,152 17,620 - 108,772
Adoption of IFRS 16 HRE RS R SR
E165% - - 359 359
At 1 January 2019 R-E-h&—-HF—H
(restated) (BE5) 91,152 17,620 359 109,131
Cash flows Bene (91,152) (528) (158) (91,838)
Non-cash flows FHRERE
— Interest expenses — F A% - 549 13 562
— Effects of foreign exchange —EX &2 - 394 5 399
At 31 December 2019 A_E—-hE
+=A=+-—H - 18,035 219 18,254
Note: The cash flows from borrowings make up the net amount of proceeds Hiit . ERARSRERT  REEFHRLTEML
from borrowings and repayments of borrowings in the consolidated cash ERATSFHIEFEREREAR
flow statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR E B TS R R MY E T (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBIETIN - UAREST)

31. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 1. EXRBEBAIRS
TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the related party information disclosed in notes 8, UL SIS M B RERMES 91419k
9,14, 19 and 22 of these consolidated financial statements, the 2P BB BT BRI - RERERATR
Group entered into the following significant related party FREALTIIERAR SRS -

transactions during the years presented.

(@ Name and relationship with related parties (@) FEAEE: T RTE K& EEE 58
EaRES
During the years presented, the directors are of the view RITREE EER5 ~AEENY
that related parties of the Group include the following P EE TS T
entities:
Name of party Relationships
RS R\ Ff%
Zhangping Jiupengxi Ecological Tourism A private company controlled by Wu Zheyan.
Development Company Limited (“Jiupengxi”)* Wu Zheyan is a director of the Company.

EFMABRERKREERERAETAR(ABER]) REEEHNLERR - REERARAES -

Green Seas Capital Limited A private company controlled by Wu Zheyan.
Wu Zheyan is a director of the Company.

Green Sea Capital Limited RAEEHNALERT - REEAARDAES -

Jiangxi Lvyuan Trading Co., Ltd.* An associate of the Group.

IGRE 5 BR AT REE 2B AR

Longyan Deliyuan Biomass Energy Co., Ltd.* An associate of the Group.
BEamEMNREMEIRBRAF REE 2B AR

Xiamen Zhonglisheng Trading Co., Ltd.** An associate of the Group.

EFPFEESERAR REE 2B AR

Fujian Longyan Zhangping Weston Wood Component — An associate of the Group.
and Material Company Limited*

BRARETELRMEREEMEERAR REBZHEENA] -

# On 31 October 2019, Xiamen Zhonglisheng Trading Co., Ltd. was # RZE—NF+A=1+—8  EM+F
deregistered. BESHER AT -

* The English translation of the name is for reference only. The * LRENEXHEEHESE - ZSWHS
official name of these related parties is in Chinese. AT BTBAR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o

BRI T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBERI  AAREZITR)

31. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) Significant related party transactions (b)) BEBXEBHIRZS

Particulars of significant related party transactions during
the years presented are as follows:

30. EXBEABEA RS (8)

Sales of wooden products to Lvyuan

Sales of wooden products to Weston Wood

Other revenue from Weston Wood

Purchase of raw materials from Weston Wood

FNE A A BB 7 32 3 R A A
™
2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR#BFR ARETT
AARIFE AR 112 622
I g AT S S R B 17,855 18,363
R B B AT ) E A e 6 178
1) B T B ER A SR A R 40,392 48,098

The directors confirm that the above sales and purchase
transactions are entered into with trading terms similar

to those with third parties.

EERR LABEERXSHHNAERKSE
BE =TI BIERETL

Amounts due (to)/from related companies O AV ) NCIE e
RMB'000
ANREF T
Amount due to Jiupengxi M M5 FRIE
Balance at FEERR
— 1 January 2018 — - N\F—A—H (283)
— 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 ——E-N\F+ZA=+—H
r=Z—NF—H—H (283)

— 31 December 2019

The amount due (to)/from a related company was arisen

—ZZ2-AFE+=A=+—H -

B DRI FIRTVRE —RIEER

from normal sales transactions. It was unsecured, P o AEFEREEMR - RERTEH
interest-free and expected to be settled according to AR AR H B EE = J5 S A0 15 R IR B
credit term which is similar to that with third parties. i

RREYERAERA D

—E-NEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
T A BTSRRI EE (B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBETIN  AARESITR)

31. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY (Continued) 31. EXBEBAERS (#)

TRANSACTIONS (continuead)

() Amounts due (to)/from related companies (€ R MRl R R FR

(ﬁ)
RMB'000
ARETTT
Amount due from Green Seas &z Green Seas Capital Limited
Capital Limited I
Balance at AR
— 1 January 2018 ——F—-)\F—H—H 67
— 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 — - )\Ft+ZA=T—AK
—E-NF—A—H 71
— 31 December 2019 — - NF+=ZHA=+—H 71
Maximum balance outstanding e N = f
— during 2019 —RZE—NF 71
— during 2018 —RZE-)N\F 71
The amount due to related company was unsecured, U EREE A RIGRIBE A EEIF - 28K
interest-free and repayable on demand. BREREE -

(d) Key management personnel remuneration d) =ZEEEA BN
Remuneration for key management personnel of the AEEFEEEEAES @H(@?ﬂﬁ
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s FeRMFINRIEEMNE AR
directors as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the highest EERETHERFES E’JTAIE)ZIDT

paid employees as disclosed in note 9, is as follows:

2019 2018
—E-hE —ZE-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTT AR¥TT

Short-term employee benefits 2 HA(E 8 4& A 2,116 1,891
Retirement scheme contributions RRETEIHER 10 20

2,126 1,911
Total remuneration was included in “staff costs” (see BEB AT TRA] (B
note 6(b)). 6(b)) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o

BRI T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( A BT

31. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY (Continued)

32.

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(e) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to

connected transactions

None of the above related party transactions fall under
the definition of connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial

instruments are as follows:

C UABEHEZTR)

31. EXBEARS (#)

(e) BAEXRZEBz EMHEEL

BB TR ZH TR EHRAE
VAERAENBEZ SR T E#RR

MBS

2. REFIEINERHEEREH

RERE

AEEEMTANEERERAFERT

2019 2018
ZB—-hF —EN\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREEF T
Financial assets SMEE
Loans and receivables: B R EKIE
Trade and other receivables B 5 RHAMEWFIE 101,984 141,903
Pledged deposits [REEECIVER /S 7.612 18,084
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREFEY 76,024 38,000
Financial assets at fair value through IEERBIZE - FEFARM
other comprehensive income: PHMKZZ EHEE -
Equity investments BRI E 3,048 3,267
Financial assets at fair value through R TFEGA B EE -
profit or l0Ss:
Derivative financial instruments TESRTA 310 2,736
Other financial assets Hiv o rh&EE 791 -
Financial liabilities eMAR
Amortised costs: HEEER A
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAMREFRIE 43,544 54,754
Bank loans IRITER = 91,152
Debentures &% 18,035 17,620
Lease liabilities HEBE 219 -
Financial liabilities at fair value B FEGA B T@EE -
through profit or l0ss:
Derivative financial instruments THESRETA 699 2,546
RRMEYIERERLE

—E-NEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575

BB HRRNE @

C UAABRHEZTR)

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 33. €®lEKREER AFE
VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, currency and
commodity price arises in the normal course of the Group's
business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(@)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to these credit risks is monitored on an ongoing
basis.

In respect of cash and cash equivalents, the Group only
places deposits with major financial institutions, which
management believe are of high credit rating.

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group
usually requires upfront payment for sales of goods to
new customers. For export sales, the Group generally
requests settlement by letter of credit issued by financial
institutions or by wire transfer for certain customers with
good trading history. Individual credit evaluations are
performed on all new customers requiring credit over a
certain amount and are also performed on existing
customers on a periodic basis. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and may take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customer
operates. The Group offers 90 days of credit to export
sales customers with good trading history and offers 180
days of credit to the existing domestic sales customers.
Generally, debtors with significant overdue balances are
requested to settle all outstanding balances before any
further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

EARKEMERERBRETEELEER

B RBERR - FIXERR - EERBR
M ERRER
NEB A AEN LSRR R AEBEEE T

B2 T ER A 2 Bl L
X

B BR KA

(@ =ERk
REBHEERREEREESHRE
HEKGREANIRE MRS EEY -
ERECHTEERR @ WHEER
FrEE Rt EEERRE -

AEBEMNRSMREFEWEFNE
BERSEAREENENEIZER
W -

HREZLEMERFTIENS - A5E
BRFEPUHERYEN
Ko AHEMS  AEEBRE
RUEREBRANEARNERE
(RETREFELRFNEFPME )&
o REEHMARRETERERE
M E P EEITEMNMERAE - I
EMHRA TP ETEE R -
HEFHEINEFPBENT S
AR BRI EE N REEE
BEREEARNAREPEEMELY
KBRS - ARERARTE S
MEOEEEPREEHOANEE!S
REHBREBRAHEEREFEH 180 A K
EEH - —RME EHREEAH
% AEAERRUGRIENARE
BEH TOERE—FNEE - —

RmME  ANEEXESFPRIRGE
Han e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( B 5= BTSN

BRI T

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continuea)

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry or country in which the customers
operate and therefore significant concentrations of credit
risk primarily arise when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers. At 31 December 2019,
0.7% (2018: 5.0%), of the total trade and other receivables
was due from the Group's largest customer and 21%
(2018: 13%), was due from the five largest customers.

The Group applies the simplified and general approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed by IFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected 10ss
provision for trade receivables and 12-month expected

C UABEHEZTR)

33. sRIAREERAFE R

(@)

FEERE @)
AEEFEYOERRR  TBRE
ERMERRBAYE - M KRG

BEPFREMITESMENER
It EAREBEEERE PN ERER
B SEAREETHEERR - ©
“T-NFEFTA=t—H Bk
HtEWRIBRETHOI%(—F
—\F :50%) REEAEEZAE
PHERIE  M21%(=ZF — )\ F:
13%) Al R A AR P H IR

K%@Wéﬁﬁ (e R — R J7 AL BB B
BmEEREIRARENERAEE
BRFHRRE  BRMEREERS
VAT EAE ZEUKENZ TR

credit losses for other receivables and amounts due from S ERE R EMEWIE - U

associates. Btk N B 5RIE M FE RS & R B SRIE R
128 BB ERE E BB R -

RRAEYIEREIRAE

—E-NEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
T A BTSRRI EE (B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBETIN  AARESITR)

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(@) Credit risk (continued) (a)

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade

33. cREREER AT E®)

EER M #)
TEBIEBAEER -_T—N\&
+-A=+—AWMBSRENRE  H

receivables, other receivables and amounts due from MBS « EIREAT A PR S
. ' W& AR ERNEE R RTEHE
associates: EERE AR

As at 31 December 2019
R-Z—-hF+-A=+—H

Gross
carrying Loss
amount allowance
excluding excluding
Expected specific specific
loss rate (%) debtors debtors
rEERTE TEERE
SRS Bl IAR B R IAR
(%) IREEH#EH Lok
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR#®TT AR®BTR
Trade receivables HHEKERIE
Current BNHA 0.95% 78,391 (750)
Less than 1 month past due BT 1 E A 3.19% 1,326 (42)
1to 3 months past due png= N IENCR (Y 6.88% 23 2)
More than 3 months but less BEISE A A EEDR
than 12 months past due 1218 A 19.03% 300 (57)
More than 12 months past due  #Hi 1218 A LA - 36.89% 11,686 4,311)
91,726 (5,162)
Other receivables it P U R IR 5.21% 7,349 (383)
Amount due from a A ATRIE
related company 3.04% 71 2)
Amounts due from B BEATRIE
associates (Note) (KHiaE) 3.04% 5 —*
* Less than RMB1,000 * B AR 1,000 T
Note: The balance excluded prepayment to associates for raw materials. Ftst - BMABETBETENBE QB ZMEIF

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AT E B TS R R MY E T (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBERI  AAREZITR)

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 33. ¢sRiEAREENR AFEE®)
VALUES (continued)

(@) Credit risk (continued) (@) EERR@®)

As at 31 December 2018
RZZE—NF+-_A=+—H

Gross
carrying Loss
amount allowance
excluding excluding
Expected specific specific
loss rate (%) debtors debtors

TEERE TEERE

T8 B 1E = JEWRIE R FEN IR
(%) BREEAE E e
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT AR®KTT

Trade receivables HHEKRIE
Current BNEA 0.82% 90,319 (741)
Less than 1 month past due BER DR 1 A 2.27% 9,775 (222)
1 to 3 months past due BmE1E=3MEA 6.12% 5,191 (318)
More than 3 months but less BWEI3E AU LB DR

than 12 months past due 1218 A 12.43% 17,115 (2,127)
More than 12 months past due  #E8 121 A LA = 29.61% 4114 (1,218)

126,514 (4,626)

other receivables H fth FE Uy #R IR 3.04% 12,597 (383)
Amount due from a related RS2\ ISR

company 3.04% 71 )
Amounts due from BB EATRE

associates (Note) (Htez) 3.04% 6 —*
* Less than RMB1,000 * B ARE 1,000 T
Note: The balance excluded prepayment to associates for raw materials. M. BETEIEMNBEDF 2B -

ARV RERA A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
A E B IS R R MY EE ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB UARKEIT)

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 33. ¢sRiEREENR AFEEH &)
VALUES (continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

Expected loss rates are based on historical debts
recovery rates over the past 2 years. The rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic data
has been collected, current conditions and the Group's
view of economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.

In measuring the expected credit losses, the trade
receivables have been assessed on a collective basis as
they possess shared credit risk characteristics. They have
been grouped based on the days past due.

Trade receivables are written off (i.e. derecognised) when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Failure to
make payments within 180 days from the invoice date
and failure to engage with the Group on alternative
payment arrangement amongst other are considered
indicators of no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Debt financial assets other than trade receivables
determine the ECL based on the 12-months ECLS. The
expected loss rates are simply based on the historical
debts recovery rate and adjusted by forward looking
factors including future economy conditions.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance. The Group does
not provide any guarantees which would expose it to
credit risk.

(@)

EERE #)
TEERIB Sk RER B M R 9 E £ 1B
TSR o 2% [0 I AT T2 DA IR B
S B U S AR O AT EAR R + B AT
SR R £ [ 1 FE R TR E S o 0 A
SRR B o

RETERMEREEER - 85 RUK
HE AR RAREE RS RER
BEEETHE - YO RBPREE

GEE L

B SR FRREAS B AR AT
B T LAMH (BIBUBRER) - ReE B %
SHEEE180 B AN R ERAAEE
AR R SRR B SRBI AR 3
EAR AR E IR IR -

R fJ80 B 7 SRR (O FE M R ORD Bl
Y BB ORBEHRERS -

bR FE R FUASNO B & BB ER IR
12EAMBERERBRLEE TEY
EREX - RHBAXEERNELE
BRI - IR B AR AR
FERRATHE MR ZE TR -

RRERERRESAFBERRE A
BEFRERBRNSREREEN
BRE(E - AEBETAREEBRNER
[\ R AT fATHE R o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( B 5= BTSN

BRI T

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continuea)

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
set out in note 19.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at 31 December 2019 of the Group’s and the
Company'’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group and the
Company are required to settle these liabilities.

C UABEHEZTR)

33. sRIAREERAFE R

(@)

FEERR @
EMAEBE 5B R
BB — 5T RRERNNE
19 °

//|u@],§zﬁ

AEENREATHERLRBES
TR RRHFAERRNOMETE - U
R AR B 5 RN S B R
IBSBBBIMEG R ROABER
B OEMRERENRENRBES
FE -

TRV AEERAARFEITES R
BERZZE-NF+ZA=+—HH
FpANEEA - ZemAadEHER
AHAMBReRE(REFAEGL
M E K ()T B)) RS B A R
BATF R ERF S UARAE
B RARREWERGEE NS B ENR
FREAMETE -

PRENERARAT
—E-NEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
/\\/T\ ﬁﬂv—’% $&i§ IzﬁL III_II_ ,.,\

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B G RN UAREEZTR)

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 33. ¢sRiEREENR AFEEH &)
VALUES (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) b)) mBESRER @
2019
- Sy 3
Within More than More than Total
1year 1 year but 2yearsbut  contractual Carrying
oron less than less than  undiscounted amount at
tdemand 2 years 5 years cashflow  31December

—FME g% Bl-% HESESE N o e o
BEX ByR=% BYREE  RERERR HREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AERTR AERFR AERTR AERFR AERTR

Debentures E% 13,279 528 5,383 19,190 18,035
Trade and other payables B A RE RN 43,544 = = 43,544 43,544
Derivative financial instruments [TEgRIA 699 - - 699 699
Lease liabilities HERE 187 2 - 219 219
57,709 560 5,383 63,652 62,497
2018
“E)\E

Within More than More than Total
1year 1year but 2 years hut contractual Carrying
oron less than less than undiscounted amount at
demand 2years 5years cash flow 31 December

e a5 i GEIP 2 A ey
BRERK  BIRZF EIRTE  REREAR W&
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTL ARETTL ARETTL ARETTL ARETTL

Bank loans BIER 92263 - - 92263 91,152
Debentures 5 526 526 18,575 19,627 17,620
Trade and other payables BAREMERTE 54,754 - - 54,754 54,754
Derivative financial instruments fiEeRIA 2,546 - - 2,546 2546

150,089 526 18,575 169,190 166,072
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AT E B TS R R MY E T (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBERI  AAREZITR)

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32. ¢sRiEREENR AFEE &)
VALUES (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk € F == b
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from AEENMERBEBZREER - 1%
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and at FENFE R EEN R EHERS
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate AAEETRReREFEAR R A
risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively. The FEMERRE - NEREER - A
Group's interest rate profile as monitored by SE B FIR AR T () °

management is set out in (a) below.

(i) Interest rate profile (i) FRARMR
The following table details the interest rate profile TRFAIRZZ-NFR=ZF
of the Group's total borrowings at 31 December —N\F+ZA=+—H4%H
2019 and 2018: BRI N R AR, -
2019 2018
:g_n$ :f /} \
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
ERTE &F ERTIZ 8
% RMB'000 % RMB'000
ARRTR AEETT
Fixed rate horrowings: EREH:
RMB, EUR and USD bank loans ARE BTREL = = 1.35%-5.12% 91,152
RITER
Unsecured debentures BERRES 3.13% 18,035 3.13% 17,620
Lease liabilities HERE 5.13% 219 - -
Total net borrowings BiEsE 18,254 108,772
Net fixed rate borrowings as a e %“;ﬁ%ﬁﬁaiﬂ 100% 100%

percentage of total netborrowings B FENA DL

ARV RERA A
by afuli: 199
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AR IS R R I A (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBIETIN - UAREST)

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32. €®lEKREER AFE @)

VALUES (continued)
(C) Interest rate risk (continued)
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis
At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group's total

borrowings are fixed rate borrowings therefore
sensitivity analysis is considered not necessary.

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases which give rise to receivables,
payables and cash balances that are denominated in
USD, AUD and NZD, currencies other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.

The Group is also exposed to currency risk associated
with the bank borrowings as the Group's borrowings are
denominated in RMB, USD, HKD and EURO.

(©

F =@ )
(i) SBESH
Z—-NF+=ZA=+—H
R-ZE—NF+-A=+—
B AEE@OEREAEREH
R F b T 1T RS
AT o

N

ERRER
AEEEHNEEERR  TEAUE
I SN EAR B R B85 (£
TURTT RFTFIB L) 5HE R 8 BT
B(EERRTE B RERRS
4 TOTAE SRS -

HRAEEONBERDIAARE - X
T BTUREUTEHE - EAEE IR
ERRIRTTRE AR SR RL -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
4T E B IS R R MY E T ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B » UAARESR)

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued) (d)

32. sRIABEERAFE®)

B R R 2)

During the years presented, the Group entered into
foreign currency forward contracts with major state-
owned banks in the PRC mainly to acquire RMB to
mitigate against currency risk on receivables
denominated in USD, HKD and EURO. All of the forward
exchange contracts have maturities of less than one
year.

At 31 December 2019, the Group had foreign currency
forward contracts with their fair values recognised as
derivative financial instruments (assets) of RMB310,000
(2018: RMB2,736,000) and derivative financial instruments
(liabilities) of RMB699,000 (2018: RMB2,546,000) and are
included within “Trade and other receivables” (note 19)
and “Trade and other payables” (note 22) respectively.
The changes in fair value of the foreign currency forward
contracts were recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss (note 5(0)).

(i) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at
31 December 2019 to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown
in Renminbi, translated using the spot rate at the
end of reporting period. Differences resulting from
the translation of the financial statements of the
entities with functional currency other than RMB
into the Group's presentation currency are
excluded.

The Company does not have any significant
financial assets or liabilities denominated in
currencies other than its functional currency and it
is not exposed to significant currency risk.

FIRERER - ANEE S E N ALLE
BIRITRIINEEHIENEAAR
PARRRIASETT ~ BT R EUTAHER &
WIRFRNE KRR - FrEERINESR
BB BRI IS R —F AR -

R-Z—-hE+-A=1+—8 K&
EINES IR B A M D FERITES R
TA(EE) AR310007T(ZF
—N\F : AR¥E2,736,00070) RATA
SRITA(ERE) AR 699,0007T(=
T—NF: AR¥2546,0007T )
R WA RIFTATE P R E M EUK
B (MFE19) R [E 5 REA RN
B (FF7E22) « HNERERE KM DT
B INREBTEPER M
5()) °

) E¥ER

TRAVIREER —T—N5F
TZA=T—HBREERIANE
BB E B ERYEDN
EREEHREBEMELNE
KRk RHEZY - ARkHE
AARBTIR - £ 8HEHRHE
ERFERNEIBE - R AA
REASNEERIIRNE
B BHRRGEKNAEENZ
S B E AR Z R RIRRSN o

ARELETAEASREE
HABEAEDREEE AN E
WEtE - EAREREERE

G
AA

o

R RA A
B NETH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
A E B IS R R MY EE ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B T5) » LUAREEZITR)

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32. ¢sRiEREENR AFEEH &)
VALUES (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continuea d BEs@g@
(i) Exposure to currency risk (Continued) (iy EHEEE)
2019
ZZ-A%
usb Euros AUD CHF JPY NzD RMB
B B AT RLES AE  HEET AE#%

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AE®TRE ARRTET ARBTT ARRTR AR®TR AR®TR AEWTR

Trade and other receivables B 5 ke lz8 48,306 - 17,047 - - 9,219 -
Cash and cash equivalents BekBeZEN 16,753 114 25 1 1 - 95
Pledged deposits BEATR 62 - - - - - -
Trade and other payables RITER (1,235) = = = = = =

Gross exposure arising from  EEZEERARE

recognised assets and liabilities & 4 #1258 63,886 114 17,072 1 1 9,219 95
2018
“I-\F
UsD Euros AUD CHF JPY NZD RMB
E B BT AR A HERT ARE

RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTR  ARMTR ARBTR ARETRT ARMTT ARETR ARETR

Trade and other receivables B 5 REMERGE 49,302 - 5,804 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents BeRELEEY 9733 116 58 1 1 - 292
Pledged deposits BAFER 4,669 - - - - _ _
Bank loans RITER (6952 - - - - _ _
Trade and other payables 2o REMENTE (28,958) - - - - _ _

Gross exposure arising from BRREEREE

recognised assets and liabilies ~ E 4R R EE 27,79 116 5,862 1 1 - 292

(ii) Sensitivity analysis (i) SHRBEDIN

The following table indicates the instantaneous TRIIRAA H At [ b 8T

change in the Group's profit after tax (and retained ERERLT  AEERKRE

profits) that would arise if foreign exchange rates to St A (AR B s ) 3R & B

which the Group has significant exposure at the EREGEZE(NEBARL

end of the reporting period had changed at that BHYRZENRR) MEED

date, assuming all other risk variables remained BN B o A E 3o

constant. Other components of equity would not TEZINEERE BT E

be affected by changes in the foreign exchange

rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
T A BTSRRI EE (8

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( A BT

C UABEHEZTR)

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32. €®lEKREER AFE @)

VALUES (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

(d) BEEEER

(%)

(il BRBEDW(E)

2019 2018
kS 2 —F-N\%

Increase/ Increase/

Increase/ (decrease) Increase/ (decrease)

(decrease) in profit (decrease) in profit

inforeign  after tax and in foreign after tax and

exchange retained exchange retained

rates profits rates profits

Rz iyl

SRES REZRT SR iR mﬁﬂ

L#/(TR) L7/ (TR) IR/ (TR) /(R

RMB'000 RMB’OOO

ARBTT ARETFL

UsD e 5% 2,709 5% 1,182
(5)% (2,709) (5% (1,182

Euros BT 5% 5 5% )
(5)% (5) (5% ()

NZD HERT 5% 385 5% -
(5)% (385) (5)% -

AUD AT 5% 726 5% 250
(5)% (726) (5)% (250)
CHF AR 5% -+ 5% -
(5)% = (5% =
JPY H 5% =* 5% —*
(5)% = (5% =

RMB against HKS AR AT 5% 4 5% 12
(5)% (4) (5% (12)
* less than RMB1,000 * DR AR 1,0007T

RRMEYIERERLE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR A IS R I A ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575

C UAABRHEZTR)

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32. €®lEKREER AFE @)

VALUES (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Results of the analysis as presented above
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous
effects on each of the Group entities’ profit after
tax and equity measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into RMB at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of reporting period
for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in
foreign exchange rates had been applied to
remeasure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of reporting period. The analysis
excludes differences that would result from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group's presentation currency.
The analysis at 31 December 2018 has been
performed on the same basis.

(e) Commodity price risk

The major raw materials used in the production of the
Group's products include, fir and pinewood. The Group is
exposed to fluctuations in the prices of these raw
materials which are influenced by the global market as
well as regional supply and demand conditions.
Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials could
adversely affect the Group's financial performance. The
Group historically has not entered into any commodity
derivative instruments to hedge the potential commodity
price changes. The Group monitors its commodity price
risk by widening its supply base and performs bulk
purchase when the price of raw materials is low.

(d)

B R R 2
(i) SBESW(E)
FXRAMD SRS AEE
B8 B 18 3 I T RE 25 1A
K EMEEERER AL
B 0 0 % 30 45 A R0 % SR B 0 T

KB ARB RO E
B -

BRE D TRRIMNEE R EF)
EEREZEMAEARERE
MEMTE  MxFemTA
EAEER RS HEEREE
HONE RS - 2T B AR R
BINEBHBHRREAEER
FIEMER AT RE IR Z 5 -
—NE+-A=+—81"
DT BB R LT o

& m B8 AR
AREEREEERMABIERMH
BREEARMBA - REBHERZER
MEHER KRB - 1% E R
RER R 2 IRTT5 I & 31 Rk
MFE o R FHER KB A 28 K
SENUBRAEETHNTE - K&
B NG AR RITE T A&
EEmERES - NAEEZEBNREH
FEETE M AE R A RHE R BB ETTH
ERBOTAEERmMERER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
4T E B IS R R MY E T ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B » UAARESR)

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(f) Fair values

0}

(ii)

Financial instruments not measured at fair
value

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
include loans and receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables, pledged
deposits, trade payables and other payables,
debentures and bank loans.

Due to their short term nature, the carrying value of
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, pledged deposits, trade payables and
other payables, debentures and bank loans
approximates fair value.

Financial instruments measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments measured at the end
of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technigue as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

32. sRIABEERAFE®)

()

AF(E

M

(i)

REAFETENERMTA

REAFEAENERTAR
BERRERHE Re kIR
TEEBY 5 MEMEUK
B BEAER - BSREM
FERNRIR - BHFRIRITER -

ERNHEEHNE  RekRe
EEY - B REMEEN
B BEAER - BHREM
RN R~ B RIRITERZ
FREEREQFERS -

BEAVEIIRNERIA
RFEERHE
TREJAEES BT AR
&R AR IR R A
ENATE XHBEATEY
B EERE3E - 2 FE
BEEEN=-"RAFERE - §
RHEFEDBNER IS
TN ETDER R ABUE
WATERM R ERMRET

© B ARMEE: EERE
— R AR (R
A REEE R A ERE
B 2 RS HERE)
SHENATE

R RA A
B NETH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o

BRI T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( B = BTSN

C UAABRHEZTR)

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 33. €®lEKREER AFE @)

VALUES (continued)
(f)  Fair values (continued)

(f)

(ii) Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail
to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

Level 1
E—1R
RMB’000

NFE (&)
(i) BAVEIENESWMIAE)

RFESERHE (&)

o FEAME:ERE-_MK
AR (BIREEES
— BRI B RE ABER)
BRI REAERTAEE
BABBETENQFE -
THEREABERED
SEBEARE

«  ESREE: RAEA
FABRLEEHA
¥

31 December 2019

—$-nF+=A=+-H

Level 2 Level 3 Total
<t BE=8 @&t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARWTR ARBTRT ARBTR

Financial assets at fair value BATEFABZZ R
through profit or loss BE
— Derivative financial — TSR IA
instruments (note 19) (Ktat19) - 310 - 310
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFAEMEE
through other WEHSREE
comprehensive income
— Unlisted equity securities — TR AES
(note 15) (Hiz15) > - 3,048 3,048
- 310 3,048 3,358
Financial liabilities at fair BATEFABZZ SR
value through profit or 10ss BE
— Derivative financial — TSR IA
instruments (note 22) (HzF22) - 699 - 699
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A e IS R I A ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 BTSN » LUAREEZITR)

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 33. €®lEKREER AFE @

VALUES (continued)

(f)  Fair values (continued) ()
(ii) Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Level 1
E—1
RMB’000

NEE )

BATVEFIRNESRIA(E)

RFESERHE (&)

31 December 2018

—NF+=-A=+—H
Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ FE=1 4Bt

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTRE ARETR ARETR

Financial assets at fair value RN EF A NER 2 &/

through profit or loss BE
— Derivative financial —TEEMIA
instruments (note 19) (Bfa£19) -

Financial assets at fair value BRAFEFAEMEZR

through other W EREE
comprehensive income
— Unlisted equity securities — Ik ETRAES
(note 15) (Kiat15) -

2,736 - 2,736

- 3,267 3,267

2,736 3,267 6,003

Financial liabilities at fair value 1R A T@EE Az S8t

through profit or loss BE
— Derivative financial —TEEMIA
instruments (note 22) (HizE22) -

2,546 - 2,546

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018, there were no transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The
Group's policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

BE_Z-NFER-_FT-N\F
TZA=+—HIEFE F—
MEE R T AR EER
NMEEAF=RLEF=RE
H e AEBHBERRAR A FE
EHREH BRI RE LR SR
BLERRRRAEREE -

HRIAEYERBRD A
—E-NEFFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

CEF-E -l

C UAABRHEZTR)

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 33. ¢sRiEREENR AFEEH &)
VALUES (continued)

(f)  Fair values (continued)

(i)

Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation technigues and inputs used in Level 2 fair
value measurements

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s derivative
financial instruments assets and liabilities
amounting to RMB310,000 and RMB699,000
respectively (2018: derivative financial instrument
assets and liabilities of RMB2,736,000 and
RMB2,546,000 respectively) (note 19 and 22) were
carried at fair value, and these instruments fall into
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy described above.

The fair value of forward exchange contracts in
Level 2 is determined by discounting the
contractual forward price and deducting the
current spot rate. The discount rate used is derived
from the relevant government yield curve as at the
end of reporting period plus an adequate constant
credit spread.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 3 fair
value measurements

The fair value of the Group’s unlisted equity
securities at 31 December 2019 and 2018 has been
arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out by
Knight Frank Asset Appraisal Limited, a firm of
independent professionally qualified valuers not
connected with the Group. The unlisted equity
securities are categorised into level 3 of fair value
measurement.

(f)

NSTERE ),

(i)

BAVEFIRNESRIA(E)

ZRATFEGTEEAEEE
Beilf R A B 5
RZE—hNF+ZA=+—

B AEEMNTESRTIAE
ERBED R AARE 310,000
TR ARBE69000T(=F
—N\F:BERABNBAA
R %2,736,0007t & A R ¥
2,546,0007) (Fi5E19 }22) #%2
NEEMNE  ZSEITEBR L
ME ZMATFEER -

F_REHINESHAFE
TyiEBEIR A K EHER R
BRIRB RN K MEE  FrfE
FABRIR AR AR 15 B ) 48 SR
HERBFERZES TIN5 E
EEESEMAERS -

BN TFEEEFNEE
AT R B A B
REBIELTRAZFHFR T
—hERrR=ZZ—NF+=A
=+ — BN AFEREHES
BEFHARAA(—RKER
CETERENBYEESE
IS ERRTT) TR EES -
FEEMBRAFELFSEARTEE
AAREZH -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e

B TR T (E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( A BT

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(f)  Fair values (continued)

(i)

C UABEHEZTR)

32. cRAEREER AT E®E)

H 2¥FE@@

Financial instruments measured at fair value (i) BRAFEIENESMIAE)
(Continued)
Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 3 fair E=RAFEGTEEHNGE
value measurements (Continued) B Rt A B (48)
Relationship of
Financial assets at fair value through Fair value at Valuation Unobservable inputs to
other comprehensive income 31December 2019 technique input Range fairvalue
RIE-1E
+ZA=+-H
BATEHARMRERRNENEE MATE fHERHE ATRRBARE 8 BABRAATENRE
RMB'000
ARBTT
— Unlisted equity securities 3048 Market comparable  Discount for lack 30%  The higher the discount the
—kEARAES companies of marketability lower the fair value
EAL AT HemARBEE adE  ATERE

The fair values of unlisted equity securities are
determined using the price/book ratios of
comparable listed companies adjusted for lack of
marketability discount. The fair value measurement
is negatively correlated to the discount for lack of
marketability. The directors are of the view that the
impact of the fair value measurement to changes in
unobservable inputs if a change in those inputs to a
different amount was insignificant.

FLEMBRAESFHORFETR
R EBRZ 5 m @ E m
BRI A LR ET AR MR
REE - A FEFEERZT
LRBETEZAEHE &S
RRHEZEHABBEEZEST

A& fIATEEHR
BERABSEDOTEHN -
PREMZERERAE

e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS R R I A (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBIETIN - UAREST)

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 33. €®lEKREER AFE @)

VALUES (continued)

(f)  Fair values (continued) H 2FE®R
(ii) Financial instruments measured at fair value (i) BRAFEIERENSBIA(E)

(Continued)
Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 3 fair FE=RAFEGTEEHNGE
value measurements (Continued) BT REA 2% (4E)
Reconciliation for financial instruments carried at ERERTAIBEASIEE
fair value based on significant unobservable inputs =HR)EREAFEIENSHRT
(Level 3) are as follows: BREERIT -

Financial assets at FVOCI
BAFEMHARGMZEKREZ

eMEE
2019 2018
=t ik —TN\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBEFIT
Unlisted equity securities: I EMRAES
At 1 January/restated at 1 January »—A—B&E%|, /A —HA—H 3,267 4,075
Total gains or losses: Uk s ok s 1 4 5E
— in other comprehensive — REMEERE
income before tax (219) (808)
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 3,048 3,267
(ili) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (iii) REQAFEIENEREER
not carried at fair value BENATEE
The carrying values of the Group's financial 7N 52 B 4 AR AN o B 8 AR AR B BR
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are Wem TAREERFESN
not materially different from their fair values as at Z-NFE+ZA=+—BEZ=
31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018. T-N\F+ZA=+—HHA
FETHEAER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
T A BTSRRI EE (8

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBEIETIN - UAREST)

34. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 34. REBEHHMRREK

FINANCIAL POSITION
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Kt AR®TTT ARBTT
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - W= RRE 214 -
Interests in subsidiaries R B A TR 16 688,704 707,307
688,918 707,307
current assets REEE
Deposits and prepayments e REAMTE R 144 373
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUHT B A B ZhIE 50 1,729
Cash and cash equivalents RehREEFEEY 326 323
559 2,425
Current liabilities mEAaE
Other payables H b e R 1,603 1,400
Debenture B 26 13,279 -
Lease liability HEAE 187 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEfRtF R T 215 -
15,385 1,400
Net current (liabilities)/assets REEERE (14,742) 1,025
Total assets less current liabilities FE#ERREEE 674,214 708,332
Non-current liabilities FERBAR
Debentures (EE3 26 4,756 17,620
Lease liability AeEam 32 _
4,788 17,620
Net assets HERE 669,426 690,712
Equity B2
Share capital (=N 28(b) 25,544 25,544
Reserves R 643,882 665,168
Total equity RRBE 28(a) 669,426 690,712

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on RZEZTF=A=+THEESEHER

30 March 2020.

BT -
Wu Zheyan Xie Qingmei
REE WE=x
Chief Executive Officer Chairlady
TTIABE B

R RA A
e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BRI T

;\\IT\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBIETIN - UAREST)
35. IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING 35.

36.

PARTY

At 31 December 2019, the directors consider the immediate
and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Green Seas
Capital Limited, which is incorporated in BVI. This entity does
not produce financial statement available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the IASB has issued a number of amendments and
new standards which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2019 and which have not been adopted in the
consolidated financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

36.

The Group is not yet in a position to state whether these new
pronouncements will result in substantial changes to the
Group's accounting policies and consolidated financial
Statements.

BEERREERA

EERA RZE—hF+=ZA=+—8"
NEBEEHE R &&ERT BGreen Seas
Capital Limited * ZZ A AR EBE LS
AL o I EEE W R RN IEIRE -

BEZE-_ZE—NE+=BA=1+—
HIEFEC BB RERE
g~%ﬂﬁJ&éEmw“%

BELSGEAMBHRREMA  BRE
SHERE =S ERMSIRER] RFETEN -
EHRBE_T-NAF+-_A=1t—RHILF
FHEARERN  BXRREGE M BEHRER AR
M EPRETAREEARERRNE
I8 o

7R 5 0 4 o B A R R T AR ATRE B
AR E B ERARH B
EEARE

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
RTIBERRRNZE
KSR E N

Amendments to IFRS 3, Definition of a Business

BIFR B s S RISE 35F 2 185] - EH 2 &
Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8, Definition of Material
BIFR S et RIS 1 5E R EIRR @ St ERIE 85R 2 ER] - R EH
IFRS 17, Insurance contracts

BIRR B s S 2ERIZE 17 5% - RIR A K

Amendments to IAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
Bt £RE 1R BT - BESERRDAESCGERDAE

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (2011), Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
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36. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 6. BE-—E-NAF+=ZA=+—

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 3 — Definition of a
BuUSINess

The amendments clarify that for an integrated set of activities
and assets to be considered a business, it must include, at a
minimum, an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create output. A
business can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments remove
the assessment of whether market participants are capable of
acquiring the business and continue to produce outputs.
Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs and acquired
substantive processes together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs. The amendments have also narrowed
the definition of outputs to focus on goods or services provided
to customers, investment income or other income from
ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments provide
guidance to assess whether an acquired process is substantive
and introduce an optional fair value concentration test to
permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 — Definition of
Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material. It states
that information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring
it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make on
the basis of those financial statements. The amendments
clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude
of information. A misstatement of information is material if it
could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by
the primary users. The Group expects the amendments have
no significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial
Statements.
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36. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 (continued)

IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 will replace IFRS 4 as a single principle-based standard
for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of insurance contracts in the financial statements of the issuers
of those contracts.

Amendments to IAS 1 — Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current

The amendments modify one of the criteria in IAS 1 that results
in a liability being classified as current. Any of the criteria being
satisfied results in the liability being classified as current. The
first three criteria are unchanged, and require an entity to
classify a liability as current when: (a) it expects to settle the
liability in its normal operating cycle; (b) it holds the liability
primarily for the purpose of trading; and (c) the liability is due
to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date.

IAS 1 was amended that if an entity does not have the right at
the end of the reporting period to defer settlement of the
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
then the liability must be classified as current. This amendment
emphasises that the classification of a liability is not dependent
on an entity’s intentions. It is dependent on the rights that the
entity has in relation to the timing of the settlement of the
liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 — Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to be
recognised when an entity sells or contributes assets to its
associate or joint venture. When the transaction involves a
business the gain or loss is recognised in full, conversely when
the transaction involves assets that do not constitute a
business the gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the
unrelated investors' interests in the joint venture or associate.

The Group is not yet in a position to state whether these new
pronouncements will result in substantial changes to the
Group’s accounting policies and consolidated financial
Statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subscription of new shares for capitalization of
debenture

On 22 December 2019, the Company entered into the
subscription agreements with Mr. Han Hong and Mr. Han Jin
(together as “Subscribers”), pursuant to which Subscribers
have conditionally agreed to subscribe for an aggregate of
123,533,400 new shares at the subscription price of HK$0.12 by
capitalising partial amounts of debenture together with
accrued interest thereon in the amount of HK$14,824,000
(equivalent to RMB13,279,000) (note 26) owed by the Company
to Subscribers. The subscription has been completed on 14
February 2020. More details of the subscription can be found
in the announcement of the Company dated 22 December
2019.
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37. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(Continued)

Antidumping duty and countervailing duty
investigations

On 29 January 2020, the U.S. Department of Commerce
announced the initiation of new antidumpling duty and
countervailing duty investigations (the “Investigations”) to
determine whether wood mouldings and millwork products
from Brazil and China are being dumped in the United States,
and to determine if producers in China are receiving unfair
subsidies. Certain of the Group’s wood products exported to
the United States were under the scope of such Investigations.
The Group will closely monitor the development on the
Investigations, evaluate the impact to the Group and seek for
necessary and decisive actions to minimise the negative
impact. Furthermore, the legal opinion from a lawyer, an
independent third party, has been issued on 30 March 2020. It
states that the outcome of the Investigations is uncertain when
the Investigations is in the initial stage and the Group has not
yet been served by U.S. Department of Commerce.
Furthermore, it stated that the Group has no obligation for any
penalty or fine arising from the result of Investigation for sales
to the United States before 31 December 2019. As a result,
provision for antidumpling penalty is considered not necessary.

Outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 in January
2020

Since the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19")
in January 2020, the prevention and control of the COVID-19
has been going on throughout the country. Subject to the
development and spread of COVID-19 subsequent to the end
of the reporting period, further changes in economic conditions
may have an impact on the financial results of the Group, the
extent of which could not be estimated as at the date of these
financial statements. The Group will keep continuous attention
on the situation of the COVID-19 and proactively take action
with an attempt to minimise its impact on the Group’s financial
position and operating results.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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